TORBAY ™7~

Health-Wellbeing

BOARD

Working together for a healthier Torbay

Wednesday, 11 September 2013

Meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board

Thursday, 19 September 2013
3.00 pm

Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR

Members of the Board

Caroline Taylor, Torbay Council Councillor Lewis
Debbie Stark, Torbay Council Councillor Scouler
Sam Barrell, South Devon and Torbay Clinical Councillor Pritchard
Commissioning Group Councillor Davies
Richard Williams, Torbay Council Councillor Morey

Steve Moore, NHS England
Pat Harris, Healthwatch Torbay

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or
language please contact:
Lisa Antrobus, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR
01803 207064

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk

ORBAY _ NHS
L) .




3(a)

3(b)

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
AGENDA

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence, including notifications of any
changes to the membership of the Committee.

Minutes
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the Health and
Wellbeing Board held on 17 July 2013.

Declaration of interest

To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of
items on this agenda

For reference: Having declared their non pecuniary interest
Members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the
matter in question. A completed disclosure of interests form should
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in
respect of items on this agenda

For reference: Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the
item. However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter. A
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

(Please Note: If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.)

Urgent items
To consider any other items that the Chairman/woman decides are
urgent.

Update Report - Adult Social Services
To receive an update on the current position of Adult Social
Services.

Update Report - Clinical Commissioning Group
To receive an update on the current position of the Clinical
Commissioning Group.

Update Report - Public Health
To receive an update on the current position of Public Health.

(Pages 1 - 4)

(Pages 5 - 8)

(Pages 9 - 22)

(Pages 23 - 25)



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

Update Report - Healthwatch
To receive an update on the current position of Healthwatch.

Update Report - Children's Services
To receive an update on the current position of Children’s Services.

Children and Young People Update - Health
To consider an update on progress being made in relation to the
jointly agreed priority areas for children and young people.

Collaboration without Duplication
To consider a report on the above.

Winterbourne View Action Plan
To receive an update on progress being made in relation to the
jointly agreed action plan for Winterbourne View.

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priority 9 - Increase Sexual
Health Screening

To discuss how the Health and Wellbeing Board can broaden and
lengthen the whole community approach to aid an increase in
sexual health screening.

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priority 3 - Reduce
Teenage Pregnancy

To discuss how the Health and Wellbeing Board can broaden and
lengthen the whole community approach to the reduction of teenage
pregnancy.

(Pages 26 - 89)

(Pages 90 - 94)

(Pages 95 - 104)

(Pages 105 - 106)

(Pages 107 - 109)

(Pages 110 - 161)

(Pages 162 - 169)



Agenda Item 2

TORBAY

Health-Wellbeing

BOARD

Working together for a healthier Torbay

Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board
17 July 2013
-: Present :-

Councillor Chris Lewis (Chairman)

Debbie Stark, Richard Williams, Councillor Ken Pritchard, Councillor Bobbie Davies,

Councillor Mike Morey, Pat Harris, Julie Foster and Steve Wallwork

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Apologies

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Scouler, Steve Moore (NHS
England), Caroline Taylor who was represented by Julie Foster, and Sam Barrell
who was represented by Steve Wallwork.

Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 23 May
2013 were confirmed as a correct record subject to Councillor Davies attendance
being recorded.

Urgent items

The Board considered the item in Minute 29, and not included on the agenda, the
Chairman being of the opinion that the item was urgent by reason of special
circumstances i.e. the matter having arisen since the agenda was prepared and it
was unreasonable to delay a decision until the next meeting.

Update Report - Adult Social Services

The Board noted the update on Adult Services.

Update Report - Clinical Commissioning Group

Members noted the update from the Clinical Commissioning Group and were
advised that the project to connect clinicians with e-Prescribing had received

funding in the region of £3.1 million. Work on the project was already underway
and would be concluded in two years.

Page 1



Health and Wellbeing Board Wednesday, 17 July 2013

23.

24,

25.

26.

Update Report - Public Health

The Board noted the update on Public Health and were advised that following the
consideration of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy — Priority 15 Improve Care
for People Living with Dementia and their Carers an application was made to Public
Health England for support from their System Leadership — Local Vision
Programme in order to progress work around a ‘Dementia Aware Torbay’. Over the
summer officers will be working with Public Health England, Clinical Commissioning
Group, Torbay Healthwatch and local people to develop a project plan.

Update Report - Healthwatch

Members noted the update from Healthwatch. Members attention was drawn to the
need for better communication between partners as there was already evidence of
duplication between stakeholders.

By consensus, Members agreed for Debbie Stark to raise with the Senior
Leadership Team the issue of communication and duplication with stakeholders.

Update Report - Children's Services

The Board noted the update on Children’s Services and the spike in referral activity.
Members were advised that Torbay was not alone in an increase of referral activity
with partners experiencing a similar issue.

Members were informed of work that had been undertaken to refocus and
restructure the Children’s Partnership Improvement Plan with emphasis being
removed from early intervention to a more targeted approach.

The Preventative Community Project (Community HUB)

Members received an overview of the activities being undertaken by the
Preventative Project/Community HUB pilot in the Hele and Watcombe communities.
Members were advised that the original vision of Preventative Community Project
was based upon the idea of a community preventative multi-agency team.

With the planned increase in health visiting numbers in Torbay the opportunity had
arisen to develop a preventative community model in partnership with Children’s
Services that helps increase community capacity and social capital to ensure
sustainable support from the community.

Resolved:

That the activities being undertaken by the Preventative Community
Project/Community HUB pilot in the Hele and Watcombe communities be noted.

Page 2



Health and Wellbeing Board Wednesday, 17 July 2013

27.

28.

Adult Learning Disability Services (including Winterbourne View Action Plan)

The Board were provided with an update in respect of the implementation of the
Winterbourne Action Plan. Following the Winterbourne View Hospital Serious Case
Review the Department of Health published ‘Concordat: Programme for Action’.
The document was signed by many Health and Social Care agencies, committing to
a programme of change to transform health and care services and to improve the
quality of care offered to children, young people and adults with learning disabilities
or autism, to ensure better outcomes for them.

Members were advised that the local Winterbourne View task and finish group met
on 12 April 2013 following the publication of the Concordat, the group discussed the
existing Winterbourne View action plan which was based upon interpretation of the
Serious Case Review when it was first published, the action plan was refreshed to
ensure that there was a real focus on the major issues outlined in the Concordat.

The Board noted that all Torbay clients currently placed in in-patient facilities have
had their personalised care plan reviewed.

Resolved:

(1) That the report and recommendations for on-going monitoring and review be
noted; and

(i) that a further report regarding the assessment as to whether pooled budgets
would support the pace of progress be presented to the Health and
Wellbeing Board on 19 September 2013.

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priority 8 - Reduce Alcohol Consumption

As part of its agreed approach, the Board gave consideration to one of its priorities
within the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, namely Priority 8: Reduce Alcohol
Consumption. Representatives from the Public Health Team and Healthwatch
presented statistical analysis, research and details of work that was currently
underway to address alcohol misuse.

Members of the Board then discussed how the Health and Wellbeing Board could
“broaden and lengthen” the whole-community approach to the reduction of alcohol
consumption. In particular, members were asked to pay particular attention to
whether the actions within the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy were the right
ones, what needed to change locally to meet the outcomes required by the Board,
and what could the Board do to promote integrated working to support this priority.

Members were advised that there was an upward trend for alcohol consumption
with alcohol being cheaper to purchase than in 1980 and the location of
consumption of alcohol changing from licensed premises to people’s homes. Itis
believed that the shift from consumption of alcohol in licensed premises to the
home is the likely driver of the marked increase in alcohol morbidity and mortality
amongst ‘sensible’ drinkers.

Page 3



Health and Wellbeing Board Wednesday, 17 July 2013

29.

30.

The measurement for alcohol reliance is subjective therefore statistical data is
reliant upon hospital admittance. Over a period of three years Torbay registered
3,800 alcohol related admissions, 1,200 of these were alcohol specific admissions
with 2,600 being alcohol related admissions such as trips and falls. Irresponsible
drinkers are stereotypically portrayed as young people however analysis has shown
that middle aged professionals who think they drink responsibly are the most
irresponsible drinkers.

Members were advised that the Clinical Commissioning Group had developed a
screening programme of healthchecks. A number of different organisations were
trained to undertake the healthchecks including street wardens, street pastors and
Job Centre Plus. Members suggested that the healthchecks target two particular
wards, a deprived ward and an affluent ward to see if there is a correlation between
alcohol consumption and deprivation.

Doug Anderson, ambassador for Healthwatch informed members of a new group
called ‘Torbay Recovery Information Project’ (TRIP). TRIP was established by
people in recovery who want to help others. Debbie Stark offered assistance and
support from the Public Health Team.

The Board were advised that Health and Wellbeing Boards across the peninsula
had the reduction of alcohol consumption as one of their priorities. Therefore it was
suggested that a peninsula alliance be formed that would share work to address
alcohol consumption across the peninsula. Members were requested to involve
service users whenever possible.

Section 256 Social Care Funding for Health Benefit - Allocation and
Monitoring

Members considered a report that sought the approval of the Health and Wellbeing
Board on the allocation of Section 256 funding for projects within the financial year
2013/14.

Members were advised that under Section 256 of the NHS Act 2006, the
Department of Health makes available, through NHS England, funding to support
adult social care which also has a health benefit. NHS England provides flexibility
for local areas to determine how this investment in social care services is best
used.

Resolved:

That, taking account of Torbay’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, the funding
allocations, outcomes and monitoring arrangements in relation to Section 256
monies be agreed.

Information Pack

The information pack was noted.

Chairman

Page 4



Agenda Iltem 5

TORBAY ™7~
Health- Wellbeing
— BOARD
Working together for a healthier Torbay
Title: Update Report Adult Services
Wards Affected: All
To: Health and Wellbeing On: 19 September 2013
Board
Contact: Caroline Taylor, Director Adult Social Services
Telephone: 01803 207116
Email: caroline.taylor@torbay.gov.uk
1. Achievements since last meeting
1.1 The first quarter of the financial has indicated that the commissioning of adults

services from TSDHCT has been progressing in line with the ASA. This
continues to be a positive achievement given the demand pressures on the
services for adults.

Dialogue with care homes as providers of services continues to develop and a
further development of the fees model in conjunction with the CCG is in
process. Supporting People services will be reduced and there will be a
provider meeting in early October for dialogue as to how local suppliers can
re-shape their services and businesses as there will be reduced public money
available over the next few years. Early consultation is taking place on the
commissioning of domestic abuse services.

The process of acquisition of TSDHCT continues with recommendations of
the final business case following formal evaluation in June agreed at council
on 18" July 2013, followed by NHS processes including TDA (Trust
Development Agency)for final decision and determination.

Shortlisted for lottery support to combat social isolation by working with
voluntary sector- other bids for homelessness, rogue landlords and housing
related support being pursued which if successful will support vulnerable
adults.

Potential development of health and care spin off businesses with NHS
partners, academic science network and TDA(economic development)

Community Services Engagement-joint work with CCG on rethinking future of
community services in Torbay and South Devon. It will include adult social

ORBAY NHS

— Page 5



care. Councillors will support the dialogue with the public in the Torbay local
authority area.

The pioneer bid to government to help support the transformation of health
and social care for local people was submitted on time and has been
shortlisted. This will be assessed in more detail in September with any likely
announcement now being likely in October.

Government set out its funding intentions in June for CSR. This means overall
funding for local government will fall by £2.1 billion in 2015/16. The council will
be reducing support for services and will be consulting key service users and
stakeholders about its options for Mayor and Clirs decisions.

The £3.8 billion pooled budget for health and adult social care is being
developed in more detail. The money will be called the ‘Integration
Transformation Fund’ (ITF). It is expected that plans will develop this autumn
with the CCG using the additional £200m 256 monies. There will need to be 2
years plans for 2014/15 and 2015/16 which must be in place by 2014.There is
also an additional £200m to support the transformation process. Clarity is still
being sought but the ITF fund will come from existing 256, carers break
funding, CCG reablement funding, capital including DFG (disabled facilities
grant) and transfer from health to social care. It is expected that £1bn will be
performance related and ITF will have conditions which have yet to be
agreed. HWBB Boards will sign off the plans.

Adult social care services will need to develop its approach to Dilnot and self-
funders which will drive new organisational demands and new processes for
assessments will be required. Some of the new monies in the government
announcements it is understood are for the costs of Dilnot year 1. Locally we
will be modelling what this means to us from September. The London
Authorities have undertaken some modelling and it indicates this may be a
further cost pressure with the costs of the new system not being covered by
new government monies.

The reporting of adult care performance is being changed by government.
The Pls are more helpful to what we wish to achieve locally. However it is a
big system change including ICT changes. Government have provided some
one off monies to support this.

There is a requirement of a second self assessment exercise for the
implementation of the adult autism strategy. This is being completed in
collaboration with the CCG for the return date of 30 September 2013. The
governance of the local autism board has yet to be determined.

Jon Rouse the Director General for Social Care, Local government and Care
Partnerships in the Dept of Health has asked to visit Torbay on 6 December
2013- arrangements will be put in place.

Page 6



Challenges for the next three months

The need to focus on delivery whilst the acquisition process goes through its
determination is a continued risk to our local system. This is mitigated through
good local working relations across the health and care system and an
emphasis on the focus on ‘Mrs Smith’ with shared vision and values.

The action plan to improve our mental health services to CQC is still being
implemented. Progress has been achieved through temporary posts which
are in the process of permanent recruitment. Background work is being done
to understand the implications of transferring the employment of Approved
Mental Health Practitioners from Council to TSDHCT.

The number of Safeguarding Adults referrals have increased again during
July placing pressure on resources. A review of services will be carried out
during September to develop options for sustainability if the increase
continues.

It has been proposed that a protocol between Torbay Safeguarding Adult
Board and the Health and Wellbeing Board will be drafted in line with that
produced for the Torbay Local Children Safeguarding Board for October 2013.

It appears that winter pressures monies will be determined centrally with
Torbay not receiving money to cope with its pressures. This is disappointing.

Work to develop the pioneer bid and ensure whether successful or not we
implement the changes we need locally and have a single set of plans and
proposals

Develop joint plans for the use of the ITF fund with CCG in readiness for April
2014 sign off

Formal agreement of risk share with CCG and acquiring organisation as
acquisition program

Consulting services users and partners as we decommission or recommission
some services

Ensure the development of holistic review of accommodation based care and

support, including care homes, Dom care, supported living, extra care housing
is complete and procure new care and support provision based outcomes.

Page 7



Action required by partners

Support to develop work for pioneer of health and care system as per Norman
Lamb pilot within a single work programme for local government, CCG and
providers reporting to HWBB and DCC Governance.

Continued engagement of role of voluntary and community sector for joined
up role of health and care in financially sustainable way. Specific work on
lottery bid to combat social isolation

Joint work on dialogue on the future of community services this autumn to
shape our future configuration of services

Develop joint plans for the use of the ITF fund with CCG in readiness for April
2014 sign off

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 6

TORBAY ™2~

Health- Wellbeing

BOARD

Working together for a healthier Torbay

Title: Update Report —South Devon and Torbay Clinical
Commissioning Group
Wards Affected: All

To: Health and Wellbeing On: 19 September 2013
Board
Contact: Dr Sam Barrell, Chief Clinical Officer
Telephone: 01803 652 451
Email: mollybishop@nhs.net (PA)
1. Achievements since last meeting

1.1 The CCG led a bid on the part of the whole South Devon and Torbay health
and care community to become a Pioneer site for integration, under the scheme
announced by Norman Lamb, Minister of State for Care and Support. From 111
submissions, South Devon and Torbay has now been shortlisted, and — at the time
of writing — was due to take part in the second and final part of the process during
September. Selection as a pioneer site would give us invaluable external support in
further joining up the system to the benefit of our population.

1.2 In partnership with Devon Partnership NHS Trust, the CCG has been holding a
series of engagement events on improving mental health services — a high priority in
the CCG integrated plan. The latest listening and discussion event was held in
Newton Abbot, building on the ideas put forward at earlier meetings. Early actions
resulting from the engagement include plans for a Crisis House to be piloted in
Torbay as an alternative to inpatient admission. Feedback from participants to these
events has been extremely positive, and has helped us understand more about what
people with experience of mental health problems are looking for in the way of better
support.

1.3 From this month, we are starting a widespread engagement with communities
across the CCG about the future of community services. This will be carried out at
the level of the five localities into which the CCG is divided in order to keep
commissioning of services really local and responsive to the particular needs of our
different communities. We see this as an important opportunity to listen to people’s
concerns, expectations and priorities. The insights we gain will help us build an
overarching strategy for community services in the years ahead. The engagement
is being held, at least partly, in the context of the NHS Call to Action, which sets out
the need for change in the NHS if a worrying shortfall in resource versus demand is
to be avoided in the coming years.

QREAY page s e



2, Challenges for the next three months

2.1 Whether or not the South Devon and Torbay health and care community is
successful in its bid for Pioneer status, there are important challenges as we work to
integrate more fully. We will need to alleviate pressure experienced by all GP
practices, as a first step towards integrating primary care with the wider community
services, including mental health services. There is also much to be done in moving
towards seven-day working in the parts of the system that need to meet demand
outside the normal Monday to Friday hours.

2.2 Finance continues to present a challenge for the CCG, along with the rest of
the public sector. In particular, we have been required to allocate an additional £4
million of our funding to specialised commissioning. This means the CCG is
continuing to take a cautious approach to investment, at a time when it would
otherwise aspire to set many new schemes in motion for improving services and
ensuring equity of service and access for all in our CCG area.

3. Action required by partners

3.1 To note the contents of this update

Appendices: South Devon and Torbay — a bid for Pioneer status (attached)

Background Papers: None

Page 10



AVDRIO aow Jo uoypjndod pauiquod o ssoioD Buluibs| ey pueixe o} sieupnd juiol 1o pup uoreg AATN Yim Aj@soj yiom pjnom em ‘1eeuoid D sy

E T "8|p2s pup eond o uoupIBajul eASIYID O} uoloACUUl pup 8d1dPId Iseq BulBupydxe puo Bulpys Ajpidol ‘ejdoed uoyjiw g | uoy

c

Q
o
Q
<

Agenda |

M%QO BujuoissiuwoD) [p21UlD) UOAS( UIBISSAA PUD UISISDT 'UIBYION

dnoigy juswiajoAu| 21jgnd 218a}01IS ADQIo] PUD UoAS( Yinog
201dsop 1Jo1oMOy

|1ounoD) AlunoD) uore(

pioog Bulaq|jeAA PUD Yijps Abgio]

pioog Buieqlepn PUD YijpsH uorsQ

:Aq papioddng

1sn1] SHN diysisupng uoas(
|lounoD) Apgio]

1501] SHN 8IDD) PUP YipeH uoAs( uisyinog pup Abgio|

1SN1] UOHDPUNOL GHN| SI0DY}|08H UOAS(] YiNog
dnoig Buiuoissiwwor) [p21ulD) ADgIo] puD uoASQ Yinog

"ODD uoreq (MIN) UBISAA PuD wisisn] ‘weyloN| Bunnogybisu 1no Jo Buyong syl yim papiwgns st piq siy|

Page 11

‘oW O} jupjiodwl SBWODINO By} SASIYOD Of SEDIAISS
Jayjeboy Bulig pup ‘|04u0d sW MO0 ‘(s)ieind Aw puo sw
pupjsispun of Jayjeboy yiom oym sjdoed yjim eiod Aw uojd uoD |

snyojs Jsauold 1oy pIg o
:jjoddns pup 8102 pajpibeju|



‘ALJUNOD 8y} 500D YsHNojy uoliBajul

djey o} suiob 1no e1oys Of JusUWWWOD

Wil D @joW &M ‘uinjel uj “uo poay

sanss| J|ndiyip Asen Buipooy Joj ebpiene
puo ‘uopiBajul Joj yind ayj 8spe pjnom
10y} a18ym Ajljiqixe}j 10} puD $8lIPPUNOg 8yj
1o Buiysnd 1oy pjoddns |puoypu ‘ubisepal
weysAs Jolow o epinb o} Bujuips| [PuoyPuIB|Ul
0} $59000 uedo ‘juswaboupw eBuoyd ul
asijiadxa |jIA sn 8AIB pjnom snjojs 1eauold
"AjI|021 D UOISIA INO @3PW o} paiinbai
uolpwlojsubly weysAs-ajoym ‘pidos ayj
8pooy em sp jioddns pesu mou am jnq
1oy} 0s ssa1boid uno jo pnoid aip SpA

"Wy Jsassjul lyBiw SyuIyl mou

8y Dy} 8SIN0D |DUOIDI0A D pulj of poddns
Buiyeb s1 Jiaqoy 1lercaioyy 00} ‘SalNOLIP
Buisnoy sy yiim djey suoasw siyi ‘paiebbiy
Ajjeaupwiolno st ayjow siy Joj poddns
J2ID7) "8dIAJes AjoIxup pup uoissaidep
ebp-|o sy} woly Adpiayy joo1B0ojoyASd

s1y Buyuswe|dwod ‘suolows siy

eboupw o} shkom Bujuwps) si ey os ‘poddns
Jead wol sjifeusq Mou e Wiy Joj

syiom jpys Aom o ul ‘@12 siy Bujuupid Jo
|0UOD &3P} [|IM 118qOy  “Ayloows Jajsupi)
Upd 8y oy} 0$ SEJIAISS Yl|D8Y [Djusul

1|NPD PUD ) PesOg-gny-AlIuNwwoD ayj yim
Aj@so|o }IoMm puD pupy UO 8q ||IM JeIoM
Aey pawpu siy ‘Abpyuiq p@u sy o poddns
SHWYD SIY 8s0| },uom peqoy ‘eininy uj

SERIETETEN
walsAs syl Buyosiosy

|em BulAp puo |jem Buieby
|em Buiyjiom puo Buian
|em Buidojersq

|em Buioig

uoyonpou| ¢

Abglo] pup uoAeq Yinog
snyoys Jesuold Joj piq B

:poddns pup s100 pajoibsju)

J1eqoy o] “e|doed BunoA

INO O} PUD $8|QNOJ} YlIM $81|IWDJ INO O} —
S8I1I0YIND [DD0| OM| SSOIOD — OO} Palajo

3Q ||© SNW '10JOUIPIO0D BIDD Sy} ‘810D
dusijoy Jo ainynd ey ‘sdiysuonoel Buols ey
"Buppiom Aipuydidsip-yjnw ‘sse|wpes ay|
AIUNWWOD 8|OYM Y} $S0IOD Papusixe

84 MOU ISNW YsHNO|} Of SINPD 10} 810D
|o120s pup yijoay pejpibsjul Ino pejqoue
1oy} sejdiound sy :siyi s1 eBus|oyd ay|

L -osnsiw

[oyoojo eanpal o} op O} Yonuw S| aiay|
"einoo a1o Aupw 1o} swejqoid Buisnoy

JOU 81D WIDY-[8s JO 850y} Ing Apgio] Ul
Bui|p} @10 s8ipI BPIDING "SEDIAISS Of $5800D
J|noUyIp @low puo syul| podsuoly 1ood

UM "UOIIDIOS] [0INI 885 &M JooWD] UQ
“UOI|IW +(G | 3 JO WalsAs InO O} §s0d D

pup ‘yijosyH| patoadxe Jo swos 1o} siow
sioeA /| 'dob Aouppedxe eyl 108A-/ O
uoaw saljpnbaul “Alunod ay; ul isaybly ey
Buowo e10 Angio] ul @102 Jelp-pedoo), Ul
10 supjd uoydejoid uo usIp|IYD Jo siequINN|
"00} sa||iwoy pup ejdoad BunoA Buipunouns
sebus||pyo juppodul a0 sisy) Ing

ISOAA YINOS 8y Ul suoissiupo AdusBiews
JO @jp1 Isemo| 8y} SPY I "QOG Jepun of 0/
wou} pednpal eq of speq |ojidsoy 8jnoo
Buijgoue ‘Ayunod eyi ur Aoss Jo syibug
159MO| 8y} JO 8uO spy |pidsoH Abgio]  “auo
150l seyoy )1 mou | () Jo o1sAyd ‘esinu oLIsIp
J}IOM |DIDOS D UoDal O} Pepesu 8dUo
s1em |02 a|dyjni SINOY 17 Of SYSIM 17

wouj yuswdinba jusbin 10§ ‘shop 7 o} syeem
¢ woyy ua||p} @Apy Adpiayj |puolpdnooo

10J SIIDAA "SINOY 817 Of $98m g Wolj
paddoip eroy AdpisyjoisAyd 10} SHOAA
"pSISAI[SP SDY 8102 pUD Yjjosy pajpibajul
YHWS SIW 104 "8IsY %461 NG %6 T €9
||m pupjbug 1o} ejol 8yt ' | 0z Ag “obp
SIDSA | § SIyl payopal Abgio] J8AC 10 ¢g
st uoypjndod eyl Jo %z "z ‘Ajjpuonpu ‘Anpo|
"Buiebo s uoyojndod syl jpy; ‘uoAsq YINOS
$SOJOD PUD ‘PUD|BUT $SOIOD UMOUY [[OM SI ||

"JUBWIOW D Ul J8gOY O} UInial [|IM SAA
“Buiwipyjes usaq soy ay ‘Ajluedey "poob
1,usio spadsoid yiom sty Ing jooyds o Aojs
o} Bujuupid Jusi |Jeqoy "$8dIAISS ||NPD OJul
S8AOW 8Y SD SJODJUOD [PUOISSejoId IDI|IWD)
SIY ||D 8S0| pjnom &y Ajjpwiou usym ‘g |
8Q [|IM 8 UOOS INq SeDIAISS Yl|Dap [Djus\y
Jusdse|opy pPup pIyD eyt wolj poddns
Buinieoes useq soy ey “jooyds jo  Buyioy,
puo eoijod ayi yim ejgnolt u Buieb
'sowy o sBnup Bupyo; puo joyoo[ Bupuup
"Yijpey [ojusw sty yum BulBBnuis usaq soy
11900y "10qQqy UOIMBN JO UMO} je3iow

8y} ul piom paAudep o Ul Jayiow siy yim
BuiAl| si G| 10 oym ‘eqoy ‘uospuniB o soy
MOU [[BM OS MO @M YIIWS SIA 8y} Ing

"uspIDB pParoyNW

18y ynm Jey djey Asyj puo ‘swioy

I8y Ul pejlj 81D S|IDIPUDY 8INs 8PPW SADY
awayds 10ppeuuod pooyinoqybiau, eyl wol
$188JUNJOA 'MOU JOJ "8UOY UMO Iy Ul 810D
eoidsoy ussoyd soy pup ‘e1od aji| Jo pus
18y Umcco_o_ SDY YHWS SIA 1o3IoMm yijoey

Aey puo Ajlwpy sy yim Jeyiebol “paq umo
18y ul i1 eApy of pausjeid ays jJuswioal)
SNOUSADI|UI P3U PIP 8Ys SWij ISD| 8y} pup
Ajsiowss suBis [ojIA 18y Jojiuoul UDd Jo)

I8y ‘swoy Jay Ul Jay 0} 8WODd $2lsouBbDIp
pley-pupy ‘|oidsoy of ussq soy yiwg

siyy @2ouls swi Buo| o s i INg ‘pspnjoul 810
suolusAlajul [ojidsoy sjnoy uoljusrsid

10 pjoddns Joj 'pspasu 81D Joy; SIsylo
5186611} Ajpojuoipeje pup Ajjpoyowolno

I UOIJIPUOD UO 10} 810D SaAIS8I YHIWS

SIV Jensusym ‘waisAs ay) Jo spod (D $s0100
Bulipys-uoypwiIojul Of $YUDY|  “IOJOUIPIO0D
8100 pawbu 8|buls I8y yiim pasiuoBio ||o
'o0} ‘speau Buleg|jem |p1susB pup yjjosy
|ojuew Jey 1o} poddns pesijpuosied ing
8102 |DI20S PuUD Yjoay isnl Jou pul uod ays
aleym ‘gny Ajlunwwiod o ojul pejoiBajul eq
M 4O JeH @diAies aIpd IO yjjosy Aup

104 |[o2 e[Buls B &P ||Im JajyBnop @_
10 ylwg siyy ‘eininj ay) Jo Abguiop mé&

"abny s1 8102 PajouIPIooD 10} co_h_ﬁﬁwu

ino puo ‘unBeq snl Ajuo ey em iy
518100 puUD AjlWDj Jey puo  ynwg s, Aq
peouaiadxe aq ||Im Il Moy Jo enladsied sy
WOIJ PMBIA USSQ SDY 810D 'SIDSA |DIsAss
104 "sn wolj uips| o} Bupess Joop INo of
Aupw 1yBnoiq puo uoyubodal jpuolpuIs|ul
PUD |DUOIIOU UOM SDY ADGIO] Ul 9102

|o120s puD Yijpsy pajoiBajul jo [epouw ay|

"D3ID B|OYM INO SSOIOD UOUDIOYD||OD
JO piodal >yopl} Buols b aAdy @\/\/

uoLPNPOIU|

‘joddns pup 8100 1IN0 PasU OYM 8SOY} JO spupy ey Ul Jemod 10w Ind PuD $S8|WDSS B1DD INO

expW 0} Jeyio yona yiim dn uiol o} pesu em ‘siyi op o] “jouund Asyj usym uoisSDAWOD YiiMm 810D Of pup

'aq upd Asyj so pa||u|ny pup juspuadepul pup |jem so eq o} sjdoad poddns of layioun Jeyo uolpisush

auo Jo seljiunpoddo ey} sjIoEND Yoiym eBoJUDAPDSIP JO 8[2AD 8yl — Ajjusupwied — paiq o} ‘uolpojndod
1o Jo ayi| jo Ailonb ey} o} eduaialip JOlDW D 8)DW Of PEA[Osal 810 8M ‘SaljIUNWIWOD [P0 INO YHIAA



"D3ID S|OYM BY SSOIOD SBIIUNWWIOD
peiebin} o} jo8lold 8[el /aqUIODIDAN Byl
1no Buyjjor Ag siyi uo pjing ||im am 'poob
1D S8WODINO }| "suoisses u-doip o poddns
ipjnBal JaJjo IOJISIA YioaY D 1oy} PaSD SDY
saljlwpy 10y dnoiB jiomieu o Buipois leyiow
o — Appdod Ajjunwiwod Buipjing Appeijo s
10)1d sy pausyibuels usaq eAoy siepiroid
Buisnoy pup sjooyds yim syul| [PiA “Hoddns
10} payyuap! sie10d pup ‘pebboy pup
paliods a1p senss| BuipipnBajos Jejjioe
payjiusp! aip swejqoid yim sal|iwp
"selond so seliusp! Jj@si Alunwwod

ay) senss! ay} ssaippo Asy; eyielbol
‘Abnbio] Jo spaip pealdep jsow ayj o suo
ul sjebuy s,ejep dnoib Ajjunwwod syl puo
uoyoonpa ‘Bupdijod Ajlunwwod ‘suspiom
1881js apIsbuoiD syiom wos} Buisinu yioay
21gnd Alunwwiod Jsiopads ¢ |0 ey} ‘elsH
4, S8DIAI8S BAIDD8) UDY) 108|B8u pup 8sngp
8dNnpal O} 8IoW Op UDD $8DIAISS BAluSARId
1oyt ejdipund olunyy ey Aq pepinb —
syiBualjs umo sii Buisn ‘spseu UMO sii jeauwl
1ayeq o} Alunwwiod ey jioddns of swio
1o8loig 8] /aquodippp 8yl “yoooiddo
paspg-sjesso up Buisn ‘saljiunwwod 1no
I JOB)j8 WNWIXOW O} 3IOM O} Peau am
'0$ UjpWal O} UIPLED PUD JND} SIBBPNG YHIAA

"pSpuUsixe 8q Of Spasu SIy)
'pajebin} 810 salIWD] G /0 ‘AjlusinD
"sjuaiod BunoA swiHsIy s|qoIeU|NA

SERIETETEN

wajsAs ayi Buyosiosy

|em BulAp pup |jem BuieBy
|[em Buiyiom puo Buiar
|em Buidojers(g

[om Buiioig ¢

uolPNPoIU|

ApQuo| pupb uoAs(Q Yinog
snyojs Jesuold Joy piq P

:joddns pup a10d pajoibaju)

pup pebojUDAPDSIP ISOW INO JO BUWOS

o} swwpiboid poddns paspg-eouspire
'SAISUS|UI UD SIoAlep WDa) diysisupiog
Yi|os Ajiwo4 sy ‘Aoqio] ul eoiAles

IOJISIA Uj|03Y [DSISAIUN SY) UIYHIAA ~USIP|IYD
10J sswoojno Jood of poa)| §||1fs Ajlwp) 100

"US30Iq 8q UDD 8IDD UO

soupifel Buolay| jo suisypd syi joy) 0s

sal|lwp} pup e|doad BunoA Ino spiomoy
sisoydue Ul J1Ys ayj SALP [|IM SAA

-— e 3 {

"speau JupdIuBIs Yiim 8soyl uo aiojelay) S|
sioeA Ajpe sy} ul yiom pajoiBajul 10} $nooj
8yl ‘aj1| yBnouyj sejojnWNOOD puD YuIq o
s1DJs 8BDJUDAPDSIP Sy “SIUDUIWISISP [DID0S
8yl ||O $SOIOD UOIIOD PasSDG-8oUSPIAS YIIM
"yopoiddpo . wsijpsisAun ejpuolodoly,
8yl yBnouyj ssiyijonbaul sseippo puo
UoljusAIa|Ul AjiDs pup uolusAsId 8sI|PWIO)
o} ‘'shomyiod 8102 1no Bujuspooiq

puo Bujueyibus| aip em JauiqpD)

210D pup yjosp dn paulof ay; |

SID3A AI0s :|jom Buiunig

*851n09 8Jl| 8y} Buimoy|oj

'anl} o} euo s108A 1o} peddow Apoaijp
8ADY $19pPD3)| jouIgqRD) DY} UOIDWIOSUDI
ay) Bunienljep 1o} poe| peloid o Buyinioel
puo piooq swwpiboid o Bulysijgoise

s1 4| "sedinles Buisn sjdoad 10} @d10A O
yim ‘padoys-e) Buleq s Jjesil leuiqpD) 8y

"g|doed

Jep|o iy} 1loddns o} e|qp Jaleq Buleq
SSIIUNWWOD JUsl|isal PUD SAID O} Buipos)
[opow 821AISS 8|qPUIDISNS O S 1 ‘upid
wisl-Buo| o s s1y) “e(qissod s oyl Jersisym
'Us0Iq 8q UDD 8IDD UO SduDljel Buojey|

jo sweynd ayj joyl os ‘saljjwp} pup s|doed
BunoA ino spiomoy sedinosel pup sisoydwe
Ul J1Ys Syl SALIP aM 8Iaym 8q ||IMm SIy|

"panoiddo sjpob uowwod pup

PaYSI|DISe |[@M UOHDIOGD||0D PUD SALP

jo @1nnd> o ‘Buoils 81D SPUOG [OUOISSSJOI

" jsiy ajdoed sind yoiym eiod pup

yijpey dn-pauiol puo e(gpijes ‘Aijonb-ybip,
ISAI|SP O} JUsW}IWWOD PaaIBo sy} Yiim
‘JauiqpD) 81pD) pup yiosH dn paulof

8yl payouND| AjIUNWWOD 8102 PUD Yijosy
8joym eyl Jo siepps| 'z | O Alonuof U] siyl
10§ juiod Bulols sy} 1D s8N|DA PaIDYS

"pasojo Usaq aADy ||im sdpB sy esnposq
sdob sy ybnouy |y 1, uom sjdoed yorym ut
0102 dn-paulo] ‘ssejwoss jo — ainoid suo
ajpa1o o} Jeyieboyl Bulnd a1o em mosBil

ay) Jo spod aip Aey| -ewoy @10 8y} pup
Asssinu eyy ul ‘|jojdsoy |oLsIp 8yl Ul pup ||oy
8bDj|IA 8yl JD Way} pulj [|IM NOA "8SIN0D 8j|
siyt Jo wnupeds ay) $s010 Buluuni ssweyds
SAIJOAOUU] BADY ©M 'SIy} ©ABIYID O]

"PepP880Ns ALY IeAsU PNOD 8s[e

||o usym Ajuo Ing ‘s|ioj 8s[e || UsyMm Jou —
2102 si|p1oads Ajybly ‘eBpae-Buipos| Bunsjjo
|oiidsoy ejndo Js|ows O sI 81U 8yl 1y
1yBu seoinles 186 djey pup poddns Jeed
pup aipd-jes 1o} oddns Jayjo of yonw os op
upD YoIym Jojoes Aiunuwwod pup Asojun|on
8yl YlIM OS|p ng 8IDD PUD Yjjoay jo
wnioads 8joyMm 8yl YiM — asuss |sepim syl
ul Alunwwiod ayy yiim pejpibsjul [epow e1pd
Alowid JUDIgIA puD pawliojel D &8s SAA

||om e1p pup
oM obo "||oM SI0M PUD BAI| ‘||aM Qo_m>mb
‘||om HiDjs upd >OQ_OH pup uoAs( YinosQa
e|doad ey} 8s1n0D 8y| 18y} J8A0 DY ofd
eouspuadapul wnwixow 10} BuiAls SADM
"Jusws|goal pup STlosNIEN ‘uoljusns,
\mc_mg__m\s UO SN0} Of UOISIA vmm_mo uo Yy
'|SPOW SAIODSI PUD PaSDO-ESPSSIP By)
pulyaq §a| soy ZBLOH puL UoAS( YINog

"Alunwwod a1pd pup yyoay dnpauiol o sy

"ainjn

8y} ul pup mou ‘eiod dn-paulo| ‘jusjjeoxe
yim ‘uonpjndod ino 1oy eduaiayip Jolow,
1oy} @oW O} JI 83N ||IM pup Aogio] pup
uoAe( Yinog ui uoupiBajul Ul eAsljeq AN

""PeNUIUOD UOLONPOLU|

TIAM ONIFOV

Ajepye |1014

TIIM ONDIIOM ANV ONIAIT

HPY

TIAM ONIdOTIAId

TIAIM ONILYVIS

pooyp|IyD si0eA Aupg




"paydinesel Buleq

S| [9POW |DIOUDUI} PESDG-8oUBPIAS Uy
"SSIIAIIOD UOHUBAIBUL A0S 858y} PUnj YdIym
SIOIS9AU JUBWIUIBAOS)-UOU 8y} Apdel of
s8WooINO [p100s parcidwil woly sBuiapbs

ayi Jo uoylodoid o esn o} JusWUIBAOD)

WO JUSWHIWIWIOD 8y} UO paspg aIp

8sey]| "Ualp|Iyd o} uolusAIs|ul AjIDS 10]
,SpUOq JuswiseAul [0I20s, Jo [plusiod

ay} Bunojdxe os[p aip salLoYIND [020] INO)

"sal|iwp}

J1eY} pup si2102 BunoA oy seoines poddns
dn-paulol Buidojersp o} yoooiddo pjog
sjuesaidal ‘sie100 yim pedojersp ‘(7 1 07)
G ‘epun s1e100 BunoA 1o} ABejous juiol

D ‘Apgio] u| “paliusp! aip sieipd BunoA
sloW |py 0s paysel Bulaq si S|OOYDS Ylim
Bupyiom 1esop 1oj Adljod [epow y “uBIp|Iyo
10§ }IOMBWDI{ JUSWISSSSSY UOWWOD)
Jua1IND 8y} spisBuojo uni Asy) ‘uorsq yinog
u| -pedojersp seyinj Buleq aIp sieIDd
BunoA 1oy syoeyo Buleglem pup yijos

‘Aljigisuodsal syt Bupspjnoys

2q o} Ajeyl| aip siequinu 1ejoaib nq
Apgio| pup uore( Yinog ul sieipd BunoA
paylusples 006 Neqo sejodipul | | O¢

SERIETETEN

walsAs syl Buyosiosy

||em BulAp puo |jlem Buieby
|[em Buiyiom puo Buian
|[em Buidojersq ¢

|em Buioig

uolPNPoIU|

Abglo] pup uoAeq Yinog
snyoys Jesuold Joj piq B

:poddns pup s100 pajoibsju)

sSNsue) 8Y| "8ID Joj wayj uo BuiAjel synpo
|| 10 pejgpsip eApy ejdoad BunoA Aupyy

sainsoow

$80[0A [PUCHPN| IsulpBo edoueiedxy @
Jupm Aeyl SBWODINO 8y} 10} S|PNPIAIPUI

Yim Jes sjoob [puosied Jo juswuippy @
%0 :suolssiwpo |pjidsoy

peipjel |OYoD|D JO 8SDBIUl JO Bj0Y @

S|

"8u0 IpeA ul padnodal

soM 00003 1snl Jo Juswiseur ay|
"SOWODINO Js8q 8y} yim ubisepal @1A1es
158q 10} PIOMD |DUOIDU D 1O} PajpUIWoU
soMm eAlplIul siy)  “Buisnoy 1o sjiyeusq
yim djey jponooid puo seidoleyy Bupyjjo;
'SeDIAIBS JO) 10 Yj|oay [plusw O} [pLalel
"xojep Buipnjoul suoyusAisiul JO eBuD)
epim D BulisAljep 'HHOYOD ||PWS O Yiim
Anisuajul syiom Iexiom asod pejebio) vy

"Yijpay pjusw 1o /pup paisAyd 1ood yiim
jussald uajjo oym ‘[ojidsoy jo edubpuSlD
yb1y Appjnoiod puo eouspusdep |oyoo|p
Yllm @S0y} Joj 8D1AI8S [0YOD[D Dlisljoy
'SAISUBJUI UD Ul pajseAul em asay) episBuojo

"uoAS( Yinog ojul ADgio| WOl 8d1AIeS
|OYo2|D Dlst|oy INO Buipusixe 810 SAA

INg 'sediAIes |oyod|o pajoibejul paubisepal
-Amau eroy epp ,7sg | Jepun ey Buowp
Buipnjoul ‘ebpisan upyy esiom Ajupoiyiubis
$81025 ADGQIO| ‘SUOISSILPD [0YOD|O

10} $8INSDBW [DPUOHDU UQ) “S[PNPIAIPUI

UO pUD 'S3I|IWD} UIYHM 'SSIIUNWWOD SSOIOD
jopdwil UD SDY 8oUS[OlA PUD WD Ul

851l PaJDID0SSD 8y} pUD BujuLP SAISSE0X]

oslasn
80IAI8S YIm paalIfio eq of :Ag 8dIAIes
ay) Buisn sjdoad jo sousiedxe eroidw) e
109A D
%0 | Aq seouppusip wioyjes eonpay e

*SIdX

"seidpiay} [o2160j0y2Asd 0} $5900D Jejeq
yim sayeboy ‘peqoy e ejdoed BunoA 1oy
Buiuuojd @100 pup uoluBAlBjUl PejiwIl-eWl
"loddns 1eed eoo(d ul Buyind puo ‘sisyoos)
SD 2NS JJ0Js 8UIjIUOY 18YjO 10} S|epow
uoloj|nsuocd Buidojersp aib A “8|gD|IDAD
jloddns sy} Jo sseusiomD |puOIssejoId puo
ol|gnd Buiroidwy si esuodsal yypay o1jgnd
paioiBajul inQ “uoupjndod |pisusb ayj ul
uoys 18yBly %0G-0E SPIPINS JO YsH 8yl puo
%G | Jo eip1 uoledal [PNUUD UD YiIM — 8100
|o120s pup Yipay puo ‘juswAoiduwe ‘seijiwoy
's|doad BunoA oj 4502 Juooiiubis o 1o saWOd
SIyl IRy o ob jou Op oYM ||lis &low &g

ol >_®v___ pUD — PEHIWPD JOU 810 NG PPV

puSHiD OYM B10UW 81D 818y} Ing 'WIDY[as 10
csuoissiwpo AousBiswse 10} 8jo1 PasIpIDPUDIS

yb1y Ajuooiyiubis o ess em Apbgiol uj
"weqoid uspply o Aj@bio| |jis s winy[es

‘poddns Buojeyi| yim Apgiop
ur 8d1A18s Ayljiqosip Buluios| abo-|o up
upjd os|D SAA “SpsaU xe|dwod slow Yiim
s1eyjo pup Ajlioyino 00| 8y} Jo 8102 sy
ul ualp|iyd 1o} poddns jusjjeaxe Buipiroid

‘seidpiay} [oo160joyAsd of Buipnjoul
'ss9000 Bujrcidwi uo pjing of ‘uoas Yinog

ul uoisinoid SHWYD JSPISUOD [|IM SAA

"WO0JSSDP 8yl Ul
palenljep aq upd sewwniboid eAyuersid
ajpudoiddy “uolusAleiul pajiwiewWl O
Jeyo 210> Aipwind o} uinjel D YMm ‘pepasu
alaym ed1AIes Is1p1oads 8y O} 3ODIHSD)
D pup ‘sedinles Jjnpp of sjdoad BunoA
10§ uoisuolj ssejwess o ‘Buiusaids pajebiol
Yiim JayeBol 1exiom yipsy [ojusw s
Atowid pajooipsp D SADY ||IM S|OOYDS _om.u
seolo0Id Jo) Jo Jeisnjo yoo3 “diysiep
|ouoissejoid pup Buiuipy ‘JyBisie
1s1jo1oads aApy ||im yoiym ‘ediooid )
118y} 1o jioddns eyl jeb of sjdoad BunoA
JuDM BAA “sedlAles eyl Buisn ejdoad yim
858U 08D MOU ||IM SAA “S8I[IWD) 118y} puD
e|doad BunoA ‘uaipjiyo Jo speau sy} jeaw
Ialjeq O} pepssU 81D 9ASI[8q SM $BUWODIN0
a8y} peaibo eaoy puo Aogio] ul (SHWYD)
S9DIAISG Ui|OSH [D4USVY USDSS|OPY PUD P|IYD
INO PAMBIAS] BADY &M 'S8DIAISS §USIP|IYD
1o Ul jJuswaoidwl [|0ISAC SALIP 0|_|

Jjnpo BunoA sy} puo pooyp)iyo :|jem Buidojeas

SDIAJSS |OYOD|0 jusliDy

“wey 6@@ JoA® JlensU ||oys | Tsiennsay| Aul useq @ADY W @c_Q_mi m_Qoma ay|



"5|poB umo

118y} 8A8IyoD

o} e|doad spioddns
10y} 82IAI8S BI85
paspg-eouspliAe Up
Bunnooid aio em “yiom
yijoeH Bulpein-0D
Ino uo pjing of

“UD[4 papibai] ©HD
8y} ul Ajpoud o s1 8IDD|eg “$edIAIeS

Ajjjenb Buipiroid so uoyiubooel jpuoypu
UOM SDY PUD SI810D Yjim paubissp som
'@o1Ales Joddns sie100 pauoissiwwod-Ajulol
"papuniAjuiol eyt ‘sisip7) uoAeq

10}08S

Aiojunjoa sy} ui esn 1o} pajdopo useq soy
498U SIy JO WO payipoul \/ “aIpd Alpw
-ud o} [1ounod sy Aq pajpbejep Ajjpwioy
'JUsWSSessD JeIod 8y} Bulpiodiooul puo
spaau jjoddns pup ainsig| ‘UoIOONPS JIOM
'aWOY D YiWIDM PUD Ajgjos S yans SpaIn
swoojno juppodui|o BulieAcd ‘UolD)NSUCD
PSJ-aIDD D §1 3403YD 8| “J0joss AIDjun|oA
8y} puo 2102 [D120s ‘8102 Aipwid yim
yoooiddo pejpiBajul sii yiim 82uls 1eAe |01}
o Buizo|q Ussq SDY PUD 'SIBIDD I0) $328YD
Buleq|lem pup yjjpay 1o} aiis Jojpisuowsp
D swpdaq |1PuNoD) AunoD) uoasq 00T Yl

SERIETETEN
walsAs syl Buyosiosy
||em BulAp puo |jlem Buieby
oM Bunjiom pup BuiAl] ¢
|em Buidojersq

|em Buioig

uolPNPoIU|

Abglo] pup uoAeq Yinog
snyoys Jesuold Joj piq B

:poddns pup s100 pajoibsju)

‘paID >OQ_OH 1no o} @c_Eom_
8yl &y} — |12unoD) AlunoD) ay) yim Buppiom
— pUD 'DBID UOAS( YINOS INO Ul [8POW Iy}

U0 sedIAles pedubyus dojeAsp |[IM SAA

|oAS| SDIAISS PIDPUDIS Sy} PUOAS] swoy
10 2100 |puosied Buiobuo Buipseu %4 @

|oA8| 821A18S pIDPUD)S
8yl Wolj [aA8| peonpal D |D swoy
10 2100 |puosied Buiobuo Buinoy %z | ®

Jejp| syjuow g | pepioun
Buiuioweal ||is 858y} JO % | £ Yim
‘uoisinold 810D JO SWiS) Ul [12UN0D 8y)
Wol} 8dupjsisso Jeyyny ou Buipesu %4/ ®

:MOYS SUOHUSAIS|UI

yeemxis syl wol synsal ‘¢ | Oz [Hdy 1D sy
"awoy | 210D [puosied wis}leBuo| pspssu
eADY esimiayio Apbw oym ejdoed 1oy
eouspuadepul Buliowoid uy |njssedons AyBiy
Usaq SDY UOAS(] Ul JUSWS|CDaI 910D [DID0G

saINsSPaW
$8210)\ [PUOHDN] suIDBD edusliedxy e

%0 1< AQ SNV Yim 8100 Aopuodes o
siepueyio Juenball JO siequinu 8y} 8oNpay @

“S|dM

‘lJjoddns
pup suoluaAiejul |p216ojoydAsd sjpndoiddo

usAIB puo paijiiuspl 8q of AjsYyl| 810w 81D
Alipigiowod dpypiy2Asd Jupoiyiubis puo g
yim ejdoad joyj os ‘shkomyipd 102 8jAles
Adpiay} joo1B0joyoAsd pup ABojoyoAsd
yipey ‘oppiyoAsd ‘Aippuooes ‘Aowind
pajoiBajul elow Buidojerep a0 spp

,usss 8q
Aow (gnW) swojdwAs pauipjdxaun
AJ|p2a1paw ‘uoissaidap so |[em sy
"P3YSI[DISS [|8M SI Yi[D8Y [DUOLOWS pUD
|oo1sAyd usemiaq yul| esop ay| “Buleqgjem
[olusw uo aApy Apw Aeyl 1oeye ayi si
suoljpuod wiel-Buo| ul Jojooj Juppodw uy

‘ajpudoiddp so paip uolipuocd wisrbuo)
yooae o usy} puo ‘espesip Aouow|nd
SAIPNIISGO DIUCIYD Of XU PapUsIXe 8] ||IM
|epow uonuaaiaul Ajioe /eniueraid siy|

"suolssiwpo [ojidsoy

s|dujnw @Ay oym sjeas| 1oBns-poolq
yo1y yum sjusyod ul Aijjopow 10sA-euo
D palybiyBiy spy }iom siyj so ‘e10d )|
JO pue yim ejpiBajur Jeyliny |[IM AN

*eBp1sAD [pUOIOU

8yl MOJaq MOU S8WOIPUAS AIDUOIOD

8|N2D JOJ SUOISSIWPD JO 8jD0J D PUD ¥ODHD
1ID8Y 10J SUOISSIWPD Ul UOHINPal %0G O
‘Ayiodouyial dlleqoIp Jo sejor mo| ‘Aousbiewe
o1wedA|BodAy 1oy suoissiwpp Ul uoynpel

‘€% 01000'01/2 01 woy suoyoindwo

Jolow uy uoyoNpPal D BPN|RUI SBWOINC)

“Buiquoseid ujnsul uo eauopinb
anloa)je4s00 |nq edwis pup ‘Aiojnuioy juiol
Buous o s1 @18y] “YypIs @102 Aownd Jof pup

Aq ueum aip seuljepinb aAisusyeidwor)
"pepeau sp 9|qisse20D epow Buleq sediAles
jsijooeds yim ‘sjusiiod |0 Jof 8soq ey

SO uess s| 8100 Aowid ‘[epow YopasNo INO
u| "e102 AIppuodss o} sjoueel Bulsoaioul
o} Buipps| s19Mm oy $10o0) — suoyo2}dwod
a10w yim 1ebuo| Buial| eio sjusiod esey|

4 "uoAe( uBYINog Ul IneA uo JoeA Buisbeioul
s1 sejeqip yim sdoed Jo sequinu ey|

"UOIIDONPS UO PBPUNOJ [8POW Pasoq
-Aunwwiod o ul 8102 Aipwind pup sesinu
1s1|o1oads ‘sjupjjnsuod Jeyieboy sbuliq § 1oop
|ondsoy ayi io dn pue Asyi eiofeq ‘|jom
s|doed Buidesy Jo edupyd s|qissod jseq eyl
5,218y} Uaym sausAlsjul puo 2100 Aiowid ul
Apa sweqoid sayiusp joyi yopoiddo up
{UOISIA INO 10} [9POU 8y} S 9D1AISS mmzmo_n_%
INQ "suolipuod wiel-buo| Buibouoy
AjeAloD Ul oA &g |jim co:o_@w@J

@©
“sineh _m,_O_ UCO @:UTU_E @w@

Ul |pyussse jioddns SAIIOD seyPW YoIym
"Buteqlem pup yjoay uo jooduwi up sADy
sdiyspipy ojwouods oy ‘'yBnoy ‘esiubodal
ap\ Buiuipl pup sousisdxe yiom
‘sdiyseolueiddo Jejjo o} siehojdwe Jolow
SO SalINP 1NO JO $NOJOSUOD 'suolpsIuPBIO

SO '||D 1D @M puD ‘|DoNND AjIDS|D 81D

}iom 1oy seljiunpoddo pup Awouode ey

AjJop|e @AIOD 8y} pub sjNpp — |[@M Bujiom pup BulAl]

| LOZ '[PidsoH Abgio| ‘snjijjew sejeqoip Ul jupjnsuod 1eAQ Heqoy IJ

‘Bulyioxe Ajjoey "sI0oA U8} 10§ INOGD PEY|O} 8A M DY ADM D Ul $818gPIP INO J10S O}
|one| Jusweboupw Joluss o jo poddns aBny Aoy em eyi| s[ee) Ajjpal || {SaleqoIp 10 YoM D 8N



"8DIAISS JSIOM
jioddns /10SIAPD DljuSUWSP PAUOISSILWOD
-Ameu o yBnolyr poddns Ajunwwod

SAIOD |8 ||IMm 110D By} pUD DLUSWSP
yim ejdoed puo 'sBnip pyuswep-Hup

0} $5900D Buljo}i|19D) MOU 81D $4O)
‘suolpINp ADJs pegq 8dnpel puD UOISSIWPD
ejpudoiddpur eonpar of |epow vy
SPURIPI 1S8AA @yl uo pedojersp Buleq eio
$80JAI8S UOSIDI| dUPIYASd |pjidsoy sjndy
"PapeaU yonul uslo s joyi 821App [oBs| ey
puo Adoieyt dnoib so yons ‘suolueaisul
sisoubpipsod puo sisouBoip yioq 1o} doys
dojs euo, o sp eAlss o} |plidsoH Aogio of
pajooojel Usaq Sy OluljR Alowaw |020| 8y
"Abquo| u| -ubisepai oipwoip BuioBispun
0S| 21D $8DIAISS PAUOISSIWWOY) “SIsouBoIp
Jaljo PaUOPUDQD |88 ||IM 81NN U} SUO-ON]|
"8l| Jo pue o} sisoubpip-eid WOl e|gp|ILAD
spoddns ayj seujep yoiym Aomyod @100
pljuswap o padojeAsp eApY |1DUNOD)
AlUNoD) uoAs( pUD $5HDHD) UOAS( OM| 8yl
'saoinles asn oym sjdoad yiim Buppopp

‘suoidwpyo pluswep

193jun|oA Ino Jo djay 8y} Yiim siayjo pup
sessaulsng |o20] dn Bujubys ‘esuodsal ino
JO BUOJSIBUIOD 8INOSGD 8y} SO SOLIUNWWOD
Ajpuaiy-plyuswap Jo poaids sy Buyioddns
's10je18y} ‘810 BAN  AjRI20S puD Ajlunwwod
‘Alwoy ey uiyum Apuspusdspu; uoyouny
o} Alljigo s,uosied o uo |ng ‘|ooIpaw jou

s1 pluswep Jo podwi Bulwjpymisno ay|

SERIETETEN
walsAs syl Buyosiosy

oM Buldp pup [jem Buieby ¢
|em Buiyjiom puo Buian

|em Buidojersq

|em Buioig

uolPNPoIU|

Abglo] pup uoAeq Yinog
snyoys Jesuold Joj piq B

:poddns pup s100 pajoibsju)

‘oljuswap yim ejdoed io}

awayds sy} swodjem Ajpjnoind seijiwpy
pup siopoq "poob Ajjpuoydedxe s
eousliedxe jusiind pup pasijouosied S| 8100
'peonpal usaq aAoy Apis jo syibus) |olidsop
"ajpudoiddp a1eym Jupjnsuod Apepje ayi

jo @100 8y} woyy Jybisierc Buinuluod yim
"|oiidsoy ainop eyl Jo sjppdsoy Ajunwwod
WOIJ WOy UMO Jlay} o} pabipyasip 1o

10 ‘4o Iy Aq Ajjoaiip paiwpp g upd
2102 [poipsw dn paddals Buipeau sjusiiog
"UOAS(] YINOS O} SIY} PUSIXS O} JUOM SM

puD ‘awayos awoy o |ojidsoy jsseons D
Inogo JyBnoig eApy |12UNo0D) AlUNoD) UoAs(]
Aq pasn seluow QG 7 UOID8S ‘UoAs(] 107 Uj|

"SOIUI |PNHIA Jo 8sn ay) yBnoiy) sjdwpxe
104 "indu Jsioroeds pejpiBajul Buionpolul
%S0 3y} woy Sl o Jsow %G i)
suayod JO 110Yyod 1eppoIq D O} papuaixe 8q
[|!M yoooiddo sy “juswiseAul S| paspaIoul

S04 ODD BY 771 /€ 10T 104 8|05

"8In|IDj D SO USSS I
UOHIPUOD wieHbuo| umouy D yim uosied
D 10} uoissiupo AdueBiswe up :ainjnd
8y} pebupyd soy piom [onuIA 8Y| “spasu
xa|dwod yum sdoed Jo uoypulpIcod 8102
eyl Jayuny Apnis of alis IojplisUOWSP O SO

pung s Bury ay| Ag ussoyo ussq eADY BAA

%57 Aq umop

— sjualed Jo 1IOYOD JDy} IO} SUOISSIWPD Ul

"0} UIN} O} 858 SUO-OU BADY P|NOM |
"ojebuy 8ADY | UpIp | J| "sule@duod Aup
IN0go I8y O} §|O} Of B|gL WD | pup
e|qpebpemouy si ayg “|njdjey pup pupy

"Buppd ‘snojjealpw si Jeboubw espd IO

S

uolonpal 8|qoazIs b Pamoys Z | /| 10Z

ul sjusliod pIoM [DNIA 1O} DIPP |IN4 *WaISAS
SINOY4O-N0 8y} UO B[qISIA 81D 8sayj o
s|iojep puo upjd 810D 8AlRD U JeBounw
8500 pajoIpep o soy juslipd yooj “no
Puly @M ‘Mo | uop am J| “poddns

[oniuids 1o snoiBijer ‘sinoqybieu ‘Ajiwoy

1Dy} 8q — PaISPISUOD OS[D S| 8|qO|IAD

soy uosied yoos pioddns Jepim ayj ysii oyl
eonpal o} pebpubw 8spd AjgAloD aIb Asyl
Sy "uolssiwpD Jo ysu o sjuelnd Ajyuepl

o} Bujjjepow saloipeid sesn pup ‘swoe)
2102 puo yjpey Aipuldiosip-lejul 8yl yiim
dn suiol uore yinog ui eopooid (o) Aleag
"yoooiddp dysioy o yBnoiyl sewoy umo
ey ui eidoad desy sdjey piom oA ey

"paddojun Ajgbio| suipwal os|o suoypsiupbio
[ouoissejoid pup sssulsng [020] INO Jo
eoinosal Ajljigisuodsal [0120s ajpiodiod ay|

's1s0q Ajljooo| o uo Bupyiom sispircid GHN|
Aq "Ajjouoyipiedo pup ‘sisuolssiuwod Aq
"A|jo21Bapuis yioq ‘ainonys syt of poddns
puo diysiepoa| [polul> ppo of Ajlunpoddo
up mou st a1y Ajuspl senj@sway)
SSIUNWWOD [DO0| 1Dy} SaNSS| JSpIMm sy

JO 8Wos 84D} Of suolpsiupBIo Alojun|oA
puo diysiepos| Allunwwiod ssyjeboy Buibulig
Jsni] jJuswdojers AllunwwoD) D JO UolDaID
eyl papoddns pup pasiopue Ajjusdal soy
lounoD) Aogio] “paiinbal seiles Jeyjo

Aup o} 86pliq D SO oD ||IM SI0JPBUUOD

ey] “selAIRD Jo ebupi epim o ul ebpbus
o} (salljigpiaujnA 1ojnotod yiim seijiuoy
pup) sjdoad Jep|o s|gous pup — 8bp pjo

Jo 1yBig 8yt — uoyo|os! [o120s jpquiod djay
M Asy] pooyinoqyBiau Aieas uj yiom o}
'slojoeuuod pooyinoqybieu jo |deouod ayj
Buidojerep a10 em Apgio) uj puo ‘Buippaids

81D $aWaYds YDIOAA YijDoH woo;Sanm_mm
puo sjuebp ebp||iA, ‘uors ;_:omm__-r

"awoy jo Bual| sjdoed 10y mucm_ocmo_m_o@.v
pup djeyjes slowoid o} puo sedlAles JOIRS
21|gnd Jo oy} Juswe|dwod o} Aippdod Jeyung

dojersp of seAsWaYl SaIIUNWWOD [0O0)

YlIM puD 10j08s AIDJUN|OA 8y} Yim Ajesopd

8I0W YIOMm O} psau SpA 10joss Alpjun|oa
ay} Jo poddns ay; esijigow puo [pysIow of

'sBuiys Jeylo Buown ‘pesu em usyj — aIp

Asyj uun e|gissod sp oy sp pup s|qissod

so Buoj so 1oj ‘s|qissod Jersiaym — sawioy
umo Jtayi ul Aojs eidoed djay o} a1o em |

swoy jo ajdoad Ajep|e ‘|iny Buidesy — ||am BuiAp pup |jom Buieby

dnoigy Buuoissiwwo?) [p21ulD) ADQIO] pUD UCAS( YINOS 'IOPBIIP SAINDSXE-UOU '||og YOIN|

"8pDW 8ID SUOISIDaP BUIUOISSILIWOD Usym 8|qp} 8y} 10 sdo) Joluss Buiaoy Jjo ppdul
By} sposjfel SIY UYL | "D eyl Jo Apog Buiuieros) sy o yipey [ojusw o} usAlb Buleq st joyi Ainond
18yB1y Ajqoiepisuod ayj Ag ¥onuis Ajjoal usaq eADY | DBID jUBIBYIP D Ul Jequiaw pInog | Dd Jewio) D sy



9Ji| O S3EEM OM| ISD| 8yl
ut sjueynd oy [pydsoy ur Aojs Jo yibusy
eBolenn sy} ul uoldNpal %Gy o ioddng e
ioeA sed %0 | Aq
syiosp |ojidsoy ul uoyonpel ayj poddng @
Ysim J18ys S1 1oyl Ji ewoy |o alp o}
pajioddns ejdoed jo Jequinu sy} sspeiou| @
“S|d

‘Aunwwon

o} [oydsoy o} edidsoy wol — dn uiol jm
wajsAs sy} $30100 swps) 8102 sAlol|jod pUD
"papoddns ejdoad jo siequinu ayj Buipusixe
Jo sAom yoiomoy yiim Buliojdxe mou aio
M “YHomjes pup AjuBip ‘el jo Ayjpnb
percidwi pajiodel eapy sjusiod [Bulipd

Jo Alaixup pup UspINg 8y} Ul UolINPaI D
paiiodal eApy sie10D) “[ojidsoy o} uoissiwpo
pajueraid poy [plisfel |oy} PasIAPD sialisjel
10 %69 "elp o} 810D Jo sop|d pausjeid Jisyl
O} palllwpp aq P|Nod Asy; |un swoy jo Aojs
o} payioddns %/ Yiim ‘swioy o paip Woym
10 %78 'siusliod OOt 19AO I0J PaInd 8DIAISS
SUIOH |0 JJoI1omoy 8y} 10aA Isii 8yl uj

"sJeALp JyBiu psjpoipsp puo SdIAISS
asuodsal pidol D YiIM SJUDISISSD 8100y)|08y
Jojues pup sasinu jsijpioads Jo wosj o
yBnouy siys sieAljep 'e21dsop Jolomoy
lapiroid pan|oA INQ) "8dIAISS SWOY |
eoidsoy / /7 © panoddns sy 9D syl

', IMBIABY BUDIYD0D) € |07 Yt YiIM aul| u|

SERIETETEN
walsAs syl Buyosiosy

oM Buldp pup [jem Buieby ¢
|em Buiyjiom puo Buian

|em Buidojersq

|em Buioig

uolPNPoIU|

Abglo] pup uoAeq Yinog
snyoys Jesuold Joj piq B

:poddns pup s100 pajoibsju)

||"8UOP 8q Of }IOM ||is SI 818y} 1eASMOH
"%, 81 seboieAp ainby ipyy Aoqiol puo
UoAS( YINOg Ul — 8500yd Aey} aleym aip
jou op ejdoed jo 90/ ‘Ajjoucup)| “sewoy
8102 1IN0 Ul 850y} 10} Isn! jou ‘||o 1o} [oob
D s 2102 8§1| Jo pue pejpibsjul Buiroidu

R A AN I

SADS ||IM 88DISAD By} Yiim Ul Ul sewoy
0¢ doi syt wouy ejp1 uoissiwpo ay; Buibulq
Aq suo 108A Ul suoissiwpo {717 Buluenalyg
IDeA D UO|||iW {3 PUNOID D)D) 8Yl 10D
SSWOY 8102 WOl SUOIsSIWPD Adusblew

"solom BuipionBajos esiwiuiw puo Ajgjos
SSIWIXOW O} paMaIAa] 8] ||IM SaUIDIPaIN
"SIy} Juom Asyi Ji ‘@102 Jo Alinuijuod s ejdoed
puo Buiuuoid e102 eroidwi o} ‘edyonid

d pawpu D yiim payul| &g ||IM swoy

oo "s||ys [P21Ul2 pup uopoNpe paroidul
yim sewoy ayj poddns pup ‘@102 ay| jo pue
anroiduwl 'UoHDOIPSUW (18pUN 10 JSAO PIOAD
‘suoissiwpo pauupjdun PIOAD Of yijpey
|ojuew puo Acouoyd yim suojd pejoiBayul
peaibo sdnoif Bujuoissiwwod Ajljpooj

8Al} INO 'JuBAS 18P|OYSDIS|0 UD Jally

"SUOISNYSUD POO|Q PUD SjuSWO8
SNOUSADIUI SO YINS sjuswlpall Buisinu 8jnoo
awos puo ‘poddns Buisinu pup eouopinb
"ODIAPD YHM "ODIAISS Buisinu ajnoo UL 18fjo
Asy] "ewoy a10o pup |piidsoy usamieq
yopoiddp pejpibejul uo spiroid woe)

SUOISSIWPY |02IP8 [PHdSoy sy} wol sesINN|
"Z10Z Jequisos( ul jojid yooauno aipd
Alopuooss papuniAjuiol o peyouno| epp

Jopdsoy o} diy peuunidun
up Jo uoydnisip sWOd[EMUN By} INOYIM
'awoy llay} ul poaisul pejoall 8q pjnod
sjuspisel Auoul Joy} $ejo2Ipul SIYL 1O ||/

"ADjs Jo yiBus| Aop-auo D spy 8Alf Ul BUO
puo App ewDs ey} PeBIPYDSIP SI XIS Ul BUO
‘858l JO "YIUOW D S||0D b4 82UDNGUID
OOV punoID yim 108A Alers sewoy

210D WOy suoIssiWpPD [ojdsoy peuupidun
00G'| Inogo 88s spA "0 Ajuliojiun jou st
Ing ‘jus|jeoxe eq uod @107 “s|doad Jepjo
768'€ ol swoy aio Asyj puo Abgio| pup
UOAS( YINOSG Ul SSWOY 10D 777 8ADY SAA

"$yul| podsupiy 1e100d YiiM SUMO} J8ylo Of
|opow siyi Buipusixe poddns spp o0[0 By
punol ‘poddns puo 81D Jo paInsso 8q pup
A||p120s jopIsjul ‘l@eul UDD AjIUNWWOD 8y}

JO SlequaW 8|gpIBUINA 810W PUD I8p(o 8y
a1eym sispo up epiroid |Im Asyl ‘gny, o so
pasn pup pajpo| Ajjoyus)) ijing Buleq eio
SO} 09-0G 10qqy UOMEN 1y "8[os puo
JUS1 JOJ UODPOWWOIDD pup ‘poddns puo
2102 paljued-uosied sjowold o Buisnoy
2.p0-DIjxa dojeAsp O} BAlDIIUI [12UNOD)
Auno?) uoas o jioddns o} ussy 810 BAA

Alunwwon
8y} Ul s8dlAIes pupdxe O} pesu em pup

Aunod ayj 10§ yBiy AAipindwod |jus s!
uoAs( Yinog ul sjuspisal papuniAjgnd
jo Jequinu 8y] “Alunod ayj Ul %40 | 1589
8yl ulyiim o} ‘pasipiopupis 8B ‘sswoy
8100 Jo 8sn a1pd-|o1oos Bulig padjey soy

Aoquo| ul eiod ejpipaweiy| “e|doed Apepje
|10} 104 Appjnoyind ‘sewoy umo s gjdoed
ulyiim @102 pup joddns os[o Ing ‘sjupib
sa141|100) pa|qosIp ‘sjuswaroiduwl swoy
"Juswdinbe jo asn Iseq Buipnpour ‘ABsjpuis
Buisnoy pajoiBajul uo Buidojersp s!
Aogio] ‘Ailunwiwiod eyl pup siepircid YHIAA

s2INsDaW $82J0A [PUOHDN| ISUIDBD $18IDD
puD sal|iwD] ‘[oNpIAIPUL JO 8ousliedx] e
JuswabpBue o paulwiaiep eq
o} sainspauw :Aq sel|lwoj /DlUsWSpP
yim uosiad jo eousiiedxe eroidw| e
109A D %0 |
Aq suoissiwpp |ppdsoy eonpey @

nm_ﬁ

o /AluNoD 8y} Ul IsemO|

Buowo mou a1 Buigioseld dloyoAsdy
Jo pup 2102 oHIPIY2Asd o) UoIsSILPP
Jo ssjoi Ino Inq pup|Bu3 Ul DlUSWSP
yim ejdoed Jo ebpjusdied jseybly puodes
ay) soy Aoquol e}y Jo Aijonb ercidw o)
s1joob ay] Jeylebo) Buryiom sedinles
|oo1peW puD 81D [D120S ‘Bulsinu PLISIP
pup oupoIYRAsd AjlUNWWOD Yiim ‘pupwisp
yoad yopow of poddns sinoy4o4no puap@
puo ajoibejui o} Jo|id o si dejs pxeu ay|

“*panuyuod swoy jo sjdoad Apepe ‘|ioyy Buidesy — |jem Bulkp pup |jem Buieby

18107

'$IS9) |DOIPBW |DIUSSSS SADY Of

peaIbD Ajjoulj 8ys pup @duspyuod sJeylow Aw paspaidul uosiad suo yim Buijpeq “eoo(d ul eboxyond
810D D PUD PBAJOAUL S8DIAISS 10J08s AIDjun|oA 18 yoeyd sjijsueq o 18 o) 8|gp siem am 1sbounwu
9500 8y} yBnoly| "sedlAIes $$8000 Of 98160 Of Jeyjow Aw 86 | up|nod 8m INg o) 8yl Yiim Buiiom som |



"wejsAs 1no sso1oo sutowal sjdidund joy|
'$S8| 10} 2I0W IBAI|@P P|NOYS I DY} SOM
ssed0id sIyl Jo juswalinbel JsuolssILIWOD
Aey y "sBuinps Adusioljje pup ediopiom
Jo uoipnpal o Buljiplep upjd sseulsng
peipiBaju| ps|iolep-AyBiy b Aq pauuidispun
"uolpsiupBIC) e1o?) peipibeyu| e|buls o
Buyoaio 10 8502 sy} ‘pIq UOHISINDID S)i Ul
"piomuoy ind spy I 1S GHN @IPD) pup
Yi|peH uoasQ uieyinog pup Aoqio] Ag uni
$8DIAI8S AJIUNWWOD 8y} 10} J8ppIq 8|0s 8y}
S JSNI| UOLDPUNOS GHN| @J0YI[D8H uoAs(]
Yinog Ajusin) s|qous up &g upd jng —
[oob ey Jou si suonpsiupBio jo uoypiBayu

'sjualpd 0} B(qISIA 8] ||IM ||y “SeWoy

8102 WOl SUOISSIWPD jnogo Bulpnjoul
"‘Bupjow uoisioep pejposiydos Ajbuispeioul
oddns |jIm jyBisieno isipioadg  psIeA-80IA
pup ‘Ajsjowsl sjualnd syl Jojuow

UDD SUDIDIUID JOY} OS ‘SeWOoY 8Ind Ojul

pUD 81D |DI20S pPUD Yoy ‘eind Aowiid
$SOIDD SIY} PUSIXS ||IM SAA “SHS|D puD
slepulwal Ul {|ing yim ‘spispaq eyl |o adinep
P[2YpUDY D UO SUOHDAISSGO PIOdal O
SUDIDIUID SMOJ|D Appal|D WalsAs Buliojiuoul
pup Buipiodal suBis [PIA 8Yl DVd[PHA

‘Aomyiod syt yBnoiy sseiboid umo ey
¥Ry 0} B[P &q ||Im Asyt pup ‘Aiebins 1oy
3|npayds 8y} Ino @c_>>o_£ ‘MOU SD \50;.__>>
juswyuioddo jusypdino uoissiwpo-eid

D Ja}jp uDd Ay} ‘ewoy woy sebuoyd

SERIETETEN
waysAs ay} Buypaiosy ¢
|em BulAp puo |jem Buieby
|em Buiyjiom puo Buian
|em Buidojersq

|em Buioig

uolPNPoIU|

Abglo] pup uoAeq Yinog
snyoys Jesuold Joj piq B

:poddns pup s100 pajoibsju)

eyoul O} 8|gP 84 ||IM SaAjEsWaY) sjusiod
8y} ISA0SIO\\ "82D}IS|Ul SAIDIISIUILPD OU
yim ‘pajnpayosal aq ||m | ‘spolidoiddoul
AieBins pajnpayos expw sjnsal 1sa} pooq
"@oupjsul 1oy ‘J| “Alebins pup uojssiwpp-eid
'solsouBolp Joj Be 'sBupjoog pejpoosso
8yl ||o &P ||im puo sAomyiod syj sMmouy
10y} WajsAs ojuoldeje up ojul Ajdaiip indul
O} UDIDIUID 8y} MO||D ||IMm joyi :Buiyoog-3

‘Allunwwod a1poyl|pay

aljjue uo so Ajuiol piq o} peio Auo syl
's1y} 1o} jupIb JusWUIBAOS) UOI||IW £ §F D
uom aapy sp\ Alejos jualpd Buisosioul
— @2Iales @dupjnquio pup ‘Acpuioyd
'siepinoid @o1dsoy ‘yiosy |ojusw Buipnpoul
Alunwwod sjoym ayi ss0100 |nq |olidsoy
8yl Ul sl jou s|qisiA piodal UolDDIPSU
puo Buiquoseid sjusipd o :Buigliosaid-]

:spupljs @21y} 810 aley| “[ojidsoy

o} suoissiwpo Aiossedsuun ploap Buidjey
Ajaiowiin pup @102 jusipd Buiroidwl
"Ajgjos jusiiod jnogp edupinssop Buippo
'sasse001d Bululjwoals SO SIyl 995 SAN

$|USSUOD PUD @oUDUIBACE snojndljew

Ylm ‘8100 [Dljuspisel pup 8102 [ojidsoy
'8100 yj|oay |ojusw ‘eipd Asowid '8ipd [0100s
puD Y08y Bupul| ‘Ajlunwwod s1ooyjosy
ajoym sy} Bujuuods swejsAs eBpe-Buipos)
885 ||IM SIy} 'Iseg smouy| jusling Jo sejdiound
ey} Buyoiodioou| “Inoapepus dn paulof
soym sApgio| 1ero swwoiBoud || dn
paulol snoliqup uo yajels ||im Jeuigp?) dn
paulof 8yl ‘WalsAs mau 8yl 1o} ssaulppal U|

“ys0} xe|dwod siyj o} suoln(os

uo Jajexd Jo AlsieAlun eyl yum Buppiom
21D 8\N "BIPp BulpnjoAs pup Bulde||od Jo
sAom mau alinbal (jIm — Aiaoo Ag 1ebuo
ou — eoupwiopled Bunnspaw Jo sAom meN]|

"Jjois Ino Jo JusweBoBus puD jusWeA|oAUl
pajiojep a8yl yim |jo ‘Buiuupid onousds

PUD ($21NON1IS JUS1IND UO UOHDUIIOM
8|0IND0D YiiM) Bulj[epow 82I0}IoM ‘Mainel
Adijod ‘sisAjoup Buisn eq ||,8pN SEDIAISS
Buisn sjdoed Jo spesu sy} punoio soiopiom
aininy ey} seyeboy Buibunq 1o} ABojopoyiew
O yBnouy) yuiy; of sn ejgous |Im (¢ [ OZ)
1ednd edioppiom pejoiBejur eoushi|jeiu|
8DIOPIOAN 10} 8ljueD) 8y} JO JyoIp

11} @Y} O} UOUNQIUOD Juedel INQ) "SBAl|
118y} JnoyBnoly eipd pup yyjoay $s8000 Ay
s uospuniB Jey puo Jelybnop Jay ‘yiwg
SI\\ JO speeu sy} punolp sjpuoissajoid

‘ADM ealoAOuUl Ajeiljue uD Ul 8jD8I0-0D
PUD 3I0M O} paau ||Im JJols Pan|oA INQ

8100Y||D8Y Pal||o PUD $8SINU JO $8[0)
[ouolipol} ayj ubisepal pup pus|q ‘ebiew
'aBupyo o moy inogp Bupjulyl 810 SAA
‘ADM 8AlDAOUUL Aj@I1jUS UD Ul 8jD810-00 pup
}IOM O} paau M Jjois [puoissejoid IO
‘jioddns |oulejxe paeu ||Im em yoiym

yim pup ‘unBeq isnl eaoy em ysoj o s|

siyl Buubisepay “ediopjiom pan|pAAyBly
1n0 10} suoyooydwl §peIBb spy Syl |y

|01jUOD UDD SeARSWaY)
Asyj 1oy; Aom o Ul pup Ajsse|woas

Il yBnouy} erow upd Asyj 0s ‘sediAles
1no Buisn sjdoad ey} o} wejsAs sy} pjnow
O} peau em ‘swl swps 8yl 1y Ajpopdoo
puD 8dusl|isal Iy} P|INg O} SSHIUNWIWOD
1o Jo syibusls Bulisixe ayj uo Buimoip
"Yopoiddp paspasiesso UD 830} |[IM SAA

"Yi|oey Jo sjupuluLLISIN

I9pIM 8y} pup ssljijonbaul mc_wmm__o_qu

10} diysiepoa| spim-waisis spino@

puo ‘paopdn AjoinBer eq |jim m_o:mxm.v

Buleqjlepn pup yioeH 8yl "HDD UoARY

UISISSA\A PUD UISISDT ‘UISYHON] S8pn|oul

yoiym ‘dnoigy Bujuoissiwwo?) d16sjoig

juiof s,uoas YBnouyi puo ‘jeuigol) 810D

puo yjosp dn pauiof Abqio] pup uorsQ

yinog eyl yBnoiys q ||m supjd uoypibejul

1no 1oy diysiepos| oibejpig  ebupyd juebin

puo Buiyooal-ioj |iojue ||im uolp|ndod
ino Jo Buleg|jem pup seouoyd aji| 8y}
ul sjuswaroidwi Buyso| nogo BuiBup

wajsAs ayj Buyoaioay

@mO@w_U 2uoINau Jojow r_t>> U@wOC@O:@ \B>>®_m_ O_Om

jssejeolld "wopaal Jo edald Jso| Aw sw seAlb Ajlunwwod ayj ul 8102 pejpibeju) e} Aw Jo jsel sy
Buikolus jo uonusjul Alers eApy | pup eduspusdepul Aw UIDJUIDW O} PSJUDM | ISOWSIO} PUD sl “yoads
o} e|qoun Apoqg pesAjoiod o ul peddoly eq pjnom | joy; sulbowl | pip a1owjybiu jsep|im Aw Ul 1eAeN



IS
&

o

&

o
Y,
%
“

S
AR

i
ORISR
ol

|02 suoyd suo — 58020 Jo juiod g|buls D ¢

eApy sedlAles Buipesu s|dosy I0jpUIPIOOD

o

%
Q:

&

-~ Q L A
& & o o

&N S 3 L
& o ENRIC S\
S N

CHN
U W W
& @

)
)
OrA[

(2
[+

=

T—

= o
—

8102 |DI20S puUD Yijpay pajoiBbejul up _ —
pup (uolow Alunwiwod 10 10JOUIPIOOD 8SDD
SAIJOD |O21UIR B yim ‘AdpisyiolsAyd puo
Adpisyj jouolodnooo ‘Aopuwioyd Allunwwiod ! 1
Buipnjoul ‘a102 sjoipawieiul pup 8102
|o120s Jjnpo ‘Buisinu Ajunwiwod Jeyieol
BuiBuug seuoz, psjoubisep ul swos} sees
siyl Aoglo] u| “paysijqoise |jem si yoooiddo
Asouijdipsip-inw sy 'e100 pup yjosy U

‘woal —
SD SIOM [|D BAA 1BYIO Yo08 O} ¥|D} 210D
Aw yim panjoAul spouoissejoid ay|

pu3

“@em sjoym ayj 1ero eoupwioped walsAs
ul sjuswaroidwl @AlpjUONb pup AlDyPNb
jupoyubys arem aiay| “|ojdsoy ayj Ul wjod
Jo aisydsowyo up, som aiayl pup ‘Abpuoyy
8y} UC 8|qo|IDAD alem spaq Adusbiswe
'PuSyeEM oD I8l "SIOJDUIPIOOD
ebipydsip pup sedjales podsupyy jueynd
\wv__m_u ploM \ﬂm_ao_@é :&o_uov 29ulID1}
"ABojossjusolsob puo supipsw Alojoidsal
"Ajlepje ey} Jo 81D JO spjel |yi ul jseisjul
[oreds yim supioisAyd pisueb Jo Buppiom
8y pepuaix@ || "(edlAIeS pusyeem D UDY)
J8yipI PNSN SO ssauIsNg, Bullonpuod) spiom
Al UO SPUSY88M BAINDSSUOD 881y} IO Un
som Buppiom Aopung Jo jojid o Buds siy|

‘alnssald
oy} elidsep 9,64 < 10 BulApys ‘juswaiinbel
HOM INOY-7 SiI jo8W Of panuluod |o}jidsoH
Aogio| ‘seuljpoay [puolou epPW JPy UO

puowep Buppos usym poued o ul ‘AlgoioN|

SERIETETEN
waysAs ay} Buypaiosy ¢
|em BulAp puo |jem Buieby
|em Buiyjiom puo Buian
|em Buidojersq

|em Buioig

uolPNPoIU|

Abglo] pup uoAeq Yinog
snyoys Jesuold Joj piq B

:poddns pup s100 pajoibsju)

g
<

—

&
<
b —o
_ rs

or

—

< o« ]

& @&
<
,
!

— St

0%

of

+SPIEM |BL] a3 Wody sadieyasiq an

Bupjiom Aopung — sbupyp jo s3]

SIOD 885 O] P ¢, 'poled Aop uenss
eyl Jeno edupwiopied Ul uoHDLDA U HIUBIS
s98s ||Iis I Ing ‘AdoleyjoisAyd puo Aiebins
'sunioisAyd ‘ABojoipol epnjoul seoiales Aop
uenss sj| ‘Aunod ay; ul Iseq eyl Buown

81D ‘%G 4@ 10 'sapor Adundnooo sy Ajeyos
awoy 1o spiomuo ejdoad Bupiejsuoy puo
1yBu 100p juoy syi Buyeb — moy INENele
|us||eoxe sees Appai|o |piidsop Abgio|

"8WOoY %00q — 8q O} peau Asy} aleym
Buieb sjuenpd ui sAojep ‘Ajeiown ‘pun
AunWwwod sy} Ul 10j PaIDD Usaq BADY P|NOD
Asyj usym |ojidsoy ajnop ey} o} pajiupD

Buisq sjusijod ‘spiom uo sisijino Buionpoid

— wayshs sy} Jo spod Buoim eyj ur dn pue
susiod “Ji Jnoyim ng 'IsoA st eBus|jpyd sy |
‘Alunwwod ayj ul swoa} Asoudiosip-inuw eyl

Jo sjusuodwod JupAs|al 8y} [|O SSOIOD PUD
s|oidsoy Ajunwiwod ‘jojidsoy 8jndo ayj Ul —
}@am o sAbp uaAss eaisuodsal 8q of wajsAs
pajoiBajul 1no alinbal ||1m 2102 jo Ajjjonb |oay

"@ousliedxe Jjay)

pup sewoojno ss|doad o} payul| ARalp Ing
'2100 JUSIDIYS PUD SAIOSBYS ‘JoSs Of >_co
jou Aey 8yl — moyy yusyypd Buirocidwl 1oy
edoos JspA ay) sI wayl Buowy “paulplel q
1snw pauljino sieueq Asy eyl (Ajnf ewodino)
200|d sy} UOHISINDOD sy} jou Jo Jayleym
puy “paieyo poddns |puleixe eyl Jo jijeueq
8yl yim siyj ensind pjnom am ‘sjis Jesuold
D sy “uoypjndod ino 1o} sedinles Isaq Alea
8y} spiroid puD UOISSILWOD ‘ubissp upd
em 'wajsAs pejpibajul 8y} $5010D ‘oYl
1oy} os siebpnq jood of Ajjigixe)y o150

usAe pasu am ‘aininj uj 1eyeBo) Bunucld
N0 SALP O} BUOD YD} BUIMO||D oA
'A|QIXa|} WSyl Yiim payiom sy em ‘swalfls
JusWADd [DUOHDU YlIM 3IOM OP 8M S[IYAA
‘suoljpsiupBio ||o Jof Ajljiqols [prouDUY
Bujuiojuiow sjiym 102 eAloACUUL ‘Alljonb
ybiy ejowoid oy} sedinles 10} jJuswAod

o} seyopoiddo eeibo AjeAls||0d

am :8Bupyd 8IAISS 10 SDBPI JUS||80%S

Jo Apom sy u Buleb jou jo piodal poob

D 'Aj|o20] ‘erny Appaijp em ‘edubul UQ

ag

“*panuiuod weysAs ayy Buyosidosy

|oidsopy Aoguo] 1o 1o} paipd jusiod D JO puDgsnH

‘wpa) eyl Aq jnoybnoiyl pawioyul jdex som | pup Ajdwoid pup Ayioows psueddoy BuiyiAieny
Jay Jayo Bupjoo| qol oIspiuD) O PIP (|0 SOUSSWOP PUD S8SINU ‘SJUDISISSD 1DJYI08Y ‘SISO 8snoy Jolues
ay} os|y/ “Ajjny|ys pup Apjpinb uolpnyis ey Pe|PUBY OYM JUDJ|NSUOD PRV 8Yi Yupyl O} pajupMm | Jojnaiod U



"pawodjem AjipaIB i sn s|[a) yoogpes) Alioe
‘sjuslypd 10§ $59000 sr0Idw] pUD BulWDRYS
1oy} seWayds 8107 AIDWg SAINPOIY

10 18114 1Q 8yt [dopo o} 1o os sedyopId

/€ 1no Jo 7z pepoddns os|o eAby epp

"wos| paly
puo|Bu3 SHN eyt yim uonounluod
ul ABejous aipd> Aiowid o dojersp

O} sjjnsal 8y} asn ||im puo a100 Aipwid
ul puouep puo Ajopdod jepow of lejex3
JO AlISIBAIUN 8y} PBUOISSIWWOD 8ADY SAA

“Buidojersp e1p suolN|os eAlPAOUUL INO
puD ‘pepaau sI UoUDy “8dlopjiom Bulsixe
eyl Jo Juswaiyal sy} yim eood Buidesy jou

S| JuswiINIdal supeWw 4oy INo Jo gjyoid ebo

eyl ‘. Ajouolou puo , Ajjooo| peouspire
‘ed1o0ud |pIeusb ul puowep Buispeioul
ayl Joj Ajopdod Jo §oD| D §BIBYL MOUY SAA

"Yijoay uoyojndod sjoym

anoidwi o} AjeAiayje aiow Jeyieboy siom
uod — sedlonId pejpIeps) 10 — SYIoMju
asay ‘e|0ds Jajpalb YIAA "$82In0sal

puD s||1%s Isijoroeds slow aipys pup

2102 Jusliod JeAl|ep Of A[@AIDIOGRI[0D Yiom
uod Asyj Joyt 0s syiomyeu Jepiroid 4o
Buidojersp mou siojeisy aip seolo0Id
/€ @Y] "8|qo|IoAD sediales lepiroid Jo
Aijonb eyy o} pejpjel Aoailp si |em wiojied
o} Ailjigo  sednid eyy joy) sebpejmouson
auoAlens Inq (suoissiwpo jusbin

SERIETETEN
waysAs ay} Buypaiosy ¢
|em BulAp puo |jem Buieby
|em Buiyjiom puo Buian
|em Buidojersq

|em Buioig

uolPNPoIU|

Abglo] pup uoAeq Yinog
snyoys Jesuold Joj piq B

:poddns pup s100 pajoibsju)

'SeoUPpUBD Py ‘s|ousjel) soubwiopied
Buiuoissiwwoo sedyonid ebouow pup
Jojluow s] 8Yy| panles uoyojndod sy
JO $2lisHePPIDYD UoWWod ayj Buldsjjel
saLIDPUNOQ JUBIBY0D YiIM (s6)D)7) sdnoib
Bujuoissiwwod Ayjooo| el soy £ Aogio]
pUD UOAS( YINOS '|P20| BUIUOISSIWWOD
deey of “uoupibejul paiued uosied 'wajsAs
sjoym ur mosBil sy Jo pod [pyussse uo

s1 2102 Aiowd ‘sjdoad jsow 10} sedjAles
Yoey yim pojuod Jo juiod jpdiound ey) sy

‘Yyoay eroidwi of
AjeAioayje syiom upd Asyj 0s syiomisu
sepiroid Buidojenep eio seoiooid 4o

"soisoubolp

0} 549 10} 558000 jdwoid :jepow

siy} 1o} pebiswe os|p soy Js|qous Asy v/
"se1ousbiews Jo pupwep Yoy Jo seuwy
10 seppuUsbuluod Buiaby Jo eBpjubApD
ay} s asay} ‘@100 Aownd 104 “SUOHIPUOD
wierBbuo| BuiBoupw ul djigy pjnom

yooouddo siy| “ewlt iybu syi o — 4o

118y} Ajuossedeu jou — uosied sjoudoiddo
|sow ey Aq uses Buleq uosw pjnom syl
jusiod ay) 1oy ‘uoypiBajul [oo1ul> episBuojo
Buiuuni sedinosal jo esn e|qixel} pup pejood
epN[oul PINOD SIY|  'S8DIAISS AJIUNWIWOD

puo 2102 Aowid PO0| 8y} $S0IOD BINONLS
Juswebouow s|Buis o puo diysiepos)| [PoIUID
o|Buis 10§ pesu sy} Ioj Os ‘peeIBD BADY SAA

'$S900D O} ||NJIYJIp
8IOW 8ID SIOJISIA Yl[Dey puD 'sedlAIeg
W|PSH [BIUSYY JUSOSSI0PY PUb Py
"Buisinu jooyds — sdob aip siay) Joy} J08|0
SI}l Ing 'S8UOZ 8y} Ul UOIIDUIPIOOD 810D PUD
Yoy pup joojuod o juiod ajbuls ayy enjoA
Apoaib sy ~e1od Jo Ajjjonb pup Asuspiye
‘oWl} JO swis} Ul ‘paIbYs SID $S2IN0SSl

JI sijeueq sNoIAQo aIb alay]  “sjuelipd

10} @ousliedxe pup 8d1AIss 18100d SySN
2100 Aiowind uo puowep Buisty “sjusiod
awpos 8y} ‘s|doad swws ayj Buidjsy aio
woa} AIUNWWOD 8y} PUD $4o) “WDe| 810D
|o120s puo yjjoey Asouldiosip-yjnu ey puo
2102 Aiowiid usemieq Bunyiom BuyoiBajul
jo sAom Buliojdxe usaq ‘0o} ‘@Aby epA

‘pluswep yim sjdoad Jo s1eipd

104 poddns pup pluswep Jo sisoubolp
Ajipe pasoaioul ‘suoissiupD [ojidsoy 1ema)
:sswoojno peuunid Aey “peddinbe jseq puo
ISoMaU 5uoAS( — |PlIdsoy Ajjunwiwo joq
-qQy UomeN Joj paiepisuod Buleq os|p 1o
801AJ8S SIN0Y 4O JnO By} puo 8ipd Aowd
yim pejoibejul aijued 8102 jusbin uo puo
eoInes Aoy vy “seaioniul Ajpuely pluswep

uo snd0j Aey o pup jioddns @d1ales yijoay
[ojusW Joa1ip 8ADY ADGIO] Ul DY) Yiim
UOWIWOD Ul ‘pjNom [epow gny siy| "e1od
Aownd yim uoyoiBajul esoo Buiess pup
'sn|d 10811g 8107 DA $58220 o juiod e|buls
ey} Buisn ‘uore YINOG Ul jogqy UomeN|
Ul gny Ajlunwwiod mau o jo juswdojersp
Jaypny ayj |19unoD) AlunoD) uoAs(

UHM JSPISUOD ||Im 8AA Jejiom poddns
DlUsWep puD 8siNu dLiPIY2ASd Ajlunwwiod
D yim Buojp IoeA siyt ed1aies Ajljiqosip
Buiuios| eyy BuypiBeyu ‘edoos sy Buipusixe
MOU 81D SAA "gNY Ajunwwod ay s

2102 dn paulol Joj [ppow IO of [PyuS)

"padojensp

8q O ||lis 10 S|4 “suolosiuobio

O} Juawiyinidal pup !js0d Aomyied

‘Aenins Jjois ‘sAojs Aunwwiod pup ejndo
pauiquod Buipnpaul ‘Aojs jo yibus) mmoﬁ%

‘suoissiwpoal ‘1ojodipul Alljpliow \WHS 8y
‘Aoauns juslpd sainspsw seDI0A _or_o__q_um.v
1suloBo sp @ousedxe SO paljiuep! USYY
oADY Bupjiom App usAss 10} solijew me

‘Buipusixe spaau sIy|

‘Juswia|qoal 'UoAS( Yinog Ul ‘pup

'soInles poddns swoy sAisusiul ‘v Ul
slojpulplood eBipyosip ‘810D sjpipaulIs|ul
‘Abquo] ul ‘yim ‘eipd Aiojjipiwop esuodsal
pidoi /sisud ‘eoinles Ainp Aouebiswe
sinoy Jo jno ‘Buisinu puisip spnjaul
sedlAles ADp UsASG “papaau § iy ||D !

“*panuiuod weysAs ayy Buyosidosy

""SHN @yl ul paiolsal st yiiog Aw jyBiuo|  edusiapip
paAcidwl ID) D &)PW UDD ST 10Y} 8ABI[eq MOU A0 | g O Ul Payiom 8duo Buiaoy %}

~“Aousiodsuoly 9 Ajiaiisod syt woly

uips| pnod sieyi) “Jybiuo} Aonbio| ur Buyesw £ Jesw pup swod, Ag pasudins Ajupsoeid: - g



‘uoyp|ndod |020] 1No JO

poddns pup e10d sy} o} sousleyIp Bulysp| o Bupow o
paliwwod s ADguo] pub UoAeQ YNOG “}i 10j Appal aiD am
inq aBus|pyo sy} seypwysaispun sn jo suoN| sbupyd oy
SPaau 4|85}l WysAs Sy} — JBMSUD By} 8q UDD Jojaq, WajsAs
Buysixe 1no Bupjow joy4 8AsI[2q jou op AN “1of Buiwio

9I0 8M WBJSAS 810D PUD Y}|DBY INO JO UOHDWIOISUDY By}
SA3IYOD UDD OM JUSPHUOD 8D 3M ‘sIajo I esijiadxa |pulejxe
oy} pup swwniboid sesuold syj jo poddns ays YHAA

151 PRYIN
8| puo punj sBury 8y Yim ssif
panjorAyBIY pup e10D) pejoibeju) 1oj
UOLDPUNOJ [DUOLDUISIU| SYI YIM Syul| SADY
"HIOMIBN| 82U8I2G Yi|DSH DIWSPOOY INO
PUD $ISUOISSIWWOD) [D2IUID) SHN| Ul SAIOD
os|o 810 8AA “ewwpiBoid siyj 8sijowlio)
PINOM PUD ‘SSIIUNWWOD 810D JBYIO YIIM SiI
-sin @bupyoxe Bujuios| ebupup Appaijo spN
Jundjooy 12uUno) AUNOT) UOAS( 8y SSOIOD
Buppiom diysieupnd |eas| weisAs ess o
Jupm ylog em aieym pup Ajoud o Apoaijp
S| uolpiBajul aleym '©DHD) uoreg AMIN

jo uoypjndod pup AydpiBosb ebip| eyl eq
p|nom juiod Buipis [pInjpU INO SyIoMIBU
IO ||o &sn pjnom em ‘ajis Jesuold b sy
"00} 'BuluIng| pUD SOSPI UMO INO 8IDYS Of S|

SERIETETEN
waysAs sy} Buypaiosy ¢
|em BulAp puo |jem Buieby
|em Buiyjiom puo Buian
|em Buidojersq

|em Buioig

uolPNPoIU|

Abglo] pup uoAeq Yinog
snyoys Jesuold Joj piq B

:poddns pup s100 pajoibsju)

Buiyes j|nojep INQ  SIBYIO PUD UOHDIDOSSY
mu:wo:@o_o OHIA-U| ysiug d@Ew:bc_

8100YJ|03H Yslilg JO UOUDIDOSSY 8y Yiim
Ajesop Buppiom ‘plom ayj puo Ajunod
a8yl Jo sjiod ||o woly SDap! N0 Y2IDas SAA

"SUDIDIUID 10} uoHDWIOuUI dYdeds-Ajpioads
puo ‘Bujuiol Alojopupw 8|qoLBISUDI UM
|aUUDYD UOHPONPS [DDIPSW D S8PN|oUl OS|D ||
"s190)n ainssaid Buuaaid so yons so1do} uo
s1e102 10§ SGAQ Buluipy yim 41 Buipusixe
810 BAA "SI0 SupIDIUID pup lgnd

8y} O} UOHDINPS PUD UOHDULIOJUI Yijpay
8s10u0d Buyjowoid ‘e10oyjoay Iof 8dIAI8S A
|onBip Bulissuoid o si olqiy spidsoy sy |

"eBupypd ejpbisul djpy puo uoyoidsul

Hpis 1oyl y210]1 pup JSAIDIRY) SO YINS
sdnoiB uinQ “swiopoid eidyjnw pIA Ajjunwwod
8102 INO $50100 WO UojuIdo BuidINOS-pMOID
'8|q1$59200 pup uedo sessedoid uoypAouUl

1no Buppw 1o epp  “sApomyiod 8100
uBisepail o} s1810d pup sal|IWDj ‘sjusiod

'SWD8| |0DIUID YIIM UOHDINWIS SO YINs
senbjuyosy Buisn — yoipassal puoypiado
ayppepUN Of 'DYHYIDUS ainjlisul
yoloasal pup Jejexd Jo AlisieAlun ‘sisupiod
21WepDID INO Yiim Bupjiom Aj@AloD

810 eM Al|1oD} YoI08s8l PUD UOIDINPS
'UOIIDAOUU JID-8Y}HO-8IDS INO U] “WaIsAS
2100 pejpibajul up jo AleAljep ayi poddns
o} Jayjebo} swod yoIossal pup uoloINPe
"Juswiaroidw] ‘UoHDACUUL BIBYM | WNINKNE,
umo Ino dojersp of uspemg ul Buidoyuof
SO yons swajsAs Bujuwopad ybiy Jeyjo wouj
Buiuios| ey Buisn 810 AN SEIUNWWOD
1IN0 10J 8102 pup Yjpay Bujroidu

JO SADM JusIBljIp IBlleq pupD uolPAOUUI
104 yooes 1no Buypjnsdoous ‘weisAs

INO $SOJOD SDUDUOS8I ISPIM SADY SPIOM
ey Ing “seues aulbow| ‘eyiub| ‘ej10x3,
8yl ||02 em sipujwes ul jiod eyoj of uore(]
yinog pup Apqio] o} sieyoads Buipos|-pfel
puo |nyiyBisul ‘eAodoA0Id ejiAuL BAA

"BAIIDIIDU $8D[OA [PUOHDN]
8y} UO IOM By} pIpMIO} Bupip} Ul joss
Buiaup sy ul suoyosiupBio yojomylpeH
oM Ino pup 9)|4S Ind ‘aiojeiayl ‘||m

puo ‘eBobus of sn jJupm Asyp moy sn |} o}
Alunwwod 1no Bujjgous ul pjnow ey} usyolq
SABM UYL BAA “S[OAS| DIB8IDIS JSOW By} ID
Bujuoissiwwod sduenjjul Asyi einsus o sn
Yim Buppom st 9)|4S  Alunwwiod sy ojul
PP SHOMIBU BPIM BADY 8M ‘||nsal D Sy

.__OLU-QU_\/ UCO :OLU UMO :@£ U@,_UG_@ UCO

paloajes puD ‘SyIomiau sy Ulyiim woly
slequiaW UMO 118y} pajos|es ‘pajoulwou
Hes OIdS ‘Apuouoduy ey Yoo] pjnoys
Apoq o yans 18A0SIP O} ‘SYN[T Usy-ayi
PUD $}I0MJSU JUSWSA|OAU! 1008 AIDjun|oA
ay) ul sisupnd yim Asuinol o uo juem em
'AIUNWWIOD 8y Ul SHIOMIBU YiIM BUBIOAA
"(914S) dnoisy juswisnjonu| 21jgng 21BsjIS
9D Ino yim ‘uswebobue of yoooiddo
mau Ajaliius uo usyo} ApDaI|D SADY SAA

uDaA s1y) Jsjo| pajoadxe sainsosw

PaIOPIOA By} UO S|y Bululwisiep aq ||im

'00} ‘Asy} pup JusweboBus pup JUsWaA|OAUl

UO PIOD3J JUS||89X8 UD SADY SISPIACLY

“Bupiojuow edupwiopied pup suoypolyeds

8DIAJSS INO Ojul sjuswialinbal ssay)

Buipjing ‘Buiuoissiwwod Ino 1o} pLs}ID

dojersp o ‘eouppinb s8210A [OUCHDN|

Yim )1 esn pup aesuodsel ayj sjon|oeq

[I!M em ‘juswebobus 1o || Jo 51Oy

Yl WIOJ MOU ||IM SAIDIIDU 8Y] *[01jucO @
saojales Buisn esoy sind oy @1pd dn paul
'SAISN|OUI JO pul 8y} ‘pIDOq 8y} $S04

pup Ajjusisisuod ‘Bulisyjo 1osu s1eymou

81D M '8YI| $O0| 810D PajoUIPIOOD

IOYM UO SjUSWo}s |, @Y} JO oS jeaul

O} WID|D UPD 8M 8|IyMm oy} esiubodal spp

‘sjuene Juswabobus D) 8yl lesyy

JU881 INO ||D D PasN SADY &M UDIYMm

SAIDLIDU S8DI0A [PUOHDN] 8y} Joj aalisod

AjBuiwjeymiero useq os|o soy 3opgpes

“*panuiuod weysAs ayy Buyosidosy

0/61-€88 1 '||IH uosjodoN|

‘uoloulBowl INOA ul s1 ‘eA1esqo ||im NoA so ‘BuiuuiBeq ey) “Ajljoes ojur suo(d
asoyj Jo uopwiojsuoyy usy) ‘suojd puo sospi ojul ‘lyBnoy; Joy; Jo uolosiupbio uay) JyBnoy; sewod Isii4



3N"0D°SUOIIEDIUNWIWOI3SNOYIYDII MMM alowpn?) IwoeN Ag 1noke| pue ubissqg

seouUBI8Y ¢
walsAs syl Buyosiosy

‘Ataupa( |puOISsBIOIY-HIN PUD|BU]

JO 1503 "MalA81 8210} 5D} 210D Alpwind
puo eoyopid [p1suss) (g1 0g) [ 10ssejold
'PIOMO} ‘uopuo] P Bulysiignd aiPpoy
"aBupyd puo seyuond ‘spusipbew
:Ainjue?) Is | Z 8yl 10} uolPINPT [DDIP8N
Buunojsuol] “(z10z) YO ‘eeppen <

"ADQO)] °9 UOAB( YINOG 1Of UOHDWIIO)UI
S0IOPHIOM :sijnsay AeAing siebpupyy
eoopld “(g10¢) "'[1g Anquexo

'sioeA Buipadaid enly ay) ul oaye e|qissod

D puD ‘s10eA el Iso| Y} ul Ajjjoliouw uo
198y}e uoypledo-jo-Aop Jupdyjiubis ou smoys
sjuswsop|dal juiol Jolou sAldsje pUD suold8sa)
|o19810j00 8AlR8|e ‘suolpiedo sAlsje Jolpw
O} a|oIpawiaiul JO J8¥soq D ‘seinpadoid
eAlReje ||o Jo sisAjpuy  “dnois) |ouedw) ay;
Ag €1 0g 8unf ul payiodal so sajoi Ajljplow
uo 198yje Aopl4, ou s| asey} ‘Abquo] U ¢,

24nd'09//0002'8581597 /2001 0Ol
10d "'09£/00dD “°N Hy

'Q 8nss| ‘¢ | Og SMelney dlpwalsAg Jo
es0gpO( BUPIYD0D) “sienlbaInd Jlsyl pup
$SOU||I PEOUDAPD YIIM S||NPD 10} S8DIAI8S 8100
aAljpl|jod BWoy JO s$8UBAIDB}J8-SOD pUD
$SeUBAIOBYT "*[T| 'uosUIBBIH " ‘BuoIDIN
A B|pUND N lupZUDPD) g 'sewos)
pjpp eoupwioped ‘dnolgy BujuolssiwwoD)
|o21ul|D ApgIo] pup uoAB( Yinos

‘dnoigy Aomyipg [po1ulD 847 4o pug |,

€ 10T Se|old YipeH [piusyy Alunwwo?)
'AIojpAIBSqQ) Yi|P8H 21[GNg ISBAA YHON| o

— [|e BuIAR PUD |[©M BuieiOy |

|em Buiyjiom puo Buian
|em Buidojersq

|em Buioig
uolPNPoIU|

Abglo] pup uoAeq Yinog
snyoys Jesuold Joj piq B

:poddns pup s100 pajoibsju)

"PRHIWPD S1oM

(92) %77G 8soy} o puo E_o_o_EOU 184} YHM
102A D sawWl 7| O} | WOl JQy PSpUSHD
(877) %9 | 1epiosip u_:o_;u\»wa o poy

%G1 'SNW PRPY %09 "21ulo \/@o_o_:mc o)
o} pausjel sjusliod eAINd8sUOD OOE JO 1Py

pamoys ()| Oz Ul uoae( ul sisAjoup pjpQ

210z ‘AojpnissqO

Yi[oeH 21|gng Jequny pUD SIIYSHIOA 4
AjojoalesqQ YieeH 21|gnd 1S8AA YHON]
[3dv1) pup|Bu3 Joj s8poid [04O3)Y 0201
"sauljepInb eo1o0id

1589 JsulpBo puD sswooiNo ‘sdusiiedxe
jusiind Jo uoypn|pAe ||nj 1o} sdnoif ssay
o} spiq 0} joalgns &q ||m pup ssiuoud
OIHVIO PUD HOMBN SDUSIDS WOSH
dlWepPDOY DjNsulUSd 8yl yim ubio Asy|
‘slepjoyeyols pup sie1od ‘sjusliod Buiajoaul
uolnpold-0 Jo jepow abupyD SHN

8yl punoio paubisep aio pup m_ou;,__o%
|o21sAyd pup |pjusw ejpibsju; sposloid ;,__o&

[oiusw isni SHN| diysieupog uoAsq Vg

(€Z | eBoierp pouoou] 000001 /6
JO sg | Jopun 10} pup /(g SBLISAD

[PUOHRU} 00000/ L€ JO SHnpo U] ¢
uoyooNpP3 Jo juswiindeq ‘uoldsiold P|IyD JO
MBIASY OIUNW (| [ Og] T 10ssajoid ‘oiunyy
Ainb3 yype Jo ainisu| ‘se] Ayipey ‘Aje100g

104 (01 0g) "W IS 10ssajo1d JOWID\A ¢

AbgIo| pup uoAe( YiNog 'juswssessy

speaN 2168oug JuIof (€ 0g) "Q 'seulpH

| LOZ 'suoloaloid [puolougng
WSJU| 'SOHSHDIS [PUOHDN] JO 82O |

SERIEIETEN



Agenda ltem 7

TORBAY ™7~
Health- Wellbeing
— BOARD
Working together for a healthier Torbay
Title: Update Report —Public Health
Wards Affected: All
To: Health and Wellbeing On: 19 September 2013
Board
Contact: Debbie Stark, Director of Public Health
Telephone: 01803 207336
Email: debbie.stark@torbay.gov.uk
1. Achievements since last meeting

1.1 Following the discussion on alcohol at the last Board meeting, Torbay hosted
a forum for Chairs and Vice Chairs for Boards across Somerset, Devon and
Cornwall.

The agenda included sharing of best practice, the opportunities for shared
campaigns and a discussion about the creation of an alcohol alliance.

The examples of best practice shared by other areas included a number of schemes
we are also developing in Torbay:

e Public Health professionals within acute hospital site
e Peer support for recovery
e Screening and brief intervention by other agencies

We showcased the targeted alcohol worker we have developed between the CCG
and Public Health. This post has been actively working with high users of GP and
hospital health services. Early results are very promising.

We were interested in some of the web-based content other areas were using, in
particular Somerset, and will be looking at this over the coming months.

Torbay also provided copies of the poster campaign on parental responsibility and
drinking which was developed in response to a local serious case review. The
posters point out the dangers to children in terms of immediate safety and learned
behaviour.

% Page 23 NHS



The members of the forum agreed to set up an Alcohol Alliance to oversee shared
work and lobby collectively. It was felt by the group that a high profile campaigner on
alcohol issues would give the Alliance greater credibility. We will be approaching a
local MP with an invitation to chair this Alliance.

1.2 Following the report to the last Health and Wellbeing Board, the most recent
figures for Teenage Conception have been updated and show a decrease for Torbay,
in line with our more average position. The report to the previous Board meeting
had shown a sharp increase and a project to review services for teenagers was
proposed. Despite the better performance in the most recent quarter, Torbay still
has high rates compared to other Councils nationally and this project has now
commenced. Details are included in this agenda under the item for Sexual Health.

1.3  The Board has previously received presentations that have highlighted the
Government programme for additional capacity in Health Visiting. The original
capacity of 20 posts has increased to 38 from this September and will be 54 by
2015.

1.4 It has been announced that the Public Health grant to Councils will remain
ring-fence for a third year (2015-16). The value for the third year has not been
announced.

1.5 The performance figures for Health Checks have been published for quarter 1.
Torbay is doing well on the number of checks it is able to offer with 5.3% of the
eligible population compared to only 4.2% nationally and 1.9% for Devon, Cornwall
and Somerset overall. Take up of offers is lower in Torbay however, at 1.8%
compared to 2.0% nationally and reasons for this are being explored.

Challenges for the next three months

2.1 The Public Health commissioning team has now moved from St. Edmunds into
the Town Hall. This team, financed from the ring fenced grant, commissions front
line services, provides public health leadership to the Council and statutory support
to the CCG. Like many Public Health teams across the country, the redesign of the
NHS has led to a number of changes. Around 50% of the original team have left in
the last 18 months and there are currently a number of vacant posts, some of which
are being filled with secondments.

The Director of Public Health (DPH) in Torbay will be leaving in November. Across
the five councils in Devon, Cornwall and Somerset (County) there will only be two
DsPH in permanent posts.

The post of DPH is a statutory appointment and an update on appointing to/covering
this and the other vacancies will be reported at the Board meeting.

Page 24



3. Action required by partners

3.1 As we move into the winter season the annual influenza campaign starts.
Vaccination is offered to the following at risk groups:

Anyone aged 65 and over

Those with specific long term conditions (all ages from 6 months)

Those living in a long-term care home

Health and social care workers who are in direct contact with patients and
carers

Carers in receipt of Carers Allowance or who are a main carer

Pregnant women

Children aged 2 and 3 (NEW FOR 2013)

In addition, vaccination against shingles is being offered to those who are aged 70
and 79. It is the intention to roll vaccination out to everyone aged 70-79 over coming
years as national stocks allow.

Partners have been instrumental in promoting influenza uptake in previous years.
The Care trust continues to have a popular District Nurse team (Flu’'sEase) who
vaccinate care homes and housebound elderly. The Maternity Unit at the hospital
have been instrumental in improving our uptake rate for pregnant women from 31%
to 48% (one of the best in South West). Healthwatch led a publicity campaign last
year and will be including shingles in their programme for this winter.

We would ask all partners to continue this support. Councillors are invited to attend a
training session in the Town Hall on 27" November.

Page 25



Agenda Iltem 8

TORBAY ™7~
Health- Wellbeing
— BOARD
Working together for a healthier Torbay
Title: Update Report —Healthwatch
Wards Affected: All
To: Health and Wellbeing Board On 10 September 2013
Contact: Pat Harris
Telephone: 01803 402751
Email: pat.harris@healthwatchtorbay.org.uk; www.healthwatchtorbay.org.uk
1. Achievements since last meeting

1.1 This month, Healthwatch Torbay released a report on the health and
wellbeing of one of the most notoriously deprived areas of Torbay. The report
- endorsed by a number of local VIPs - was commissioned after the Torbay
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) revealed that people die 8 years
younger in the Tormohun Ward area of Torquay — which has over 10,000
residents. The report — entitled ‘Making Melville Marvellous’ (MMM) - used
data collected from a recent work with the Melville Hill and Warren Road
community, which incorporates Abbey Road, St Lukes Road and Waldon Hill.

Issues highlighted in the MMM report that affect health & wellbeing in the area
included: GP Appointment Systems; residents parking; dog fouling; the need
for a children’s play park; more police presence; street cleanliness; tackling
rogue landlords and developing community facilities. Tormohun Ward
Councillor Darren Cowell has since promised to begin the creation of a focus
task group - including Public Health, Torbay Development Agency, Tor2,
Constabularies, and key community organisations - to discuss and take away
actions to implement the report’'s recommendations. The report is available to
view on our website and in the attached appendix.

1.2  We have been working with Healthwatch Devon to give the public the chance
to provide feedback on the 2014-17 Joint Commissioning Strategy for Health
& Social Care Advocacy Services in Devon and Torbay’. The document is
available to view online with a special online survey created to allow people
the chance to feedback any issues or concerns regarding the document. We
are also working with Healthwatch Devon to produce a joint memorandum of
understanding and joint working protocol.

1.3  Healthwatch Torbay has been chosen as the detailed case study in national
body Healthwatch England’s upcoming Annual Report. We are expected to
be cited as an example of good practice by the organisation due to a national

ORBAY NHS

— Page 26



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

NHS conference describing our work with the South Devon and Torbay
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) as the “jewel in the crown of partnership
working in the South West”.

Healthwatch Torbay are holding our first ever Annual General Meeting at
Paignton Library on Wednesday 18 September from 6pm to 8pm (please call
should you wish to attend). Their inaugural AGM — open to all members of the
public — will see a new Board of Directors appointed, including a Chair, Vice-
Chair and Treasurer. An online profile page has been created showing profiles
of our current interim Board — all of whom are up for nomination at the AGM.

Healthwatch Torbay have taken to the streets this in a bid to find out what the
public think about the health & social care services in Torbay. They have
visited Torbay’s three town centres with their ‘Consultation Caravan’ to
discuss experiences with health & social care services in the Bay and have
been very well-received. Healthcare professionals, including the CCG, have
accompanied them as special guests to talk to the public. A report will be
produced on the findings.

Our Youth Coordinator Bekki Redshaw is currently working on releasing a
report into to Health and Wellbeing of young people in Torbay. This extensive
report is the product of months of hard work and consultations with young
people, and will be available to view online next month, complete with
recommendations for local services. The final draft of the report can be found
in the appendix, detailing how there appears to be a need for more in-depth
research to support young people, parent/carers/professionals and
commissioners, to ensure that appropriate and effective support services are
provided.

Healthwatch Torbay has attended a variety of events recently, including a talk
at Brixham Methodist Church on Fore Street, a special day on Torre Abbey
Meadows for young people with learning disabilities, and a well-attended
playday at Melville Hill carpark to officially launch our Making Melville
Marvellous Report.

Public feedback gathered from external events prompted us — in partnership
with Torbay Council, the CCG and both the TSDHCT and SDHFT - to produce
an easy-to-read diagram on how the changes to the NHS in England will
affect Torbay. It has already featured in the Herald Express and we will be
distributing printed versions to providers should they wish to use them.

We are also currently working on producing a new community section of our
website where we visit community groups and organisations and gather case
studies on who they are and what they do. Our first features have been the
'‘SharedLives Scheme’ and also ROC (Robert Owen Communities).

Page 27



2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

4.2

Challenges for the next three months

We expect to appoint a dynamic new board to officially launch at our inaugural
Annual General Meeting on Wednesday 18 September (6pm - 8pm) at
Paignton Library.

To ensure all the feedback we capture is utilised in the correct way, we are
currently in the process of populating our new information database system,
to allow us to quickly and easily collate and analyse all the user feedback we
receive — which is growing exponentially. We will then be able to produce
more extensive reports and recommendations at a much faster rate. The
system also allows us to signpost users to the correct services and deal with
enquiries very efficiently.

To encourage the gathering and sharing of feedback and information for our
new database, we will need to engage more with users. A communications
plan will be adapted for the next 6 months to best maximise this.

Action required by partners

We still need our partners to continue to continue helping to publicise and
support the development of Healthwatch Torbay in any dealings that they
have with the public and the media. \We are receiving more and more regular
patient feedback which we expect to grow further — any help to achieve this
would be greatly appreciated.

Communication as a whole is improving through meetings with key partners
and organisations. However partners continuing to share their own
information and feedback with us would help provide a greater understanding
of patient issues. This would help us to make the correct recommendations
for improvements and/or signposting and, in turn, help all of us provide
greater user satisfaction.

Appendix (attached)

Our Making Melville Marvellous (MMM) report into the health and wellbeing of
the Tormohun Ward area of Torquay.

Our report into Torbay Young People’s Emotional Health and Wellbeing.

Page 28



healthwatch

Torbay

Torbay Young People’s Emotional
Health & Wellbeing Report

July 2013

et TYP What We Do

% 4 .

e

< i 4
« -
S b o
b= A (s q &
\ % 3 ¥ ¢ )
A 4 B 4
\ 7 R0 2
/ d N A e
#
W R g AV
»v» ' g S0l
S
\ [ .
o st ~ 2 19 v -
. o |
§ o
g w 3-:-\ > g /
;U
- W 5

ﬁ?{a chtork y.org.%{_ ‘Uﬁﬂ)

www.h



e Executive Summary

e National picture

e Local picture

e Results/young people’s recommendations

¢ Introduction Healthwatch/Torbay Youth Power

e Methodology
e Conclusion
e Acknowledgements

e Appendix

Page 30

18

21

25

26



Executive Summary

This report covers young people’s views, experiences and ideas for development on services to
support their emotional wellbeing and mental health. Over 250 young people from Torbay gave
their feedback, via a variety of methods of engagement, from one-to-one work, group and peer
consultations, and online surveys.

The focus of this work developed from baseline assessment consultation with a variety of groups
of young people delivered by Healthwatch Torbay Youth Coordinator Bekki Redshaw. These
consultation activities covered all aspects of health to identify young people’s priority areas and
issues. It soon became apparent that emotional wellbeing received the strongest and most in-
depth responses. Due to this high response
more focussed work was devised and
delivered with young people to gain a better
understanding of their experiences, how
they felt about services, and their
recommendations for any improvements.

At the same time, various different pieces %m heatth %ﬁ rocgis
of work - delivered by Healthwatch Torbay - e | Yot
gathered feedback from parents, carers,
and professionals working with young
people. These raised independent adult-
identified issues and concerns about the
support for young people struggling with
their mental health.

Specific consultation activities were then developed on emotional wellbeing and mental health
to gather more focussed information, particularly feedback on existing services. Young people’s
thoughts on what their ideal services would look like and their suggested solutions to issues
were also gathered.

NB. Any young people quotes included in this report have been copied and pasted precisely as
was written to maintain authenticity.

The work was delivered to:

Page 31



General groups of young people

e Torbay Youth Power (TYP) - Healthwatch Torbay’s young people’s forum

e Torbay Youth Power Facebook membership

e Students South Devon College - Level 1 & 2 Health & Social Care students, plus students
from other courses who attended the TYP Launch.

e National Citizen Service (NCS)

e NCS Peer Consultation on Paignton Streets/Parkfield Young People’s Centre

e Torquay Boys Grammar School

Targeted groups of young people

e Torbay Young Carers
e Torbay Adult Carers
e Torbay Pride Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Trans, Intersex youth project.

A wide range of experiences were gathered including from those who had accessed services and
those who had not.

Those who had not accessed services were asked about their knowledge of services, how well
services promoted themselves and what they did, and what young people would want if they
felt they needed emotional support.

Many young people disclosed personal experiences of accessing support services, giving in-depth
experiential feedback. Young people were not asked to disclose which service they used
specifically, as this research was to give an overview of services, not to evaluate specific
services.

Young people talked about services such as Counselling, School Counselling, and Drug & Alcohol
Services. No young person said they had received a service directly from the Child and
Adolescent Health Service.

Page 32



National Picture

1 in 10 children and young people aged 5 - 16
suffer from a diagnosable mental health disorder
- that is around three children in every class.

Nearly 80,000 children and young people
suffer from severe depression; and over
8,000 of these are aged under 10 years old.
Between 1 in every 12 and 1 in 15 children
and young people deliberately self-harm.
There has been a big increase in the
number of young people being admitted to
hospital because of self-harm. Over the
last ten years this figure has increased by
68%.

More than half of all adults with mental health problems were diagnosed in childhood.
Less than half were treated appropriately at the time.

The number of young people aged 15-16 with depression nearly doubled between the
1980s and the year 2000.

Almost a third of children have considered or attempted suicide by the time they turn 16.
29% had self-harmed because they felt "down".

Almost half of those suffering from depression failed to get the support they needed.

MindFull YouGov (poll of over 2,000 young people)

Mentally healthy children should have the ability to:

Develop emotionally, creatively and intellectually

Develop and maintain good relationships with other people
Play and learn

Understand ‘right’ from ‘wrong’

Face problems, setbacks and learn from them.

(The Mental Health Foundation 1999)




Torbay Picture

The direct standardised rate for emergency hospital admissions for self-harm
and hospital admissions caused by intentional and deliberate injuries in under
18s in Torbay is higher than the national average across England, and also
higher than the rest of the South West (The Network of Public Health
Observatory, 2013; 32-34).

However, direct standardised rate for hospital admissions for mental health, 2009/10 to
2011/12, were not significantly different to England; and direct standardised rate for hospital
admissions for unipolar depressive disorders, 2009/10 to 2011/12, were better than England
(The Network of Public Health Observatory, 2013; 20-21).

The rate of improving access to psychological therapies was not significantly different to
England (Public Health Observatory, 2013; 35).

Terminology used when working with young people

“Mental Health”

Mental health describes our ability to cope with life’s problems and make the most of life’s
opportunities; it is about feeling good and functioning well, as individuals and collectively, or
when socialising with friends.

“Mental Illness”

Mental illness is a term used by some people to describe serious, long term mental health
problems such as bipolar disorder, schizophrenia or severe depression. People experiencing
these problems often require treatment from specialist mental health services.

Page 34



Results & recommendations from young
people about emotional well-being
experiences and services

Young people say

e Emotional well-being as an issue is extremely important to young people.

Support Services

e There is not enough support and what is in place does not work for many young people.

e Services are not young people friendly.
“The majority of .

the young people who had  Lack of support results in

accessed statutory mental health other ways to deal with feeling down

services stated that they would not - drinking, drugs, self-harming.

agree to be re-referred to that agency, Isolating self from people
which were for a variety of reasons ’

such as: not trusting workers; lack of choice
in regards to gender and age of worker; e Young people get support

lack of choice around type of intervention from friends and family.
offered (for example being offered
family therapy but not wanting parent e Friendships/social
interactions are seen by young
people as the best way to support

presents or involved); only being able to
access service with parents’ consent
(which young people felt
infringed their their emotional wellbeing.
confidentiality); and

specific complaints e Young people think that as well as friends and

around worker's

e s family, youth workers are best to placed keep an eye out

for young people’s mental health, followed by Family
Worker Doctors. (NCS Peer Consultation)

Page 35




Support Services: Young people’s recommendations

- : ° Provide young people friendly services.
“Making it easier to access

in a private and personal way.”

, e There is a need to continue to support early intervention
Groupwork

projects, especially issue-based support groups such as Young

Ask us what support we want.” Carers, Torbay Pride LGBTQI youth project, etc.
Groupwork

¢ Also valued were projects that offered social
opportunities i.e. NCS which focussed on bringing groups of
young people together who would not necessarily mix -breaking
down isolation and challenging prejudices.

“Give us choices.” Groupwork

“Treat us like people.” one-to-one

e Thereis
confusion to what
services are
available to whom.

NCS Survey Monkey:
In your local area, it
is easy to gain
access to help regarding mental health issues/support, for
young people?

Disagree 20% Strongly
disagree 50%

“| wouldn't have mixed with
half of them here cos they are
weird. |'ve got to know people |
wouldn’t never have spoken to before.”

e There is not enough
“Have support at youth clubs information on mental
discussing how they are feeling.” health, what it means and
how to keep vyourself

“Doing an engaging fun mentally healthy.
activity that involves
people whilst
providing awareness.”

NCS Survey Monkey: Young
people are made aware enough of potential Mental Health/Emotional
Wellbeing problems.

Disagree 30% Strongly disagree 50%

e There is a lack of information on where to get help and what services are available.

NCS Survey Monkey: There is enough support given to young people suffering from Mental
Health/Emotional Wellbeing problems.

Disagree 30% Strongly disagree 50%

Page 36



Information: Young people’s recommendations

Confidentiality

Inform young people, parents/carers and young people’s service providers of what services and
help is available, from early intervention to CAHMS, through a variety of mediums.

Create an accessible, easy-to-read website with local information, saying what services are
available, having sections that introduce workers with who they are and what they do (see young
people’s Endorsed sites).

Ensure all information given to young people is young people friendly/accessible, including easy-
to-read information for young people with a learning disability.

Ensure young people are informed about how a service runs i.e. confidentiality policy, their
rights, access to files, complaint systems etc.

Clearer information for young people and carers about all services, including clear criteria for all
services (including Children & Adolescent Mental Health Service - CAMHS).

Clearer information to frontline staff from all services, including clear criteria for all services
(including CAMHS).

Lack of clarity of confidentiality protocols of services
impact on young people’s trust and wish to engage with
services.

e Negative experiences of services insisting on telling
families hinder young people’s
engagement with services.

“... saying that
they have to tell my
gran, but it just
won't help and they
won't listen.”

Confidentiality: Young people’s recommendations

Be clear about your confidentiality.

Let us know who you can/will tell.

Listen to us when we say we don’t want information shared.

Let us know as soon as we start working with you or have it on a website before we start working
with you.

Page 37



e There is huge stigma attached to having poor mental health.
e Stigma stopped young people talking about struggling with poor mental health/accessing services.
¢ Young people have to develop trust before they want to engage with services/workers.

Stigma: Young people’s recommendations

e Mental health needs to be talked about in schools educating/informing/addressing stigma - PSHE.
e There is a need for training for teachers, youth workers, social workers and other young people’s

workers to understand mental health of young people including the experiences of Torbay young
people.

Counselling/support services

e Lack of choice of what services are on offer.

“They just said we are
referring you to someone

else - but don’t know who.”
Facebook in.

e Lack of choice of what services young people want to engage

“you just get told to go there or there

: e Young people were not asked if they actually wanted to
or there - no one asks you.” Groupwork

engage with services or given a choice of which service to access.

“Counsellor made me bring up
stuff that | didn’t want to.” e Counselling services not meeting young people’s needs.

“...not getting referred
to everyone a having
to go over everything
constantly, ...everything

e Referral processes can be intrusive, repetitive, stressful and
confusing.

has been brought up.” )
o LT ¢ Young people do not feel listened too and therefore are not

engaged in process impacting on success of work.

e Not offered choice of
Counsellor/worker.

e Young people were not asked if counselling was having an
impact.

e Quality of services was questionable.

e Young people were not asked if they were happy to end
counselling.

¢ Young people felt that adults made the decision this is what
they need and that they have no choice.

Page 38




LGBTQI are not confident services will not be homophobic - this prevents them from accessing
them.

“After about 45mins
of answering questions | was
tired, let alone by the end of it!

It was very tiring and intense and felt
stupid half time... didn't really tell me what
they did, they did the first assessment they
have to do, and next time they have to do

another assessment.” one-to-one

“So I've spoken to 6 different people today, and
had 5 meetings - and 1 tomorrow." Facebook

“l just had another meeting for hour and
half - I'm talked out!! It's confused the
bleep out me!!!” Facebook

“They just don't listen
so it’s stressing me out.”
Facebook

“They just don't seem
to be listening to me. | just
wish | never said anything to
them in the first place.. Cause
now I'm just talking to person after
person and going back over it
all :(” Facebook

“...She was not given a choice in regards
to the gender of the worker, which led
her to not speaking in sessions.”

worker

“No one asked if it
was doing any good.”

groupwork

“Made me feel 1 step
forward 2 steps back.”

groupwork

Page 39



Counselling/Support Services: Young people’s recommendations

¢ Involve young people in decisions about attending counselling: where; by whom; choice of male
or female; at what time; what method of counselling, etc.

e Inform young people of their rights.

e Offer young people different counsellors.

e Ensure all counsellors are trained in Additional Needs/ASD/Learning Disabilities.

Schools need to

get involved more to help . . . . .
people that are mental e Schools were cited as the main place for addressing lack in services &

S0 i accessing support.

“More lessons about mental e Improve what is delivered in schools already.
health issues at school PSME.”
NCS Survey Monkey: Schools provide enough & good information regarding
Mental Health/Emotional Wellbeing.

Disagree 30% Strongly disagree 70%

Schools provide enough & good information regarding Mental
Health/Emotional Wellbeing.

Strongly Disagree Neither Agree Agree Strongly Agree
disagree or Disagree
female 2 7 1 0 0
male 2 4 1 1 0
Trans/not say 0 2 0 0 0
total 4 13 2 1 0

Schools: Young people’s recommendations

e Mental Health awareness needs to be delivered in all schools, to include “What is mental health”,
indicators of mental ill-health, things to do to support good mental health and promotion of
services available.

e Train teachers to deal with bullying, including homophobic bullying. Stop teachers being bullies.

School Counselling Services

e Most young people found accessing Counselling in schools challenging.
e Part of this is fear of breach of confidentiality.

Page 40



e Confidentiality is compromised due to publicly known
counselling rooms and their positioning in “general” areas of
school.

¢ Confidentiality of using the service is often breeched by taking
young people out of classes to attend counselling sessions and
processes of doing so, e.g. pink card, teachers telling young
people, being collected.

e Rooms in schools were unwelcoming, bare and functionally
inept, which made young people feel uncomfortable. At worst
they doubled up as store rooms.

School Counselling Services: Young people’s recommendations

e Counselling services based in schools need to address confidentiality issues and build trust with
young people.

e Check young people want to access a service in their school.

e Give clear information including confidentiality policy.

¢ Do not take young people out of classes.

e Private confidential and nice space.

e Do not use room for other purposes.

e Ensure young people are offered choice of counsellors as in adult
counselling services model.

Torbay Hospital

There was one example of an experience of young person accessing Torbay Hospital, given by a worker.

The worker was extremely concerned about the service received saying that although the young person
was already distressed and agitated they had to wait in the general A&E waiting area for a considerable
amount of time. When eventually seen in the treatment area it also took a long time to be seen by
psychiatric services.

“Very difficult The young person was then taken to the Children’s Ward even though she
when you’re a very was at times still distressed and agitated. This concerned the worker on
[SHEGIS T ET EEE RGN R behalf of the young person and other children and young people on the
On a level day she would ward.
agree to an appointment,
QIEELECKEVEICRTGICHEY At one point the young person went to leave ward to have a cigarette and
and so fell away from the nurse called security, although the young person was calm at the
time. This only agitated the situation further.

mental health services.”

She was discharged with no medication on the condition she engaged with
mental health services.

Page 41



Bullying

e There is a strong connection to bullying having a negative impact
on young people’s Emotional wellbeing/mental health.

“| was upset,
felt like | was worth

nothing and suffered from ) . . .
depression. | didn't want to e Responses to Beat Bullying/Beat Bullying Witness TYP online

live anymore, the constant survey showed a wide range of negative impact on emotional wellbeing.

bullying each day at school was (Apendix 2)
horrible, it made me not want

to go to school. | just wanted Eating disorders - Self harm - Depression - Anxiety - not being able to have

to be alone.” a relationship: Beat Bullying survey “What are the effects of being bullied
TYP: Beat on you?”
Bullying survey:
What are the They became detached from society, rebelled against everyone and
effects of being were sometimes suicidal: Beat Bullying Witness survey “What were the
bullied on you? effects of being bullied on them?”

e Fear of being bullied also
impacted on young people
being open about having poor
“When | was younger
at primary school it af?ected mental health. 40% (Beat
me more than it did when | Bullying Witness Survey) said
started secondary school because they did not intervene when
(?lfferenrt plejople ]|UStt—t(f]p}t] l'e]pje;att:w)gt witnessing bullying, as they
p:te]gw::tltljeoa(n:i)l::1r:;j." L)t?(k;illytl grgt‘/ feared the buuy turning on
up with no issues about my skin colour them. (Appendix 3)
...but there was still pathetic children e Schools do not deal
who would try and bring me down with bullying well.
because of it.” « LGBTQI young people
are regularly bullied but do
not access support as they see
homophobic bullying as
accepted in schools and have even received homophobia from
teachers.
e Although no specific BME group engaged with Survey
Monkey reported any incident/occurrence of racial abuse.

Bullying: Young people’s recommendations

¢ No tolerance policy everywhere.
e Deliver diversity-friendly kite-marking system to support

young people from minority groups of confidence in the
services i.e. LGBTQ, BME, Disability etc.

e Train teachers on how to deal with bullying.

Page 42




Direct work with parents

“When we

eventually got a e Parents do not know enough about services.
Counsellor they told me that
they did not have any experience
working with Autism it e Frustrated at long referral processes.

‘was not their field’.” Parent

e Feel they have to battle to get a service.
“It’s (Young Carers) done a lot for her;

she’s come out of herself. She nevel . . . .
used to speak. She can make friends.  Wide spread issues re getting support for children

Where she lives she has a couple with LD Autism.

but not many.”

e Parents also value the support from early
intervention services and the support and social
interaction they provide.

Direct work with professionals

¢ Not enough information on what services are
available, how to refer and criteria.

e Long waiting times for referral processes.

e Frustration at bouncing back and forth of referrals.

Further work/research required

e Work with young people, including those who access services, to identify their “ideal service.”
This will develop greater understanding to providers and commissioners about the type of service
young people require to meet their needs.

Page 43



e More in-depth evaluation of Counselling Services involving young people who have used the
services, which include CAMHS, schools and Checkpoint. This should be an on-going process and
preferably external to the delivery organisation.

e Collate feedback from other young people’s targeted services who refer into support services i.e.
Young Carers, LGBTQI, BME, Disability Council of the value and impact of early intervention on
young people’s emotional wellbeing.

e Engage with CLA & BME young people.

e Wider evaluation/consultations to include A&E, Young People’s hospital wards, Young People’s
mental health units.

Online services young people endorsed

Surry CAMHS
http://www.surrey-camhs.org.uk/en/content/cms/cya/

My Health London

https://www.myhealth.london.nhs.uk/health-communities/young-people/blog/time-to-be-kind-big-
white-wall

Young Minds
http://www.youngminds.org.uk/for_children_young people/better mental health

Page 44



What is Healthwatch

healthwatch

Torbay

What is Healthwatch?

Healthwatch is the new consumer champion for both health and social care. It exists in two distinct
forms - local Healthwatch, at local level, and Healthwatch England, at national level.

Local Healthwatch builds on the work that Local Involvement Networks (LINks) undertook to promote and
support the involvement of people in the commissioning, provision and scrutiny of local health and care
services, giving people the opportunity to comment on the quality and standard of services and whether
they could or should be improved.

Local HealthWatch has retained all the LINk functions and powers and also provides or signposts people
to advocacy services if they need help to complain about NHS services. It also provides or signposts
people to information about services and how to access them, promoting choice.

HealthWatch England provides support and guidance to local HealthWatch and is able to use local
evidence to influence national policy.

Healthwatch England is the new, independent consumer champion for health and social
care in England. Our job is to argue for the consumer interest of all those who use health
and social care service

Healthwatch England’s role, working with the Department of Health and the Local
Government Association, will be to support local authorities to set up effective local
Healthwatch. We will publish key tools and resources for local authorities and
Healthwatch here when they become available.

http://www.healthwatch.co.uk/

Page 45



What 1s Healthwatch Torbay?

Healthwatch Torbay is the local consumer watchdog for health and social care, influencing,
responding, improving and monitoring services in Torbay. It provides local people, community
and voluntary groups with a voice to influence the planning, purchasing and provision of these
services. This independent, local consumer watchdog supports the public to promote better
results in health and social care for all adults”.

Healthwatch Torbay was launched in April 2013 and is based at:

Room 17

Paignton Library and Information Centre
Great Western Road

Paignton

TQ4 5AG

Freephone 08000520029

Direct Dial 01803 402751

Mobile 07717702123

\BRARY & \NFOBM ATION CENTHE

www.healthwatchtorbay.org.uk

Email: admin@healthwatchtorbay.org.uk

u HWTorbay [i Healthwatch Torbay

Bekki Redshaw Youth Coordinator  bekki.redshaw@healthwatchtorbay.org.uk

Pat Harris Healthwatch Chief Executive pat.harris@healthwatchtorbay.org.uk
Sarah Bickley Healthwatch Coordinator  sarah.bickley@healthwatchtorbay.org.uk
Jill Perry Community Engagement Worker jill.perry@healthwatchtorbay.org.uk
Gilly Greenham Communications Officer gilly.greenham@healthwatchtorbay.org.uk
Simon Culley Information Officer simon.culley@healthwatchtorbay.org.uk

Page 46



How 1s Healthwatch Torbay

engaging with young people?

Healthwatch Torbay is committed to reaching the most marginalised and seldom-heard groups within the
community, including young people. To ensure this happens, Healthwatch Torbay has:

e A Youth Coordinator - Bekki Redshaw
2P
e Torbay Youth Power (TYP): young people’s group \ p

2

e Run community engagement events
e Visits to young people’s groups and schools

e http://www.healthwatchtorbay.org.uk/index.php?page=young-people

'hultlunu:h HO

n Torbay Youth Power - Healthwatch
u HWTyouth

e Survey Monkey online questionnaires
These different formats ensure young people can feedback their experiences, views and wishes to
Healthwatch Torbay and distributed to the relevant services.

S

O
3

Page 47



Methodology

Young people

314 young people aged 14 - 19 were involved in a 6 month project.

The focus on this work developed from baseline assessment consultation with a variety of groups
of young people delivered by Bekki Redshaw Youth Coordinator.

e Torbay Youth Power Core Group 36 young people
o Level 2 Health & Social Care students 28 young people
o Level 3 Health & Social Care students 23 young people
e Torquay Boys Grammar School 6 young people

e Torbay National Citizen Service 12 young people

Consultation activities covered all aspects of health. It soon became apparent that emotional
wellbeing received the strongest and most in-depth responses. Due to the high response to these
questions, more focussed work was devised and delivered to young people.

Through various different pieces of group and individual engagement work delivered by
Healthwatch Torbay it became apparent issues around emotional wellbeing were a concern for
parents and carers, and professionals who work with young people. This information has been
added to this report to give an understanding of services for young people from all perspectives.

Focussed/targeted work

The work was then developed to deliver specific consultations on emotional wellbeing and
mental health to gather more focussed information, and identify young people’s solutions.

Young people were not asked to disclose which service they used specifically, as this research
was to give an overview of services, not to evaluate specific services. Young people talked
about services such as: Counselling, School Counselling, Drug & Alcohol Services.

Within conversations, many young people disclosed personal experiences of accessing support
services, giving in-depth experiential feedback.

Page 48



23 Direct work with Torbay Youth Power 36 young people
@ o ldentifying bullying as a major impact on emotional wellbeing.

o Devising Survey Monkey Bullying Questionnaire which looked at impact of
bullying on young people’s emotional wellbeing.

)

tay - 1%

South Devon College 128 young people

Soutﬁ Devon

College e Level 2 Health & Social Care students. 28 young people
o Baseline assessment of issues that concern students identified bullying as a top issue for
young people.

e Level 3 Health & Social Care students. 23 young people
o Design & deliver of creative consultation activities at Healthwatch Torbay Young People’s
Launch (Appendix 1). 80 young people
o Survey Monkey.
Torquay Boys Grammar School 6 young people

e Baseline assessment of issues that concern students identified bullying as a top issue
for young people.
e Survey Monkey.

¢ Planning peer support project - on-going.

Torbay Young Adult Carers 6 young people
ORBAY

COUNCIL g

¢ Informal conversation.
e Question in YAC Evaluation interviews. 11 young people

ORBAY Torbay Young Carers 30 young people

COUN
COUNCIL g

o Informal conversation at Young Carers Event.
o Evaluation responses.

\\WM@ National Citizen Service 37 young people
@ o Consultation of NCS membership. 12 young people
L o NCS Peer Creative Consultation delivered to other young people.
25 young people

Page 49



ORBAY Torbay Pride LGBTQIA youth group 3 young people

COUNCIL e

o Generic consultation asking “How can we (adults) support young LGBTQIA
people, where all conversation focussed on homophobic bullying.

Survey Monkey 78 young people
e 3 X 10 question online surveys.
o Beat Bullying. 38 young people
o Beat Bullying Witness. 30 young people
o Emotional Wellbeing. 10 young people

n Facebook 4 young people

e Promotion of Survey Monkey and updates of bullying work prompted young people to
contact Youth Coordinator with their personal experiences.

Research of online services

Some groups research online support and advice services to evaluate and find out other ways to
support young people.

e Torbay Youth Power. 12 young people
e Level 3 Health & Social Care students. 25 young people
e Torbay National Citizen Service. 9 young people

problams.
Suongly Disagree 2= Agree  Strongly
Agrwe ol Agree.
. ey
.

Page 50



Adults

Direct work with parents

e PPF consultation.
e Parent’s feedback at Healthwatch Torbay events/consultations.

Direct work with professionals

¢ One to one conversations with staff from different organisations that had referred young people
to services. Most of these conversations were initiated by professionals; highlighting issues were
being identified by all parties involved, which informed the focus on this work.

e Evaluation delivered by worker on behalf of Report Author.

Gaps in Research

Children Looked After (CLA)

Nearly half of looked after children have a mental health disorder and two thirds have at least one
physical health complaint. DofE Outcomes for children looked after as at 31 March 2012.

Three of the young people involved informed that they were CLA, however there was no research with
CLA as a targeted group, therefore we were unable to explore with them the experiences and impact of

Black and Ethnic Minorities (BME)

being Looked After.

Due to timescales no engagement was developed with All Different/All Equal or TIFFY (Torbay Inter Faith
4 Youth)

Page 51



This work was delivered to general groups of young people, two targeted groups, and on
Facebook via a Survey Monkey questionnaire. It therefore reached a broad range of young
people, some who had used services and some who had not. However, all were experienced in
knowing how well services promote themselves and inform young people of what they do.

The results show that the majority of these young people, parents and workers do not feel that
there are sufficient effective young people friendly support services for young people.

Young people say
¢ They do not have enough information about services

e There is a need to develop early intervention services to ensure young people do not go
into crisis

e They find it hard to access services

e Referral processes are too long, too intrusive and too complicated

¢ Young people are not actively involved in the processes of identifying need, identifying
which service, engaging and ending of services

¢ When services are accessed they do not met young people’s needs

e Early intervention is important to ensure good wellbeing by providing social engagement
and access to youth workers who can give support before crisis sets in

e Schools need to provide good quality, young people friendly and appropriate information
on how to keep well, indicators of ill health, how to support yourself and your friends,
and what services are available

¢ Bullying is a huge unchallenged issue, with some teachers even seen as bullies themselves

There is a need for more in-depth research to support young people,
parent/carers/professionals and commissioners, to ensure that the appropriate effective
services are provided.

Page 52



Acknowledgements

Torbay Youth Power would like to thank the following people for their input and support without which
the project would have been impossible:

Torbay Youth Power

Becca Parks
Becca Kemp
Tim Fallon
McCauley Adams
Johnathon Rule
Olivia Bickley

Rosie Bradley

South Devon College

Sally Freeman Health & Social Care Lecturer
Kelly Passmore Health & Social Care Lecturer

Anna Heath Head of Health & Social Care

Torbay Boys Grammar School

Mr Adam Last Teacher

Sharon Walker Pastoral Support Liaison Officer

Torbay Young Adult Carers

Cheryl McKinnon Young Adult Carer Development Worker

Lisa, Rob, Natalie and Lucy

Torbay Young Carers

Teresa Mikalauskas Senior Project Leader
Young Carers

Page 53



National Citizen Service

Community Action SW

Lucy Wood NCS Coordinator Torbay
Molly Williams NCS Worker

Geoff Carter NCS Worker

Young People

Torbay Pride

Emily Wilebore Sexual Health Outreach Young People's Worker

Karen Parker Senior Youth Worker

Young People from the group

Healthwatch Torbay

Sarah Bickley

Pat Harris CEO

Page 54



Appendixes

Appendix 1

South Devon College
Creative consultation

e Friends X 8
e Good family X 5
e Things to do

1. Where do we go for support?
e Friends X 14
e Family
o PI

2. What puts people mental health at risk?
e Bullying
e Abuse
e Bad experiences

3. Where we would like to go if we needed extra help/what an ideal Mental Health Service look
like??

Page 55



Appendix 2

Survey Monkey: Beat Bullying

38 young people

| felt left out and lacking in enthusiasm.
Feel like shit.

It made me angry and felt like | didn't belong in the school. | was bullied by a teacher and asked
everyone how they felt because | was 'keeping them behind’ because | was talking. It made me
feel small and that | was the hated one.

Made me upset.
Normally didn't bother me. Silly people.
| felt that | couldn't be myself.

When | was younger as in at primary school it affected me more than it did when | started
secondary school because different people just kept repeating the same old usual rubbish and it
got predictable and boring. Luckily | grew up with no issues about my skin colour and the way |
was brought up without a Dad but there was still pathetic children who would try and bring me
down because of it.

made me feel bad about myself. Made me paranoid of the way | looked and | couldn't be myself
around people.

Eating disorders - Self harm - Depression - Anxiety - not being able to have a relationship.

The bully often acts the VICTIM so TEACHERS believe them... Teachers need to OPEN their minds
more.

made me less confident and made me isolate myself.
| just get annoyed why some people treat us unfairly.

It made me feel alone and | didn’t want to go out, | didn’t tell anyone as | was embarrassed, it
got to the point where | wanted to move to another country, but after a while it stopped and
although | haven't forgot what it feels like | have moved on.

Low self-esteem Feeling that you don't fit it Not feeling normal Feeling sad and destroyed
emotionally Not knowing who to tell or who can help.

| didn't want to who | was and faked being someone for years, | changed myself as a person and
what | was like.

| became very upset, self-conscious about my looks.

Page 56



| was upset, felt like | was worth nothing and suffered from depression. | didn't want to live
anymore, the constant bullying each day at school was horrible, it made me not want to go to
school. | just wanted to be alone.

Made me depressed and | didn’t feel like wanting to do anything.
Seriously knocked my confidence.

Made me feel less confident and have low self-esteem. Caused me to feel shy when meeting new
people and | was more reluctant to speak up in class.

Appendix 3

Survey Monkey: Beat Bullying Witness

30 young people

Looking sad or not really talking in lessons by staying away from people.
Was on public transport , on the top deck bus only about 10 people on the bus she a person was
shouting at her and calling her names she tried to defend herself but this person was over

powering her with words. In the end my friend and | told the person that was bullying the other
person to stop it. The person that was getting bullied got off the bus.

they wouldn’t come into school, wouldn’t talk to anyone, lost all confidence.

Feel like shit :(

harming themselves.

They became detached from society, rebelled against everyone and were sometimes suicidal.
They became very shy and did not like to go out anywhere.

Low self-esteem.

feel horrible about themselves.

They become upset and scared.

They were very quiet and not confident, they did not open up to other people or want to make
new friends in case of more bullying. They wouldn't talk to anyone about the problem as they
thought it would make things worse.

they looked sad as if they have had enough.
Low self-esteem, Low self-confidence, Staying away from public places, Suicidal thoughts.

Made them depressed and upset.

Page 57



Appendix 4

NCS young people consultation

General feedback:

e Girls get more recognition for health/mental health issues.

e Bigger force on boys.

e Both sexes have huge pressures re image.

e Boy’s role models are either David Beckham or Shrek.
Specific feedback from YP who have accessed counselling:

o Experiences:
One young person experienced counselling at primary school, all others at senior school. None had
experiences outside of school.

e Primary school - “Going to have special time” Played with animals. Felt judged.

¢ Mum wanted me to speak to some so she contacted the school.

e Pulled out of lesson -highlighted | was different. Everyone knew where | was going. Pink slips.

e Counsellor made me bring up stuff that | didn’t want to.

e What is she going to do about it - makes no difference.

o | felt pre-judged - they watch you constantly.

e Everything | said wrote down - never shared what they wrote.

¢ So many questions | felt like | was on Mastermind. Went on & on.

e | didn’t feel | connected with my counsellor.

e Sticking their nose in.

e Don’t help you find.

¢ No one asked if it was doing any good.

e Made me feel 1 step forward 2 steps back.

e Once | had left the room | was left on my own.

o Counsellor ended it “my progress getting better.” Didn’t ask me how | felt

e (after questioning by facilitator) don’t get told if we don’t get on with counsellor we should be
able to choose another - as in adult services.

e | didn’t like them so | didn’t go.

e Room was bare - desk chair & chair.

o Recommendations:
Should be asked do we want to do counselling.

e Should be told what it’s about.

e (after questioning by facilitator) should be told we can have different counsellor if we don’t
connect with first.

e Should chose time when meeting - don’t pull us out of class.

e Should be able to choose where want to meet.

e Bigger space - make it feel it’s not a prison.

Page 58



Direct work with professionals

NCS Community Consultation July 13

When a young person suffers from Mental Health/Emotional Wellbeing problems, it is seen more
negatively than when adults have similar problems.

Strongly Disagree Neither Agree Strongly
Disagree Agree or Agree
Disagree
Female 2 1 6 1 1
Male 1 2 6 1 1
Total 3 3 12 2 2

Young people are made aware enough of potential Mental Health/Emotional Wellbeing

problems.
Strongly Disagree Neither Agree Strongly
disagree Agree or Agree
Disagree
Female 3 4 0 2 0
Male 1 5 1 0 0
Total 4 9 1 2 0

There is enough support given to young people suffering from Mental Health/Emotional
Wellbeing problems.

Strongly Agree | Disagree Neither Agree Agree Strongly Agree
or Disagree
female 1 4 5 0 0
male 2 2 2 0 0
0 1 1 0 0
total 3 7 8 0 0

Schools provide enough & good information regarding Mental Health/Emotional Wellbeing.

Strongly Disagree Neither Agree Agree Strongly Agree
disagree or Disagree
female 2 7 1 0 0
male 2 4 1 1 0
Trans/not say 0 2 0 0 0
total 4 13 2 1 0

In your local area, it is easy to gain access to help regarding mental health issues/support, for

young people.

Strongly Disagree Neither Agree Strongly
Agree Agree or Agree
D A339ERS

| Mv\.o IS




Female 2 2 5 1 1
Male 0 2 7 2 0
Total 2 4 12 3 1

Who are the best people to keep an eye on the mental health/emotional wellbeing of young
people?

Females Male Total
Teachers/Tutors 2 1 3
Other school staff 2 0 2
School Nurses 1 0 1
School Counsellors 0 0 0
Youth Workers 5 4 9
GP's 4 1 5
Specialist Doctors/ 1 1 2
Health workers
Parents/Carers 3 4 7
Other young people 3 3 6
Social Workers 1 0 0
Support Workers 1 0 1
Other (please write Family
on post-it note and School pastors
attach ©

What, for you, would be the most ideal way to provide support and advice for young people
regarding mental health/emotional wellbeing?

e Have support at youth clubs discussing how they are feeling.

o Be there do something fun.

e Doing an engaging fun activity that involves people whilst providing awareness.
e Provide meetings as youth clubs.

e Through school counsellors etc.

e More friend in school.

e So be talkative & help other with their problems.

e Schools to get involved more to help people that are mental or emotional wellbeing.
e SE lessons.

e Have lessons at school.

e More lessons about mental health issues at school PSME.

e Unicorns and quadrophonic rhinos.

e Making it easier to access in a private and personal way.

e To approach people about any problems (16).

Page 60



Appendix 6

Survey Monkey: Emotional wellbeing

10 young people
Q2 Which area are you from?

Answer Choices Responses
Torquay 20%

0/
Paignton 40%

Brixham 10%

Newton Abbot 10%

Teignmouth 0%

0,
Dawlish 10%

. 10%
Other (please specify) Responses

Total 10

Q3 What is your gender?

Answer Choices Responses

40%
4

60%
6
0%
0
0%
0
0%
0
Total 10

Male
Female
Trans
Intersex

Prefer not to say

Q4 When a young person suffers from Mental Health/Emotional Wellbeing problems, it is seen
more negatively than when adults have similar problems.

Answer Choices Responses
0,
1 - Strongly Agree 20,6
30%
2 3
20%
3 2
0,
4 :OA
0,
5 - Strongly Disagree :OA
Total 10

Q5 Young people are made aware enough of potential Mental Health/Emotional Wellbeing

problems.
Page 61



1 - Strongly Agree

2

4

5 - Strongly Disagree
Total

Answer Choices

Responses

10%
1
0%
0

10%
1

30%
3

50%
5

10

Q6 There is enough support given to young people suffering from Mental Health/Emotional

Wellbeing problems.

1 - Strongly Agree
2
3
4

5 - Strongly Disagree
Total

Q7 Schools provide enough & good information regarding Mental Health/Emotional Wellbeing.

1 - Strongly Agree
2
3
4

5 - Strongly Disagree
Total

In your local area, it is easy to gain access to help regarding mental health issues/support, for

young people.

1 - Strongly Agree
2
3
4

5 - Strongly Disagree
Total

Answer Choices

Answer Choices

Answer Choices

Page 62

Responses
0%
0
0%
0

20%
2

30%
3

50%
5

10

Responses
0%
0
0%
0
0%
0

30%
3
70%
7

10

Responses
0%

10%
20%
20%
50%

10



Who are the best people to keep an eye on the mental health/emotional wellbeing of young
people?

Answer Choices Responses
Parents/Carers ;0%
Teachers/Tutors ;0%
Other school staff 30%
School Nurses 20%
GP's gOA
Specialist Doctors/Health workers 30%
Other young people 20%
Youth Workers gO%
Counsellors %0%
Support Workers 30%
Social Workers :O%

Total Respondents: 10
Comments(0)

Q10 What, for you, would be the most ideal way to provide support and advice for young people

regarding mental health/emotional wellbeing?

Youth workers as one has helped me with everything

Get the word out about mental health

Anonymous text line

Leaflets

chats at school in PSHE

Being told in early teens that its normal to have mental health problems and different types, also where you
can get help from before it goes too far.

online and private meetings

Appendix 1

Consultation with Torbay Pride LGBTQI
youth group

“What is it like to be a LGBTQIA young person in Torbay?”
The question was deliberately broad so young people identify their own focus, issues and experiences.
Experiences

e Homophobic teachers & students.

e More with girls.

o We deal with it ourselves - no teacher interventions.

e Teachers don’t care about us.

e Teachers ignore homophobic bullying “push to side ... make their lives easier.”
Page 63



o
(©]

“don’t know how to deal with it.”

Teachers homophobic.

RE teacher - kept me behind after class to tell me “It’s a disease” & “Gays will never get
married.”

“You can’t help the colour of your skin but you can chose your sexuality.”

“Shouldn’t know at your age.”

Victim blame.

One young person constantly bullied, ignored by teachers, gets angry and “kicks off” “annoys me
.. end up lashing out” so is constantly put on card, sent to unit - getting reputation as a
problem. NOONE asks why she gets angry.

One young person had to move groups because of the amount of homophobic bullying aimed at
her. Bullies not moved or dealt with.

Not believed - Ganged up on.

“Teachers believe more voices rather than true voices.”

Where does homophobia in school come from?

® O O O O e

O O O

O

Learn it from other students.

See young people get bullied.

See homophobic bullying not dealt with = OK to do it.
Don’t have an opinion so copy.

Influenced by homophobia at home.

Learnt in primary school - not challenged there.
Religion.

Teachers don’t challenge/collude/are homophobic.
Young homophobic people.

Don’t care about impact on bullied person.

Do it to look cool.

May not start but shift alliance as...

Homophobia is the norm - people accept it.

Complaints

Don’t cos it won’t change anything.
Complaint made by my mum cos | was put in unit cos | went mental cos | was getting from my
whole year.

Coming out

Safety in numbers.

Large friendship groups coming out.

Young people come out in groups/couples NOT as individuals.
Outed by others as assumed LGBTQIA.

Support

Teachers - No! they are either homophobic or don’t care or don’t know how to deal with it.
School nurse - No! She’s hardly ever there, don’t know when she will be there, school uses first
aiders.

Tic Tac - doesn’t like me.

Parkfield - assaulted but told youth worker (Becky) who dealt with it. Spoke to young people and
didn’t tell LGBTQIA young person’s parents as they wouldn’t be supportive - they checked with
young person.

Police - If assaulted yes.

PC in school - “No! Big, Tall and Scary! Not approachable.” “No because last time | was in

trouble.” Page 64



Relationship support

e Sister.
e Dad.
¢ In all other consultations friends has come out as one of most popular - this group no young
person said friend.
“How can we support LGBTQIA young people?”

e SUPPORT.

¢ Not judge the children/YP.

e Support for people who are out or questioning how to know.

¢ Not make inappropriate comments.

e Teachers need to do something.

e LGBTQIA needs to be addressed (education) to younger students.

e Train teachers how to deal with it - teachers need training.

o Get people - specialists in (school to deliver training).

e What action taken should take into consideration what LGBTQIA young person wants.
e Sex Ed needs to cover everything.

e Will put effort into supporting questioning/gay people.

e Will actually acknowledge sexuality instead of shrugging it off.

e Won’t subject people because of sexuality and will support people and treat as equals.
e Posters.

o Websites (private).

Page 65



healthwtch

Torbay

Making Melville Marvellous
Community Engagement
Project Report

Tell us your story ... —
Your voice counts \)

www.healthwatchtorbay.org.uk - 08000320996



-------------------------------------------

« “This report shows the vital  that decision makers

E role Healthwatch will play in  recognise that things like

' the new NHS system. Firstly housing conditions, street

' the health service can always cleanliness and the provision
. benefit from constructive of community assets all link

. criticism and the report’s together to improve

: recommendations on the GP wellbeing and are an

E appointment booking system essential part of a good

' will hopefully start to resolve  public health strategy.

' an issue that has concerned _ ;

. the public for some time. B_y 2121/ [P EEies e oot

' this, as the report urges, we
: Secondly there is now a will see a happier and

E drive to identify wide ranging healthier quality of life for

' issues that cut across local  residents. This is excellent in
' service boundaries and itself but also has the added
. suggest long term, pro-active benefit of reducing the

. solutions that are very much  burden on hard-pressed

. needed. It’s sadly long been local health services.”

 the case that the Melville Hil _

E area has suffered from some Adrian Sanders, Member of
 social problems and while ~ Parliament for Torbay

' things have improved in

. recent years, much more can

:‘ be done. It’s absolutely vital

-------------------------------------------

W m Em O O O W B B B BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN B B W m m m P

B R

“We look forward to
working together with
Healthwatch Torbay and
other organisations to see
the recommendations
implemented and to
significantly improve the
health and wellbeing of
Melville’s residents, both
present and future.”

Torbay Council Executive
Lead for Health and

wellbeing, Clir Chris Lewis

“This report offers a really
valuable insight and
understanding of the core
health and wellbeing
issues in the Melville area,
which has much higher
levels of deprivation and
health inequalities than
the Torbay average. It’s
realistic and targeted
recommendations will
enable all partners to work
with the community to
deliver more targeted
work to improve the lives
of residents in the area.”

Torbay Director of Public
Health, Debbie Stark

-------------------

N O O OB OB W B BN B BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN B W B o W om om P



Making Melville Marvelous
Community Engagement
Project Report

In March 2013 we
worked with the
community of Melville Hill
and Warren Road to gather

o
: thoughts, comments and )
, suggestions about howitisto
L live, work and play in their <
N community as a d
Context 3 » Commissioned project for o
° healthw tch o
Whats it like in Melville 9 R Torbay W
o ege . . . .
Activities/methodology 10 oo
Findings 12 healthw tc
> Social & Community networks 13 - Making - :
- Melville ;
> Environment 15 . Marvelous, ;
> Health 17
Whats important 18

Melville Hill Community Group
Facebook Melville Hill

Recommendations 19 “

Page 68



. home to Torquay's Beatniks, who
Th e H |STO ry used the pub to perform poetry
and music. One of those Beatniks
was Donovan who produced a
series of hit albums and singles

The Melville Hill neighbourhood between 1965 and 1970,

sits above Rock walk overlooking
Princess Theatre and is older than
Torquay, which was established in

5. Mevils Siesh. Welen Resel arfists fo collaborate on songs with
and Abbey Road héve been the Beatles and he influenced both

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
Donovan was one of the few &
1
1
1
1
described as making up a fine John Lennon and Paul McCartney :
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

: when he taught them his finger-
MASHSSA SR HSNARSe Dk picking guitar style in 1968. In 1964

Donovan spent the summer in
Torquay, living in a bedsit in Abbey
Road, where he wrote his first hit,
‘Catch the wind".

As a Conservation Area the
community has 44 listed buildings.
During the 1820s some houses were
built on Waldon Hill, and in the
1840s Warren Road, Abbey Road
and Melville Street were
constructed. A great community
resource is the Clipper Inn, which
used to be the Melville Inn.

A map of 1861 shows that
schools and church buildings were
already in place. These included
the Catholic Church on Abbey
Road and the Quakers Meeting

House, which is now the Samaritans.t

It's reputed to be haunted. In K.Dixon (2013) THe History (Unpublished) !

the early 1960s the Clipper was

O OB B O B OB B N B B BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN B BN B BN B B B W oy

A}




In 2010, Sir Michael Marmot undertook an
independent review (Fair Society Healthy Lives) of
the causes of and most effective evidenced based
strategies to reduce health inequalities. This review
re-enforced the links between social conditions
and health and the need to create and develop
healthy and sustainable communities in order to
reduce health inequalities. He concluded that
reducing inequalities will only be achieved through
the collaboration of services and communities to
create flourishing, connected communifies.

Flourishing communities are those where everyone
has someone to talk to, neighbours look out for
each other, people have pride and safisfaction
with where they live and feel able to influence
decisions about their area. Residents are able o
access green
and open
space, feel safe
going out and
there are
places and
opportunities
that bring
people
together.

One of the
Review's key
messages on
challenging
health
inequalities is
that:

N
“Effective local Mo
delivery requires effective participatory decision- &
making at local level. This can only happen by
empowering individuals and local communities”.
The asset asset based approach to community
development (ABCD) provides an ideal way for
councils and their partners to respond to this
challenge.

The emphasis of community-based working has
been changing. Among other aims, asset
based working promotes well-being by
building social capital, promoting face-
to-face community networks,
encouraging civic parficipation and
citizen power. High levels of social
capital are correlated with positive
health outcomes, well-being and
resilience. (UCL,2010).

Age, sex and
constitutional
factors

SKILLS
RESOURCES
ASSETS

This report looks at one of the neighbourhoods
within the Tormuhoun ward of Torquay, that has
higher levels of deprivation and health inequalities.
The Melville Hill area, where a perceived lack of
community engagement and multi agency focus
has led to poor health and well-being.

Specifically we have sef out fo;

 Explore the health and well-being needs and the
community assets within Melville using a
community engagement approach through the
use of questionnaires, focus groups and other
creative approaches.

« Identify issues that can be addressed in the short-
term.

» Explore way to build community cohesion using

an assets based

approach.

To inform our
work on the
determinants of
health and well-
being, we have
used the
Dalgren and
Whitehead
model.
Dahlgren and
Whitehead
model (1991) in
conjunction
with ‘A Glass
Half Full - how
an
asset approach
can improve community health and
wellbeing', a paper produced by IDeA in
March 2010.

’

1

1

I The asset approach values the capacity, skills,

I knowledge, connections and potential in a

I community. In an asset approach, the glass is half-
I full rather than half-empty.

1 The more familiar ‘deficit’ approach focuses

on the problems, needs and deficiencies

in a community. It designs services to fill

the gaps and fix the problems. As a
result, a community can feel
disempowered and dependent;
people can become passive
recipients of expensive services rather

than active agents in their own and

their families’ lives.

Image credit: Dalgren and Whitehead model

Page 70

5



Fundamentally, the shift from using a deficit-based causes of health inequality. The aim is to achieve
approach to an asset-based one requires a change  a better balance between service delivery and

in aftitudes and values. community building.

« Professional staff and Councillors have to be « One of the key challenges for places and
willing to share power; instead of doing things for organizations that are using an asset approach is
people, they have to help a community to do to develop a basis for commissioning that
things for itself. supports community development and

community building — not just how activities are

« Working in this way is community-led, long-term commissioned but what activities are
and open ended. A mobilised and empowered commissioned.
community will not necessarily choose to act on
the same issues that health services or councils « The values and principles of asset working are
see as the priorities. clearly replicable. Leadership and knowledge

transfer are key to embedding these ideas in the
« Place-based partnership working takes on added mainstream of public services.
importance with the asset approach. Silos and

agency boundaries get in the way of people- « Specific local solutions that come out of this
centred outcomes and community building. approach may not be transferable without
change. They rely on community knowledge,
« The asset approach does not replace investment engagement and commitment, which are rooted
in improving services or tackling the structural in very specific local circumstances.

Co-production

those who have strong social
ties to die prematurely. Social
networks have a larger impact

“S e rvi ces d 0, on the risk of mortality than on
the risk of developing disease,
that is, it is not so much that

n Ot p ro d u Ce social networks stop you from

getting ill, but that they help

you to recover when you do get
outcomes,

it
Marmot (2010) Fair Society Healthy Lives

p eo p le d O” Final Report,

- J

1 1
] |
1 1
|
: Organisations o0 UI* .
1 LIS 1
1 Fubi T il Sacial ;
: LIEHIE 5 QL Lrlldfl'_'ﬁ A :
1 i LlnL':L]ulﬂ " 'S [
[ I r 1
: e " 4 Cammunitie : / \
1
L Woetay T oo 4 © . | “Individuals who are socially
] 5 .
: i aroups + | isolated are between two and
1 ﬂE sl and Hed : ] '
: ’,",m,',ﬁ..h‘ tarmlis | five times more likely than
! by ]
: :
1 1
1

CUMMINS AND MILLER (2007)
Page 71

6



LOWER TORQUAY AREA
pton

Torre

b
ot
L]
°
TORQUAY :
L]
Although
Devon, Plymouth and Torbay .I.he ared is
Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right
e : T X larger than the

area surveyed, it
gives us a clear
indication of

The statistics overleaf are sourced frends from the

Office of National Statistics for the Lower Torquay
Super Output area as shown on the map above. A large
percentage of the blue line is retail and commercial business.

(ONS, 2011)

Page 72

7



Demographics

Demographic charts above show a very different pattern to the wider Torbay area, with around 56% males,
and a ‘bulge’ in the male population aged 20 through to 54.

The statfistics below are sourced from the Office of National Statistics for the Lower Torquay Super Output
area as shown on the map on page 5.

2010 Mid Year Estimate population pyramid for
Torbay compared to England

Population pyramid for Lower Torquay comparedto
England, 2012

bO5% 4% 3% 2% 1% 0% 1% 2% 3% 4% 5% ¢ % 4% 3% 2% 1% 0% 1% % 3% 4% 5%
- England - England
Worklessness and benefit are high with a large « This area has a higher proportion of single
proportion of predominantly single men of working households at 58% compared to 42% for
age claiming benefits. Overall, the analysis suggests Torbay.

that we would expect both Abbey Road and Croft
Hall GP surgeries to have significantly higher rates of
out of work benefit claimants than the Torbay
average. Levels of incapacity and severe
disablement and also duration of claim

appear to be highest in Abbey and Croft.

We would expect to see increased demand for GPs
to sign sickness forms to support incapacity benefits.
Additionally, there could be increased
demand on GP fime due to links between
unemployment and increased chance of
being ill.(Dorling, 2009)

Also:
. In the following graph the position of
» 10.6% of the working age
population are claiming Job Seekers Abbey Road and Croft Hall can be
Allowance (3.6% England & 4.3% compared to the Torbay average for out of
Torbay). work benefits. Colours within the following

« the proportion of the working age population  graphs illustrate whether there is a significant
claiming a key benefit is 34%, 2/3 of whom are  difference, or not, to the Torbay mean. Red
men compared to 20% overall in Torbay. indicates a significantly higher values for that

« Of this, 19% is incapacity benefit. practice, green a significantly lower and blue

suggests no significance.

Office of National Statistics (2013) Lower Torquay Super Output area
[Online]. Available at http:www.statistics.gov.uk

Page 73
8



Estimated proportion of working age registered patients claiming out I
of work benefits, 2010/2011 i

i
i

b

H

i

i

H

b G

b 15%

H

b

i

H

i 10

i

H

b

i

) G

y

i

i

b

i

1 0%

i

\ |
-e‘ +" &

o rd ,!\., ) & & & B
: S ﬁ@w\“fﬁb" * -.--°°~°_e° 3"’"‘9@9

f ,TP S B - | < ¥ & BN P S N
P B e oD & & é“ g & & i O
t F o "0, 5 o S & g &

*

...................................................................................

(Source: Haines, 2011)

Housing

Housing Tenure
Tenure

There are a high proportion of Houses in
mulfiple occupation, with a density of 44 people
per hectare, compared to 21 for the Torbay area: 67% of
households live in rented accommodation versus 23% for the Torbay
areaq, of which only 5% is social rented accommodation (ONS, Mar
2011). 81% of households live in flafs. Several studies have shown a
relationship between housing tenure and health, where housing tenure
might influence health. Dampness and mould, which are related to
respiratory and chronic illness and psychological distress 1. Similarly
there is a link between the high proportion of small private rented
homes, the relatively high levels of benefit dependency and levels of
unemployment and population profile. A more balanced housing
picture with more family housing, greater levels of home ownership
and less HMO's would impact positively on the feel of the area and the
levels of worklessness and health inequalifies.

Page 74

SN N EEEEEEEEEE SN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NSNS E N NN RS S S S S SRS S S SRR R SRR RS SRR R ...

MELVILLE HILL
e

N

ro/EE WE ==

ik iN NN ll
i2 5§ NN BA
= 1T N

---------------------------------------------’



Community
AcTivism

fag s A PN\ PN

The Melville Hill Community
Group is very active, making a
real positive difference to the
lives of residents in the area.
Including being instrumental
in lobbying the Mayor to take
action against rogue landlords
and to help clean up the area.
As with many such groups, a
small number of members are
active, and the group’s focus
is only a part of the
neighbourhood surveyed as
part of the project. Making
Melville Marvelous has helped
the group reach out to more
residents and acted as a
catalyst for further activism
and greater involvement.
Facebook: Melville Hill

COMMENTS

FROM
RESIDENTS
ABOUT WHATIT

FANTASTIC IS LIKE TO LIVE
IN MELVILLE
SEOPLE VIEWS AND
REALLY WANT | HERITAGE
TO CONNECT

MORE, BUT
HOW?e lﬂ
-

TRANSIENT
POPULATION

il N f
> Sy O

e e

> W  ClOSE MUCH
V' lecacY ¥ 10sHOPS & DOG MESS
OF POOR TOWN
REPUTATION DUE TO PEOPLE
ANTI SOCIAL |~ REALLY VALUE
BEHAVIOUR, & DRUG ! OTHER PEOPLE
RELATED ACTIVITY LIVING IN THE
NEIGHBOURHOOD
PARKING
ISSUES
.. N N N N
[ ] - T
. . Making -
(] - 1
. Melville -
° [ ]
- Marvelous -
[ ]
N — ———————— o.
Page 75

10



Project commissioned by Healthwatch Torbay on the basis that the Melville Hill community is a
neighbourhood exhibiting a number of social, health and economic issues reflected across the bay.

Methodology

The project steering group:

Kevin Dixon, Healthwatch Torbay (chair) Nick
Burleigh, Melville Hill Community Group (chair)
Darren Cowell (Ward Councillor)

The steering group commissioned Torbay
Social Enterprise Network to conduct an
engagement project

‘LI ."I
To gather statistical information
on the area

|
o

The team was lead by Simon Sherbersky, Chair,

Torbay Social Enterprise Network and Patricia Dixon

from Shiny Productions, an experienced creative

engagement practitioner. They were supported by

QUEST, which is a user led collaboration set up in
Torbay to review and comment on services to

vulnerable people, in order to better reach
those unlikely to engage.

-
3
‘—l

The project used an asset based
approach to engaging the local

2. To gather the views of MethOdOIdgy community and designed a series of
members of the community by - = . activities detailed below and a
a variety of methods . . Y . questionnaire which was taken door to
3. To explore ways of working with Gl N door to capture people’s passion and
e SemLNIy (e [y negds enthusiasm, to inform this report and its
and to suggest ways of meeting dati I der to bett
such needs regommen ations. In order to be | gr
4. To specifically consult those members of the appreciafe the asset based approach it is worth
community who may have difficulty in reviewing the questionnaire in Appendix 1. Due to
expressing their views the limited timescale of the project a full asset
5. Ensure the approach is engaging and acts as a mapping exercise was not conducted, but it is
catalyst for community activism recommended that this is picked up by the
6. Ensure the project covers current issues, such as . . .
) . o community connector, who will be working in
ASB, poor housing stock and taps into positives, T ; e f Septemb
such as the heritage and history of the area orquay town centre from septemboer.
“I WISH THIS WAS “ DAY WORKSHOPS FOCUS CONSULTATION VILLAGE
GROUPS FETE
Creative Opportunity to Targeting the A community
workshops where draw out further harder to reach celebration to
the community information groups to ensure share what we

could create about elements their voices were

their ideal highlighted in the heard
[ Soves s Housss neighbourhood questionnaires - door to door
Flay Park, Car Park
NoT A RUBSISH Due - :: n’;l:;i;i;eet

Page 76

11

learnt and to
share local skills



+ Photography Competition

March 2013

Making Melville
Marvelous

Now if you'cant come to us, dorft
tworry, as we will come to you!

s part of our research we will
conduct a survey door-fo-door
1(between 11™ - 22nd March) on-
iline and by phone, so if it hard
1for you fo come o an event please
iplease let us know how and when
1it5 best to contact you and we will

- During March we will be working with you
: the community of Melville Hill and Warren <.

and suggestions about how it is to live,

R N T T 1 work and play in your community.

“I WISH THIS WAS” Day ST T, .
Sunday 17th March

We would like to know what

We would like you to take
pictures of what makes you
smile in your community and

you would like fo see in your
what can be improved.

community to Make Melville
Marvelous. On “T WISH THIS
WAS" day, we invite you to take
1o the streets and use our wish
this was. stickers fo fell us
‘what YOU wish for you and
Melville.

We will be out too recording
where and what you wish for

Email your photos to:
welovemelville@icloud.com
with your name, where the
pictures were taken and
prizes winners will be
announced at the fete on the
30th March 2013

How to contact us:

By email: welovemelvillehill@icloud.com

Facebook: makingmelvillemarvelous

Dropbox in the Clipper Pub for notes or comments

Ckn“uauunﬁqy

pa—
— =
--0"'
--""" i 4 -
/
gy
. -
—

Hall, Warren Road,
Torquay

.'._, ] rown. 12pm - 4pm

:
ol y
aking -
. tm—
1tes °
Melvl . y
d
Marvelous.
.
PUBLIC Il'l'llﬂ
Join us to find out how we plan to
work with you o Make Melville Hili
& Warren Road Marvelous
-.‘m .+ Saturday, 8 March 2018
s 8t Luke's Church Lower

here”
o6 what happens
Tocal peopig mattpr and < infpence W
irere loc

A project information
leaflet was distributed to all
households in the area,
outlining the Making
Melville Marvelous
programme for March
2013. The infroductory
consultation session was
well attended by over 40
people, which helped
inform the development of
a more detailed
questionnaire, which is
attached as Appendix 1.

In line with the brief, the questionnaire focused on
trying to build community involvement. The
summary survey findings are detailed below, with

© Road to gather your thoughts, comments ...\

How and when can I get

Why Melville / Warren Lane?
involved?

seseecctecesetesese S et
1 Saturday 2~ March 2013 12pm-4pm

.
® St Luke's Lower Chureh Hatl
. » Warren Road -
° .

Open Space Seasion

> .
R R R ey

There are many different ways in which we would
like to engage with you over the next month. We will -
be holding focus groups, conducting surveys with
questionnaires and interviews to find out as much as
we can about what you would like to Make Melville
Marvelous.

Warren Roac

Creative Warkshop
Thursday 14 March at 4pm-7pm
The Clipper Pub an Malville Roas

We will also be hosting events like & community
village fete and calling on you to get out and tell us
what you wish for in your neighbourhood

Facus Group
Sunday 17* March 12.50pm Spm
The Clipper Pub on Malvilla Road

There is photographic competition for images that
best tell the story of the community and “I wish this

was” day.
123

i P
healthwotch

Consultatian Session
Monday 18" March at 4gm - Tpm
where the Leam will be watting to hear your stories

The Clipper Pub on Melviile Road
’ ' Celabration Baster Village Fote
| Saturday 30th March 2.30pm-6pm
8t Lizke's Lower Church Hall
Warren Road

the full analysis in
Appendix 2. 140 people
completed the
questionnaire.

The survey was conducted
at varying fimes of day
and evening, on
weekdays and at the
weekend. Both door fo
door and at other
locations, such as the
Clipper Pub and Carters
convenience store to try to
3 capture as wide a range of

residents as possible. We would like to
thank QUEST members for assisting us with the
survey.

Page 77

12



| WISH THIS WAS

2 The best thing about this areais... | would really like to change...
® There used to be a Guy * Dog fouling x3
Fawkes bonfire in the * What people think about
Melville Lane car park the area — aspirations
® It's history —it's the oldest * The attitude of the dustmen,
. part of Torquay who make such a mess on
: The views collection days x3
: Local residents * How we light our streets in
Friendly . the winter
® Central location — easy to
get fo fown Our biggest challenge is....
® The architecture
: Samaritans drop in * Parking in Warren Rd x2
: St Lukes church * Dodging the dog fouling
: Coburg Place * Transient population
The buses ® Bad publicity

| WISH THIS WAS

We must remember to include...

Residents parking - Warren
Rd

Coburg Place

Working residents

The over 60's

Do you know your neighbours?

We must remember to include...

Yes

To nod to

No

People moving on quickly

Motivating, inspiring,
encouraging those that feel
disinterested / alienated

F

¥

Infroductory

session at St

Lukes church
hall

®* Somewhere for teenagers to
hang out

Residents’ parking

Young mothers

Farnborough House
Everyonel!

All our residents — no maftter
if they have social problems

| wish this was stickers were
used by residents to place
around the neighbourhood :

I wish Rock Road Laundry
site was a community
space; I wish they let me
build my home on it

The best way to talk to people
about our community is...

I wish the streets were
cleaner and Coburg Place
was re surfaced

Face to face

The Clipper Pub
Community Noticeboard
Through our local faith
leaders

I wish the Scout Hall was a
community Centre

EEN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN BN B B BN BN B B B g,

B T T R T e T T T T T T T R e T e



Many respondents did state that the

Indeed, and from analysing all of the
drug problem is nowhere near as = comments found in this survey, it does
bad as it was before and all of - appear that a small minority of drug
those who agreed with this i - users in the area today continue to
statement had lived in the area ~ Social and promote and uphold the long-term
for 5 years or more, some for over . reputation that the area had in
30 years. In relation to the communlty previous years — one of heavy drug
‘druggy / junkie’ use, many drug dens and infensive
comments, many who Networks drug dealing. A common theme
said they were a 45.7% of ' , found within communities that display
problem then stated : evidence of a number of social issues

in the same question respondents (Croall, 1998).
that drugs were not a Wk CIERE T
problem in their area -

: - 42.9% men
leaving some ambiguity

Anfi social behaviour was a specific issue which
over these findings.

was not highlighted as a major concern, which is
credit to recent collaborative activity between the
community and relevant agencies.

0 7 13 20
MemleHl = |
Melvile Lane .
CobugPloce
RockROCH o |
ADbEYROOH e —
CayRood ===
e — ,
St Lukgl Ié%ge;i?;?\ —_— What don't you like about your area?
StlukesRoadSouth s> ‘ - Drugs
WarrenRood Eost k
WarrenRoad West e
Ottey

[ Not a problem MinorIBrobIe B Serious problem [ Don't know
age'79

14



0 5 10 15 20

Under 18 with P/Consent ™! Age and gender of
18 - 24 yrs = respondents
25 - 34 yrs
35-44ys =
45 - 54 yrs
I S ———
65 - 74 yrs
75 yrs and over

I male Female

As you can see from the chart, it did prove problematic to reach the
younger males within the area despite many attempts. This is not unusual
with typically hard tfo reach populations — of which younger males are one.
Grover (2008) notes the particular issues that specifically face this group and
how not being education, employment or training (NEET), long-term
unemployment, a propensity fowards crime and other health inequalities all

can affect young men — particularly those from lower class backgrounds.
Given that this group were underrepresented in this survey indicates that

there is a need to engage with this group on a more direct level, using
techniques specifically tailored around their lifestyles and typical actions.

Regarding the household make up of the population surveyed, well over a
quarter (36.4%) lived alone. Furthermore, three quarters (75%) of households
in the area are adulis only, indicating a possible lack of younger families in
the area. 10% of households were single parent families (N = 132, 8 missing).

With regard to the employment status of those surveyed, 2 were students, 23
were in full fime employment, 13 were in part time employment, 14 were self
employed and 46 were retired. 23 respondents stated that they had been

long-term unemployed whilst 9 had been unemployed for
under 12 months. As seen in the charts below,
unemployment spans both genders and all of the
relevant age groups (N Social and =130, 10 missing).
Community
Networks

88 respondents
reported that they
could offer the
following to Make

Melville Marvelous —
(N=88, 52 missing [62.9%])

Time = 24 people

Connections = 2
people

Resources = 1
person

Experience =7
people

Passion = 5 people

Skills = 4 people

Most importantly
however, 45 people
stated that they could
offer a combination of
some or all and this was
found across all age
groups.




When asked what the community most liked about the area, the fact that it is close to the town, beach,
buses, and work were most commonly cited. Importantly, the people and the views were also the most

liked within the area — strongly indicating that community spirit is found within the area and can be built

upon. Being a quiet and peaceful area was also routinely mentioned. Quotes included:

“Views, It's like Monte Carlo looking at the harbour”
“Lovely, it's pleasant and convenient for town”
“Convenient for the shops and amenities”
“Quiet, lovely, supportive neighbours”

We asked people where they lived and therefore can pinpoint responses to specific streets or part streets

(details in Appendix 2). We asked people what they didn’t like and to rate the seriousness of the issue and
the 3 key issues that people mentioned are shown graphically below:

10 15

|

Me'\i\;i\llee NS“LGSHTI — ‘ Residents’ Parking
MehileLone — mem
Coburg Place
Rock Road
Abbey Road
Cary Road

r=——m
StLUKESROOD e -
m
St Lukes Road North
§

St Lukes Road South
Wairen Road East
Warren Road West '

Other =- | ‘

[ Not a problem Minor problem B Serious problem [ Don’t know

0 5 10 15

MeMle Street  mmm—

E— |
,;:' Houses of Multiple Occupancy
MeNile Lone
_—I ]
RockRood — ==
Cary Road =
_77 . 1 1
StLukesRoQANOMN
SE—

Warren Road East m—'—T_—_

Other —



In the (please describe) section of
what don't you like question (5),
getting rid of the dog mess was
by far the most commented
upon with removal of the

‘druggies’ also strongly
favoured.

Environment
findings

10

Melvile Street

Melvile Hil l
MeMlelone s
S—
CoburgPloce  e—
Rock Road L

—
CayRood == '

Street Cleanliness

SHLUKESROOH e
StLukesRoadNorth ~— co———
StLukesRoad South es—

Warren Road East e ——

[ —
Waren Rood West s

Other

[ Not a problem Minor problem B Serious problem
N =129, 11 MISSING = 92.1%

Don't know
NB Also highlighted by a number of respondents was the issue of the cleanliness of the streets after the rubbish had been
collected, which was worse.

If respondents could give a gift to Making Melville

Marvelous, a play park for children was the clear
overall favourite with improved residents’ parking, a
cleaner / smarter area and more police presence

being the other most commonly quoted responses.

e

re Tha pwe Tesy rr
2o S e
““h ‘u'h""d " ‘.r

veab A "b A fu.ﬂ"t



Health Findings

T T—
Metvile Street [ 97 respondents had accessed health,
MehMle Long ~— m— services in the last 12 months
*
RockRood E———— X
CaryRoad -

StLukesRood Norfy — Se—

e ‘

Other '
0 W Yes 10 20 No 30
33.1% of those who accessed health services in There were many varied suggestions as fo how the
the last 12 months visited their GP whilst a further respondents lives could be improved. However,
22.8% using more than one service. Interestingly, better health, standard of homes, job
only one respondent openly stated that they had opportunities, improved green areas to sit in and
used a mental health service. Out of the above, access to others in similar lifestyle situations (such
39.9% were very satisfied, 18.8% were satisfied, 8.7% as families and the older age group) were the
were somewhat satisfied and 7.1% were not most commonly cited. Specific comments
safisfied aft all. For the respondents who did not use included:
any services [25%)] this question was not
Gpp|iCOb|e. Good Health
(N =138, 2 missing [98.6%]) 14 “To get my new hip working”
- L] _—
The main improvement to health - . “A flat without steps”
services wanted was GP - - .- ) o .,
N S v { 1 r" : {_» = Better heating in my flat

ccl)rr;mde?’re;]d O.n ’rhfe pro”bfl.et:rns . F - ’ - = e - “Getting in to college”
related to having to call firs

thing on the day to get an H eq ".h serylces “A job”
appointment, to not being able - —_ — s e -~

to book in advance (especially tt .|'J y y g - “Being. able to walk out of my flat
problematic when related to — = & _8 in to a clean street”

work, time planning etc) and the _ ) L )

lack of quality concerning the service W dictan :e I:;I::r\;/:t;\l;:;:\h:;:vl-ﬁlllkll!lgad”
they received. All surgeries were both

praised and criticised. Specific comments “Clean up Abbey Road near Tor Haven”
included:

. . “Avoiding parking on St Lukes Road (north and
GP - being able to book in advance south) should be double yellow lines on narrow bits

“Being able to book appointments as it's not easy S CLUG N Ef e el eE ety

having to ring on the day and hope you can get “A better bus service”

an appointment”
“Cheaper parking”
“Long wait to see consultant (3 months) and too

long also to see GP” “More green spaces”

“Hospital Parking”

Page 83
18



Mak1ing
Melville
Marvelous

Whats Important

A lot of residents — of all age groups - live alone but
strongly wish to meet up and work with other like-minded
people in their area.

There is a a high level of unemployment within the younger
and mid-age population, which is supported by available
statistics.

There is also a high level of retirees, who have stated their
desire to help but, given their age and / or health issues
feel unable to commit to anything at this time.

People from all streets and ages have offered their time,
resources, experience or other skills.

Therefore, it seems there is much that can be done to help
residents connect, to improve their sense of health and
well-being and to collectively Make Melville Marvelous!

Key to moving forward for residents is having community
spaces to meet and interact and an outreach worker to
work with groups to capacity build and reach more of the
community.

Page 84

19



Melville Hill Community Group currently supports a part
of the area, which has the higher proportion of rented
and smaller properties (Rock Rd, Coburg Place, Melville
St and Lane and Warren Rd East).

The area has a historic reputation as a dumping
ground for transient, out of work single people with
chaotic lifestyles. Although there are still issues, they are
not as predominant as they were 5 years ago. However
the area still has this association, despite the fact that
the maijority of residents feel it is a friendly area and
what they value highly is the other people living there.
This supports the need for ongoing community
development that celebrates the area and builds on
the area’s positives, such as an asset based approach
(ABCD), which was promoted in ‘A Glass half full - how
an asset approach can improve community health
and well-being’, a paper produced by IDeA in March
2010. (IDeA, 2010).

There are two examples of this already underway since
the project started:

1. Residents Parking — a key priority for Warren Rd
particularly. The Melville Hill Community Group
has initiated a project to apply for Warren Rd
east. There were a number of residents in
Warren Rd west who also felt strongly about this
and if involved would strengthen the case to
the Local Authority.

Recommendation 1(a): fo combine resources
and submit one application for the whole area
concerned

Recommendation 1(b): Given the number of
people who expressed a desire to get more
involved, consideration should be given to
broadening the community group fo
encompass the whole area and try to enable
people fo connect more through shared
activities, particularly younger and older
residents

Page 85

20

2. Tackling rogue landlords — a key political priority

for Torbay's Mayor. A group of residents has
formed to address this issue and have been
very active in raising support through a
residents’ petition and social action

Recommendation 2(a): For the Council to work
with the group to support improved private
landlord practice under the umbrella of the
Mayor's existing initiative



3. Health - Recommendation (3a) GP
appointment system is not user friendly and
should be revised to make it easier for people
to book in advance, around their other
commitments.

Given the higher incidence of poverty and

associated health issues, it is suggested that
further work is undertaken with Abbey Road
and Croft Hall surgeries, public health and the
local community to assess potential new ways
of reducing health inequalities and
encouraging greater community involvement.
At the time the project took place
Public Health were in the process of
transferring to the Local Authority
and therefore had limited
capacity to engage.

Recommendation (3b): Further
analysis of health issues and
collaboration with GPs and CCG
should be led by newly appointed
Public Health Consultant, with a
remit to work with community and CCG
to support co produced solutions to
health inequalities.

4. Play area - overwhelmingly the top
priority for all age groups —set up a
residents group fo look at options and work
with Council and Play Torbay to secure a facility
or activities, either permanently or in holiday
periods — this is key fo changing the negative
perception of younger people living in the
area.

5. Develop The Clipper into more of a community
resource, to ensure it is more viable
and better used by more of the
community

6. Community Facilities —
Recommendation 6 (a)
Work with the local churches to
utilize existing buildings with
capacity for additional
community activities
Recommendation 6 b) Scout Hall -
A potential community resource,
unused and falling into disrepair -
explore potential for re instating
its use as a community facility
Recommendation 6 c) Explore
potential for community space
within proposed re located GP
surgery in Roebuck House

7. Rock Road laundry site — owned by the Council,
being marketed for sale. Major concern of
residents as symbolic of an area
that is not cared for by the
authority and that it will be
bought and land banked
for later development, i.e.
will remain an eyesore. ClIr
+  Darren Cowell has made
- representations to Council
that it will be a condition of
sale to prevent this.
Recommendation: If unsuccessful,

consider supporting the community to
convert it info a green space, which is
much needed in this neighbourhood

y

8. Street cleanliness — Work
with TOR2 to improve the
area and support
development of longer
term sustainable solution
for Waste & Recycling
and Street Cleansing
services

9. Road maintenance - road
surfacing on Coburg Place should
be prioritized by Torbay Council

10. Dog Fouling — This was raised by the

maijority of people surveyed and efforts need
fo be confinued to successfully prosecute the
offending owners, galvanizing residents to take
a more active role in getting admissible court
evidence.

Page 86

21



1. Longer term work:

a. More targeted work with single
working age people out of work — link
to ¢ below

b. Street party / other community events
to help build more active sense of
community

C. Make use of newly funded
Community Connector to be focused
on Torquay town centre from
September 2013 as part of the
successful Coastal Communities fund,
Riviera Renaissance Assef Based
Community Development project
(ABCD), which is focused on working
positively with those furthest from the
labour market (to include asset
mapping, tools to assist in mapping
assets are available at hitp://
www.abcdinstitute.org/resources/)

2. There is funding available to assist the
community with their priorities:

a. Community First — funding up to £2500
(requires matching in time /
resources) - priorities are:

i. Toempower the community of

Tormohun and increase the
aspirations of residents

ii. Toimprove the environment of
Tormohun

iii. Toreduce anti-social
behaviour in Tormohun

iv. Toreduce health inequalities
in Tormohun

V. To bridge the gap between
older and younger people in
Tormohun and improve
facilites for young people

b. Awards for All - Big Lottery up to
£10,000

Page 87
22



References

Croall, H. (1998) Crime and Society in Britain. Longman, Harlow. p.261-262

Cummins, J. and Miller, C. (2007) An OPM Briefing Paper: Co-production, social capital and service
effectiveness [Online] Available at: http://www.commissioningsupport.org.uk/idocdec4.pdf?
docid=b338a315-b38c-4c8e-b7e5-c414c8d5e4f5& version=-1

Dahlgren,G. and Whitehead,M. (1991) Determinants of Health Model [Online] Available at: http://
www.nap.edu/books/030908704X/xhtml/images/p200080909404002.jpg

Dixon, K. (2013) The History (Unpublished)

Dorling, D (2009) Unemployment and Health. British Medical Journal, 338:b829 [Online] Available at: http://
www.bmj.com/content/338/bm|.0829

Grover, C. (2008) ‘Young Men' in Crime and Inequdlity. Willan Publishing, Cullompton

Haines, D. (2011) Wider social determinants per GP practice in Torbay (Sources: Nomisweb official labour
market statistics and 2010 GP practice list, The Practitioner and Patient Services Agency (PPSA) [Online]
Available at: http://www.nomisweb.co.uk/)

Ellaway A and Macintyre S (1998) Does housing tenure predict health in the UK because it exposes people
to different levels of housing related hazards in the home or its surroundings? Health and Place, 4 (2), pp.
141-150 [Online] Available at: hitp://www.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/pubmed/10671018

Improvement and Development Agency [IDeA] (2010) A Glass Half Full - how an
asset approach can improve community health and wellbeing [Online] Available at: hitp://

www.local.gov.uk/web/guest/health/-/journal content/56/10171/3511449/ARTICLE-TEMPLATE

Office of National Statistics [ONS] (2011) Neighbourhood Statistics [Online] Available at: http://
neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination/datasetlist.do?
$ph=60&updateRequired=true&step=1&CurrentTreelndex=-1&Expand13=1#13

UCL Institute of Health Equity [UCL] (2010) Fair Society Healthy Lives: The Marmot Review — Strategic Review
of Health Inequalities in England post-2010 [Online] Available atf: http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/
projects/fair-society-healthy-lives-the-marmot-review

Page 88
23



Healthwatch Torbay

website: hitp://

www.headlthwatchtorbay.org.uk

email:
info@healthwatchtorbay.org.uk

Facebook Healthwatch Torbay
Twitter: @HWTorbay

Freephone 08000520029

Special thanks to

Dave at the Clipper Inn

e EEEEEEEEEE ===

Doug Haines, Public Health Analyst, for
supporting the statistical aspect of the project.
QUEST members for assisting us with the survey.

Sarah Warren for the data analysis

Melville Hill Community Group

website http://

www.rothtorquay.co.uk

email:
melvillehillcommunitygroup@gm

Contacts

Torbay Social Enterprise Network

website: http://

www.torbaysen.org.uk

email:

info@torbaysen.org.ukFacebook:

ail.com

Facebook: Melville Hill

Tel: 07976 10 66 33

Twitter: @TorbaySEN

Tel: 01803 212638

Making Melville Marvelous Project

designed and produced by
Shiny Productions

patricia.shiny@icloud.com

M mEmEmEEEEEEEE ===



Title:

Agenda Iltem 9

TORBAY ™~
Health- Wellbeing
— BOARD

Working together for a healthier Torbay

Update Report — Children’s Services

Wards Affected: ALL

To: Health and On: 19" September 2013
Wellbeing Board

Contact: Richard Williams
Telephone: 208401
Email: Richard.williams@torbay.qgov.uk

1.

I have utilised a copy of a report to the Torbay Safeguarding Children’s Board

to provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with an update for Children’s Services.

Purpose

1.1

1.2

To outline to Members the continuing improvement journey for the Local
Authority Children’s Service

To provide Members with an outline of the financial challenges for the Local
Authority Children’s Services

2. Summary

2.1

2.2

Children’s Services is continuing on its improvement journey and is positive
about being formally removed from Intervention in December 2013.

The financial challenges facing the Local Authority over the next two years will
call for ever clearer partnership response to both reduce demand and respond
appropriately to our collective statutory duties.

3. Report

3.1

3.2

Following the Ofsted Inspection of Safeguarding in February/March 2013 the
Local Authority began discussions with the DfE to formally remove our
intervention status. This has not happened immediately for a number of
reasons, but essentially there was a need to establish a level of confidence that
the changes that had been initiated and recognised by Ofsted could be
sustained.

To achieve this Professor Ray Jones would continue to visit over the next three
months and provide reports to the DfE on our progress. The conditions of the
Intervention Notice will then be considered at a formal review meeting in early
December and I am confident that at this stage the Intervention Notice should
be removed.

% Page 90 NHS



3.3

AIM

#*

My level of confidence in this emanates from a number of developments that
have taken place since the Inspection

. A new Lead Member for Children’s Services (Cllr Ken Pritchard) has settled

into the role and provides an ongoing support and challenge role both to
Officers, Members and Partners. A new Executive Head of Finance and
Operations (Chief Executive, Steve Parrock) has been appointed to Torbay
Council that will stabilise the organisation and provide leadership
(alongside the Mayor) for the future. Finally, the appointment of the new
Chair of the Safeguarding Board will bring a wealth of experience to bear
on our continuing improvement journey.

. A new Improvement Executive has been set up and meets for the first time

early September. The Terms of Reference for the Executive are:

To lead the delivery of the Children’s Partnership Improvement process,
securing excellent outcomes for children via the highest quality professional
practice, leadership, management and partnership working

OBJECTIVES

%

L

To monitor and direct the implementation of all the recommendations
identified by Ofsted, peer reviews and address the actions arising from
serious incidents

To evaluate, support and challenge the progress being made across the
partnership in improving safeguarding services and support for children

To manage and oversee the mitigation of risks and issues arising from the
improvement process and where necessary remove the barriers to
improvement

To provide added reassurance to the Department of Education that the
appropriate pace and scope of improvement across children’s safeguarding is
being achieved.

To receive, circulate and ensure the improvement plan addresses the
outcomes from external reviews.

GOVERNANCE

The Children’s Improvement Executive will be chaired by the Director of Children’
Services, who will report directly to the Chair of the Local Safeguarding Children’s
Board and the Executive Director of Operations and Finance at Torbay Council.

2| Page
Page 91



The Membership of the Executive is:-

Chair: Richard Williams, Director Children’s Services

Members

Cllr Ken Pritchard Executive Lead for Children, Schools
and Families, Torbay Council

Mike Lock Headteacher Combe Pafford School

Paul Northcott Detective Superintendant, Devon and
Cornwall Police

Ms Jane Viner Director of Nursing Professional
Practice and People’s Experience,
SDHT

To be nominated Torbay Community Development
Trust

Gill Gant Director of Quality Governance
South Devon and Torbay Clinical
Commissioning

Dr Bob Brown Director of Nursing and Professional
Practice, TSDHT

David Taylor Chair, TSCB

The Executive will exist in its current role until the Improvement Notice is removed
and will allow time for the LSCB to be reviewed and a possible revised structure to be
implemented. The real challenge for the Executive will be to monitor ongoing
improvements but also to pro-actively provide the executive leadership to a real
multi-agency response to Safeguarding in Torbay.

3.

The Children’s Partnership Improvement Plan was recognised by Ofsted as an
effective vehicle for change in Torbay. We have revisited the Plan and revised
the projects to reflect the current situation. As previously many of the projects
have ‘multi-agency’ working running through the middle of them and learning
from the past we need to make sure that where appropriate this is reflected in
the project groups that support the work.

The key aspect of the CPIP was the discipline that was developed through the
project management process and this resource has been retained to support
ongoing improvements.

The Improvement Executive will on behalf of the LSCB oversee the closure of
the previous plan and the ongoing implementation of the new plan.

A review has taken place for Children’s Services to ensure that it takes on
board the learning from the previous two years, is fit for purpose and is

3|Page
Page 92



3.4

sustainable. Operational management of the full safequarding process is
therefore being streamlined under one Executive Head and a new
commissioning team is being created jointly with adults, health and housing to
ensure we maximise opportunities in the future. These changes along with
other integrated approaches are currently being worked through for full
implementation from April 2014.

In my eighteen months as Director of Children’s Services in Torbay I have seen
a significant cultural change both internally within Children’s Services and
externally with partners. Internally the service would often, in the past, dance
around a problem, dealing with the symptoms and missing the underlying
cause. Staff almost appeared afraid of raising issues and would therefore keep
their heads down and carry on working a system that often worked against
them. This has fundamentally changed and although there is always room for
improvement we are now effective in resolving some of the long term issues
that have underpinned poor performance in the past.

The relationship with partners has slowly improved during the improvement
process and I now perceive willingness and indeed an enthusiasm to work
together and share responsibility. This has been gathering momentum with a
number of new developments and we are at a critical point where it needs to
move from strategic/management discussions to influence day to day
operational processes for frontline practitioners and middle managers.

The developments I have outlined provide me with a level of confidence in the
continuing improvement process. However, I do retain a clear understanding of
some of the challenges and realities that we will face. I have highlighted four
of these to illustrate this:-

Budget: The financial pressures on Local Authorities are increasing with the
demands being drawn down from central Government. The targets for the
Local Authority will potentially exceed £22m over the next two years and this
will inevitably impact on Children’s Services. As this process has now been
ongoing for the past two years the majority of discretionary services have
already gone and the inevitable impact will fall on early intervention/targeted
support.

Organisation: I am not sure that within my thinking and years in Children’s
Services I have ever experienced a time without change. However at this time
all organisations seem to be turning themselves inside out. A characteristic of
organisational change and of staff involved in the process is to look inwards
and seek security through the comfort of the known. An organisation that is
changing and in parallel implementing budget reductions, is only likely to
exasperate this situation.

Demand: The changes that are being driven at a national level and ironically
the increased levels of confidence in the safeguarding services are driving up
the number of contacts and referrals to the Safeguarding Service. The result

4|Page
Page 93



of this, in recent months, has been a steady increase in pressure within the
system and parallel pressures on individual Social Workers.

e Perception: The increasing interest from the Media on issues relating to
safeguarding and in particular the ‘blame culture’ associated with this places
additional pressure on all levels of staff. The constant need to look for the
negative overrides the consistent high quality of work undertaken by the
majority of staff.

Each of these issues brings with it an additional challenge that rolled in together
only serve to increase the pressures on individual organisations. As noted in the
paper the natural reaction in these circumstances is to turn inwards, but the
solution is often within our ability to work more effectively together and share
both responsibility and accountability for safeguarding children.

Recommendations

4.1 Itis recommended that Partners:-
Note the report
Welcome the continuing improvement journey
Pro-actively commit to the ongoing partnership approach in Torbay to
secure removal from intervention
Pro-actively seek opportunities to further enhance the approach to
reducing demand, statutory intervention and the ongoing improvement
process

5|Page
Page 94



Agenda Iltem 10

TORBAY 7~
Health- Wellbeing
— BOARD

Working together for a healthier Torbay

Title: Children and Young People Update - Health

Wards Affected: All

To: Health and Wellbeing Board
Contact: Siobhan Grady — South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning
Group
Telephone: 01803 652533
Email: Siobhan.grady@nhs.net
1. Purpose

1.1 To provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with an update on progress being
made in relation to the jointly agreed priority areas for Children and Young
People.

1.2 ltis intended by April 2014 to have a single set of outcomes for the Health
and Wellbeing Board which will reflect partner priorities and can be used as a
performance management tool to track progress and trigger collective
response. In regard to children, this work will form part of the Children’s
Improvement Plan.

Priorities:
¢ Child & Adolescent Mental Health Services
e Early Intervention (incl. Call to Action Heath Visiting)
e Disability Services
e Safeguarding
2. Recommendation
2.1 That the report be noted

2.2  That the Health and Wellbeing Board accept and sign up to the “Better health
outcomes for children and young people pledge.”

3. Children and Young Person Redesign Board

3.1 The Children and Young Person Redesign Board has been established and
has currently met twice. Its Terms of Reference are as follows:

Page 95



3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

e To collaborate and co-operate to work towards ensuring that the
commissioning ambitions and intentions of each of the partners are met,
learning from each other and from best practice of other commissioning
organisations.

e To collaborate and co-operate to ensure a focus on quality, children &
families care and experience is maintained.

e Respond collaboratively to national and regional initiatives and
developments

e Manage internal and external stakeholders and relationships effectively

o Work towards a reduction in health inequality and improvement in health
and well-being

¢ Enable the benefit of working together on achieving best value for money
and optimising productivity and efficiency

The membership of the group brings together both commissioners and
providers as well as pubic involvement:

South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group.

Torbay Council

NEW Devon Clinical Commissioning Group/ Devon County Council
South Devon Healthcare Foundation Trust

Torbay & Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust

Virgin Care

Strategic Public Involvement Group — South Devon representative
Strategic Public Involvement Group — Torbay representative Redesign
Board.

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (Torbay)

Increased pressure on local CAMHS service continues with the complexity of
need among children and young people presenting as well as the rise in
numbers of referrals.

This is in addition to the on going staffing vacancies within the team.
Interviews for Consultant Psychiatrist are due in September along with a
number of other posts.

With each vacancy the opportunity to relook at skill mix of team has been
taken, for instance 2 x Family therapists have been appointed, one to work in
the generic team but with a focus on social care and safeguarding and
another which has been joint funded with the local authority to provide a
service to the Youth Offending Service and Family Intervention Service.

Page 96



4.4  The service performance measures are as follows:

Apr-13 | May-13 | Jun-13 | Jul-13 YTD
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual

Measure

CAMHS - Urgent referrals seen within 1 week (%)

CAMHS - No. waiting > 18 wks for treatment

Wait times remain an issue as well as the flexibility to respond proactively to
early intervention and preventative work at a Tier 2 level. Following an
internal review of the Tier 2 service the provider has been required to submit a
Management Improvement Plan.

4.2 Tier 4 — Inpatient.

Access to specialist in-patient beds has been escalated as a risk by Devon
and there is cross CCG and specialist commissioning work in addressing this
issue. Action to address this includes: business case to reopen Taunton
beds and a business case being led by the Devon service supported by
Devon Commissioners to develop an assertive outreach sat within Tier 3
operating at a 3/ 3 ", in depth analysis of services and activity for eating
disorder placements. Wider consideration needs to be given to extend this
business case to include Torbay.

4.3 Needs Assessment

A joint mental health needs assessment (adult and children) has been
completed by Devon Public Health team which covers Devon, Plymouth and
Torbay. It provides some useful information based on national prevalence
although is limited in presenting local service activity data. The relevant
recommendations to children and Torbay are as follows:

e Service review of activity recording and data quality as part of plans for
improvement.

o Carry out further analysis of self-harm activity data to gain a better
understanding of the variation shown to inform future service provision

¢ Review current service provision for eating disorders and agree an
appropriate care pathway based on the latest NIC guidance.

¢ Improve access to prescribing data by age group via the primary care
data warehouse to support life course analysis.

e Review existing local suicide prevention strategies and consider the
opportunity to refresh in light of the national strategy, o a peninsula
wide basis to ensure an alignment of objectives and promote
consistent preventive action.

Page 97



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

¢ Undertake an improved audit and mapping exercise of the access to
both commissioned mental health services and wider community based
mental health support services.

Government Pledge

A letter went to all Health and Wellbeing Board Chairs on the 20" July 2013
from Dan Poulter, Department of Health Children’s Health Minister and other
experts, asking local authorities to sign up to the Government’s “Better health
outcomes for children and young people pledge”. The pledge is a part of
the February 2013 system wide response, to the Children and Young
People’s Health Outcomes Forum Report (2012).

A copy of the pledge is attached as Appendix 1.

The Pledge focuses on addressing the variation in health outcomes for British
children compared to those from other countries as well as improvements in
specific areas. The Pledge asks us to focus on system wide change to work
in partnership to deliver five ambitions:

1 | Children, young people and their families will be at the heart of decision-making,
with the health outcomes that matter most to them taking priority.

2 | Services, from pregnancy through to adolescence and beyond, will be high
quality, evidence based and safe, delivered at the right time, in the right place,
by a properly planned, educated and trained workforce

3 | Good mental and physical health and early interventions, including for children
and young people with long term conditions, will be of equal importance to
caring for those who become acutely unwell.

4 | Services will be integrated and care will be coordinated around the individual,
with an optimal experience of transition to adult services for those young people
who require ongoing health and care in adult life

5 | There will be clear leadership, accountability and assurance and organisations will work in
partnership for the benefit of children and young people.

The pledge asks for joint commitment to:

Reduce child deaths.

Prevent ill health and improve opportunities for better long term health.
Improve the mental health of children/ young people.

Support and protect the most vulnerable.

Provide better care for children and young people.

The majority of the Pledge’s ambitions and joint commitments are specifically
set out already in South Devon and Torbay CCG’s Children’s Work Plan and
the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The Pledge’s joint working approach is
particularly relevant to SDT CCG where services are commissioned for
children crossing local authority boundaries.

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to officially become signatories to
the Pledge.

Page 98




6.1

6.2

Disability Services
SEND

In delivering against the Children and Families Bill, Torbay Council and SDT
CCG have been working together to understand the local implications of the
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities element. The changes being:

o Statements of Special Educational Needs (SEN), will be replaced by
new birth to 25 Education Health and Care plans (EHC), extended to
age 25 where a person stays in education,

Personal budgets will be introduced for EH+C plans.
Greater involvement of parents and experience in the EH+C plan.

¢ An increased contribution from health care professionals to MDT
meetings and reports.

4% of young people aged 0 -19 are statemented for Special Educational
Needs in Torbay, (900), which is considered high. There are additional
numbers of those aged 19-25. 3.65% of Devon’s total 0-19 population also
has a statement.

A working group has been established with provider, commissioner and local
authority representation and an event is planned on the 10th September, to
be headed by Andre Imich from the DfE and the Southampton pathfinder
authority, to whom Torbay is aligned. The event will provide an overview and
help us consider the challenges we face and the solutions successful
pathfinders have implemented. An action plan will be developed following this
event and progress will be reported through the Paediatrics CPG and the
Children’s Redesign Board.

Devon have been a pathfinder for 18 months and have already developed the
Devon Assessment Framework, (DAF) which they will start to roll out in their
Southern Locality in late 2013/ early 2014.

Children with Complex Care Needs/Disabilities

Torbay Council has instigated a new Children’s Access to Resources,
Disability Panel, ensuring that specialised commissioned placements for
children with disabilities and complex health needs are considered within a
multi-agency forum, this is of particular relevance to jointly funded
placements. The Panel provides greater assurance that children are placed
appropriate to their needs and involves specialist expertise in how best to
support them and their families. This Panel will also discuss IPP cases for
those children who were placed under the block contract for respite care,
which Torbay Council’s CIS team had managed on behalf of SDT CCG. This
Panel is meeting monthly.

A multi-agency group met in mid-September to review the Children’s

Integrated Service for Disabilities in Torbay. The meeting concluded that the
team make up was appropriate to deliver the required service and that

Page 99



referrals are now successfully going through the Council’s Children’s Hub.
Further work is planned to consider the better integration of the team, the OT
organisational split and utilisation of any savings.

SDT CCG has been working with the CQC in preparation for a potential
inspection focusing on young people who are about to, or have recently
transitioned to adults services. SDT CCG has been working with SDHFT and
TSDHCT, with input from VCL, to review cases for young people 14-25, with
complex health needs. SDT CCG would expect to be notified of any
confirmed inspection towards the end of September.

Autism Pathway Review

Work is being undertaken to review the referral and diagnostic pathway for
Autism, based on the model being used in Devon, where children are
assessed by a Multi Disciplinary Team. It is anticipated that a business case
will be brought to SDT CCG for discussion in September following
commitment to redesign from all relevant providers and commissioners.

Engagement

The Children’s Redesign Board has directed that a Children’s Engagement
Task and Finish Group be established to ensure the CCG learns, at every
opportunity, the views of service users, parents and carers across South
Devon and Torbay. Membership will include Healthwatch and Strategic
Public Involvement Group (SPIG) to avoid duplication and to enable access to
thoughts already captured. The engagement action plan will be monitored by
the Paediatric Clinical Pathway Group, with updates provided to the Children’s
Redesign Board. Engagement has already taken place with consultation at
the Fair Access to the Fair Day, for children with disabilities and through the
Equality Delivery System Review Event.

Page 100



Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1

Better health outcomes
for children and young people

Our pledge uoicarone  ADCS

. COLLEGES Leading Children’s Services
Q CareQuality | a& a— .

Commission R o0
Department NHS CONFEDERATION o

By L gy of Health ®oo0’
@ Y Birmingham Children’s Hospital INHS |

NHS Foundation Trust

&
%
L
Y,
>

Regulating Medicines and Medical Devices

[ ] P ] .
FACULTY OF m
PUBLIC HEALTH . :
Local L Natlo_nairl Institute for
h!] E Government Clinical Excellence The .
Information

England """ NHS Il Centre

Warrington for health and social care
m Clinical Commissioning Group

Health Education England

» The British Society of

healthwatch ﬁ " Paediatric Dentistry

England

w Royal College
of Nursing

G P General Practitioners SOCIETY

ROYAL
Royal College of ¥ PHARMACEUTICAL

R< Trust
I td a Development
PSY( H So ace Authority
Royal College of
Paediatrics and Child Health Quality. Delivery. Sustainability.

ROYAL COLLEGE OF
PSYCHIATRISTS

Page 101



Better health outcomes for children and young people: Our pledge }

The foundations for virtually every aspect
of human development — physical, intellectual, and

emotional — are laid in early childhood.
(Marmot)

Children and young people growing up in England today are healthier than they ever have
been before. Health care and social changes have had dramatic impacts. Previously common
killer diseases are now rare. More children with serious illnesses and disabilities are surviving
into adulthood and the infant mortality rate has fallen to less than a quarter of what it was
at the beginning of the 1960s.

But international comparisons and worrying long-term trends demonstrate there is room
for improvement, with poor health outcomes for too many children and young people
compared with other countries. A smaller group of more vulnerable children — such as
looked after children — suffer much worse outcomes. The variation in outcomes and quality
of healthcare for children and young people is unacceptable. The clear evidence that
pregnancy and the earliest years are critical to the future health and wellbeing of children
and adults and that evidence-based early interventions can have significant positive impacts
does not always inform how services are commissioned.

The need for improvement is not new; numerous reports have highlighted the issues.
Individual initiatives have led to improvements in specific areas, but have not resulted in
the system wide changes required to improve outcomes. What is new is the opportunity
to ensure the focus on outcomes in the new health and care system includes children and
young people clearly and explicitly, from conception through to adulthood.

We are committed to improving the health outcomes of our
children and young people so that they become amongst the best
in the world.

System-wide change is required to achieve this and each part of the system, at each level,

has a vital contribution to make. To this end we pledge to work in partnership, both locally
and nationally, with children, young people and their families.

Page 102



{ Better health outcomes for children and young people: Our pledge

Our shared ambitions are that:

Children, young people and their families will be at the heart of decision-making,
with the health outcomes that matter most to them taking priority.

Services, from pregnancy through to adolescence and beyond, will be high
quality, evidence based and safe, delivered at the right time, in the right place,
by a properly planned, educated and trained workforce.

Good mental and physical health and early interventions, including for children
and young people with long term conditions, will be of equal importance to
caring for those who become acutely unwell.

Services will be integrated and care will be coordinated around the individual,
with an optimal experience of transition to adult services for those young people
who require ongoing health and care in adult life.

There will be clear leadership, accountability and assurance and organisations will
work in partnership for the benefit of children and young people.

We all have a part to play in promoting the importance of the health of our children
and young people.

Through our joint commitment and efforts we are determined to:

® reduce child deaths through evidence based public health measures and by providing the
right care at the right time;

* prevent ill health for children and young people and improve their opportunities for
better long-term health by supporting families to look after their children, when they need
it, and helping children and young people and their families to prioritise healthy behaviour;

® improve the mental health of our children and young people by promoting resilience and
mental wellbeing and providing early and effective evidence based treatment for those
who need it;

® support and protect the most vulnerable by focusing on the social determinants of health
and providing better support to the groups that have the worst health outcomes;

® provide better care for children and young people with long term conditions and
disability and increase life expectancy of those with life limiting conditions.

Page 103



Better health outcomes for children and young people: Our pledge J

Because

the all-cause mortality rate for children aged 0 — 14 years has moved from the average
to amongst the worst in Europe’

26% of children’s deaths showed ‘identifiable failure in the child's direct care™
more than 8 out of 10 adults who have ever smoked regularly started before 193
more than 30% of 2 to 15 year olds are overweight or obese*

half of life time mental illness starts by the age of 14°

nearly half of looked after children have a mental health disorder and two thirds have
at least one physical health complaint®

about 75% of hospital admissions of children with asthma could have been prevented in
primary care’

Building momentum

At national level a new Children and Young People’s Health Outcomes Board, led by the
Chief Medical Officer, will bring together key system leaders in child health to provide a
sustained focus and scrutiny on improving outcomes across the whole child health system.

A new Children and Young People’s Health Outcomes Forum will provide both ongoing
expertise in child health and offer constructive challenge to the next phase of this work.
The Forum will hold an annual summit involving the CMO to monitor progress on child
health outcomes and make recommendations for their improvement.

The Children and Young People’s Health Outcomes Forum report and system response
can be found at http://www.dh.gov.uk/health/2012/07/cyp-report/

For the very first time, everyone across the health and care system is determined to play
their part in improving health outcomes for children and young people.

[C, I NV E N

Wolfe |, Cass H,Thompson MJ et al. Improving child health services in the UK: insights from Europe
and their implications for the NHS reforms. BMJ 2011; 342:d1277

CEMACH report 2008

Healthy Lives, Healthy People — our strategy for public health in England. Department of Health (2010)
Health Survey for England 2010

Kessler R, Angermeyer M, Anthony J et al. Lifetime prevalence and age-of-onset distributions of mental
disorders in the World Health Organization's World Mental Health Survey Initiative. World Psychiatry
2007 Oct; 6(3):168-76

DfE Outcomes for children looked after as at 31 March 2012

Asthma UK. Wish you were here — England (2008).

Page 104



Agenda Item 11

Title:

TORBAY ™~
Health- Wellbeing
— BOARD

Working together for a healthier Torbay

Collaboration without Duplication

Wards Affected: All

To:

Health and Wellbeing Board On: 19 September 2013

Contact: Gerry Cadogan
Telephone: 01803 207342
Email: gerry.cadogan@torbay.gov.uk

1.1

Purpose

Torbay regularly achieves national recognition for being innovative and
leading the way in terms of health and social care. In a time where there are
financial constraints, and staff are already working to full capacity, instead of
creating new groups and starting new processes to address issues identified
above, there is an opportunity to collaborate and co-operate to ensure that
there is:

o Clarity about the finances available for consultation, advice and
information;

e One process, agreed and signed up to by all the funding organisations in
the Bay, which identifies who will co-ordinate, how the process is best
delivered to ensure that is both current, and accessible to all, when
consultations occur, and is monitored by the people and organisations of
the Bay.

e How is independence and credibility maintained- can organisations
providing services effectively evaluate and monitor their impact on the
users and carers?.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board discuss this paper and identify the most
cost-effective way forward which ensures the most comprehensive service.
The process can be managed as a project which will report regularly to the
Health and Wellbeing Board which is the overarching group that oversees the
Health and Wellbeing Strategy for the people of Torbay.

Supporting Information

At a previous meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board there was a
discussion about the fact that there needed to be some clarity around the co-
ordination of information, advice and consultation with the general public and
with patients, clients and carers around health and social care issues.

ORBAY NHS

— Page 105



3.2

3.3

3.4

Currently the following organisations covering the Torbay area are providing
these services as part of their role:

e The Clinical Commissioning Group (undertakes Advice and Liaison in the
community, except in relation to primary care services which is covered by
NHS England);

e Healthwatch Torbay, which covers health and social care issues in Torbay;

¢ Local Authority, which undertakes consultation exercises on a variety of
issues;

e Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust, who deliver
information services in terms of health and social care, and undertake
consultation;

e The variety of other health and care voluntary and community sector
organisations that provide information and advice to people in the Bay.

As a result of the work currently being undertaken by the above, the following
issues have arisen:

1. There is a substantial amount of finance involved in developing,
implementing and maintaining the above services. This relates to actual
funding allocations within the various organisations themselves, and/or
funding available for the Torbay area. There is no understanding of the
total amount of finances currently (or potentially) being used for the
purposes identified in paragraph one above. Each organisation that holds
the finances tends to prefer to lead on its allocation.

2. Consultation, information and advice services require ongoing time
commitment and staffing in order to remain current. Currently there are
processes in place which took time to develop but are not regularly
maintained (Torbay Directory), separate consultation processes, separate
advice, information and complaints procedures, yet all relating to the same
group of people, that is, the population of Torbay, but all managed by
different organisation. Services are often impatient that for effective
consultation to occur, there needs to be time set aside for this.

The points identified in 1 and 2 above, lead inevitably to the fact that there is
constant duplication of information, advice and consultation processes.
These elements need to be planned, undertaken comprehensively yet swiftly,
stand up to scrutiny, and deliver meaningful outcomes which are supported by
the organisations in Torbay.

Relationship to Joint Strategic Needs Assessment

To ensure that the needs within the JSSNA are met in the most cost effective
and efficient way.

Relationship to Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

To ensure that the outcomes within the JHWS are delivered in the most cost
effective and efficient way.

Page 106



Agenda Item 12

TORBAY 7~
Health- Wellbeing
— BOARD

Working together for a healthier Torbay

Title: Winterbourne View Action Plan
Wards Affected: All On: 19 September 2013
To: Health and Wellbeing Board
Contact: Siobhan Grady — South Devon and Torbay Clinical
Commissioning Group
Julie Foster — Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS
Trust
Telephone: 01803 652533/01803 881332
Email: Siobhan.grady@nhs.net/ Julie.foster8@nhs.net
1. Purpose
1.1 To provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with an update on progress being
made in relation to the jointly agreed action plan for Winterbourne View.
1.2  There is a master copy of actions which have been agreed by each of the
organisations involved: Torbay Council, South Devon & Torbay CCG; Torbay
& Southern Devon Health & Care Trust. A Winterbourne View Steering Group
meets quarterly to review this plan (which also includes the Joint
Commissioner for Devon County Council and NEW Devon CCG) with
individual organisation responsible for progressing their own actions and in-
house governance on a more regular basis.
2, Recommendation
2.1 That the report be noted as update in relation to implementing the
recommendations coming from the Winterbourne View concordat.
3. Themes
3.1 The key themes and planned actions have been summarised below

Commissioner:

1. Care market which meets the complex needs of individuals; in terms of
their housing need, support and care.

2. Rapid response and crisis services which can respond and access to
specialist expertise in to continue to support people in more
appropriate community settings.

Page 107



4.1

4.2

Strengthen links between acute and primary care to reduce inequalities
in healthcare access.

Specifications will be reviewed and provider performance monitored to
ensure improvements in provision is maintained and evidence of
quality of reviews.

Overarching Learning Disability Strategy with local implementation plan
to address gaps in delivery identified through the self assessment
process and inform the Market Position statement.

Review of Learning Disability Partnership Board with establishment of
a health subgroup.

Commissioning protocols for dealing with Ordinary Residence issues
and rebasing exercise for movement of specialist commissioning
funded placements.

Providers:

1.

Actively review and make regular contact with individuals to plan for
their repatriation to their home area or to the least restrictive
environment as appropriate to meet their specific needs.

. Care management processes and specialist health services are

equipped to manage and plan for individuals returning from out of area
and to avoid whenever possible any more people being placed outside
of their home area.

Workforce skills assessment and development

4. Initiate transitional working early so that adult and children services are

7.

planning together for future needs, in particular those with complex
needs and challenge behaviours.

Take positive steps in making Torbay a safer place to live by working
closely with partners especially the Police

Improve the experience of the service user and their family throughout
safeguarding adult procedures, with a focus on candour and
transparency and enabling full participation.

Quality of provision

Monitoring Our Position

We have agreed to implement the pathway approach and use of the ‘Seven
Step’ model’ created by NEW Devon CCG (Appendix 1) which will be used by
care managers and commissioner to help progress the person from
institutional care and monitor the performance of services responsible and
provide an understanding of our position.

Each month we are monitoring the people on our register to see how we have
progressed against the pathway.

Page 108



Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1

Winterbourne View Action Plan

‘Seven Step’

model’ created by NEW Devon CCG

¢ |dentification of the person as part of the review list regarding
Winterbourne View

e Care manager is allocated and briefed
¢ An initial review takes place

¢ An individual service design is completed

e Clinival care plans and risak assessment and managemnt plans are
incorporated

~

¢ The Legal Framework is apllied and considers the need for Mental Capacity
assessments, Best interset meetings, including Court of protection if
required

¢ The Mental Health act status is confirmed, and plans are agreed and
developed with clinicians )

e Support provider is identified
¢ Housing is identified
¢ Contracts and tenancy agreements are signed

¢ The staff team is recruited around the person

e Staff are trained and are involved in the working policy documentation and
any additional risk assessment and management planning

* The move takes place

¢ Ongoing monitoring and support takes place
* The person is transferred off the Winterbourne View list

— _J

s
v
Y
v
V

Page 109



Agenda Iltem 13

TORBAY ™~
Health- Wellbeing
— BOARD

Working together for a healthier Torbay

Title: Public Health: Sexual Health Services Update

Wards Affected: All

To: Health & Wellbeing Board On: 19 September 2013
Contact: Nanette Amos
Telephone: 01803 207352
Email: nanette.amos@torbay.gcsx.qov.uk
1. Context

1.1 On 1 April 2013, the Public Health Commissioning function returned to local
government, after 40 years with the NHS. The DH (2013) states that, /ocal
authorities are well placed to understand all the needs of their population and to
provide joined-up services which meet those needs. Sexual health services are part
of the public health function.

1.2 In addition to the Local Authority Public Health Commissioning team, certain sexual
health services are also commissioned by the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
and NHS England (Appendix 2) and Health and Wellbeing Boards have a duty to
promote integrated working between commissioners of health and social care and
will play a key role in ensuring that the sexual health services and care received by
their communities is seemless (DH, 2013).

1.3 Public Health teams reports nationally on three indicators:

e Under 18 conceptions
o Chlamydia diagnoses for 15-24 year olds
¢ People diagnosed with HIV at a late stage of infection.

There are also national mandatory data collections for sexual health, including:

e Genitourinary Medicine Clinical Activity Dataset (GUMCAD) for STls
e Chlamydia Testing Activity Dataset (CTAD)
¢ HIV and AIDS Reporting System (HARS).

Local Sexual Health outcomes are produced in Quarterly Indicator Reports, and
Torbay’s report is attached at Appendix 1.

1.4 This report fits with Torbay Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, specifically:

e Outcome 1, Priority 3: Reduce Teenage Pregnancy
e Qutcome 2, Priority 9: Increase Sexual Health Screening.

ORBAY NHS

— Page 110



1.5

21

2.2

This report acknowledges that in the outlining of sexual health services for Members,
some services were, and always have been, in the hands of the Local Authority.

Local Background

Operation Mansfield, a multi-agency operation in 2011, uncovered the sexual
abuse/exploitation of a number of girls in Torbay. The subsequent Serious Case
Review identified the unorganised and opportunistic abuse of vulnerable girls linked
to the supply and misuse of drugs and alcohol.

The sexual health budget for Torbay was disaggregated on 1 April 2013 to different
commissioning organisations (Appendix 2) as commissioning responsibilities were
shared between Torbay Council Public Health team, NHS England and the CCG.
The Torbay Council budget for 2013/14 for public health amounts to approximately
£1.887m. This is broken down broadly as follows:

e STI Screening — including HIV prevention, awareness and testing, Chlamydia
testing, Genitourinary Medicine Services (in and out of area), screening in
pharmacies and GP surgeries - £1.162m

o  Contraception — including the provision of long acting reversible contraception
methods, emergency hormonal contraception (morning-after pill), the Boys and
Young Men’s worker and clinics - £0.725m.

Purpose of this Report

e To provide an overview of the elements of sexual health services commissioned
in Torbay.

e To provide an update on national and local Sexual Health initiatives for
September 2013.

e To describe the challenges for sexual health commissioning, going forward.

Introduction

‘Health is a state of complete physical, mental and social wellbeing and not merely
the absence of disease or infirmity’ (WHO, 1948).

Sexual health services are defined as the provision of treatment and advice around
contraception, screening for sexually transmitted infections (STlIs) including HIV and
Chlamydia, relationships, partner notification and abortion (DH 2013). National
direction of travel is towards the commissioning of services that are integrated, and
can offer a ‘one stop shop’ for service users, covering all elements of sexual health,
in one appointment where possible.

The Department of Health (2013) makes the point that whilst sexual relationships are
essentially a private matter, good sexual health is important to individuals and to
society. Most people in the UK are sexually activity and it is a stated government
objective to improve the sexual health of the population (DH, 2013).

Page 111



5.1

To accomplish this, Torbay Public Health team recognises that it must work with
partners to reduce inequalities that exist in the Bay, by taking action to:

¢ build an honest and open culture where everyone is able to make
informed and responsible choices about relationships and sex

e continue to tackle stigma, discrimination and prejudice
continue to work to reduce the rate of sexually transmitted infections

¢ reduce unwanted pregnancies by ensuring people have access to the full
range of contraception in a timely manner

e support women with unwanted pregnancies to make decisions about their
options as early as possible
continue to tackle HIV through prevention and increased access to testing

e promote integration, quality, value for money and innovation in services

(DH, 2013).

Description of Sexual Health Commissioned Services in Torbay

Sexual health services are commissioned and designed to meet the needs of the
population.

Additionally, there are specific groups within the population that have increased
levels of risk and require specific services. The Department of Health (2013) defines
groups requiring the provision of specialised services as including gay and bisexual
men (“MSM”), young people, people with learning disabilities and sex workers.
However, the overall service offered must be ‘open access’ and everyone able to
access the service, irrespective of age, gender or sexual orientation.

Sexual health services commissioned in Torbay are as follows:

Torbay Sexual Medicines Services (TSMS)

TSMS (part of South Devon Healthcare Foundation Trust) is the provider of Torbay’s
sexual health service, and is based at Castle Circus Health Centre. The aims and
objectives of the service are to provide an open access (self-referral),
comprehensive, integrated contraception and sexual health service.

Sexual health services are offered from Castle Circus Health Centre and also take
place in satellite clinics across Torbay. They are delivered by sexual health nursing
staff and health advisors, who are able to refer people onto the consultant-led service
if necessary.

The consultant-led service is the specialist service and provides genitourinary (GU)
and reproductive health care under the leadership of a senior clinician, Dr Phil Kell.
Dr Kell also provides clinical leadership and governance to the outreach services and
satellite clinics, and to external services such as those GPs and Pharmacists who
provide screening, contraceptive and signposting services.

Sexual health services have traditionally been divided into two elements: STI
screening and contraception. However, the national direction of travel is to integrate
services and train/recruit dual trained staff, because of the benefit to patients/service
users of a ‘one stop shop’, as well as the potential for financial savings. Work is

Page 112



52

5.3

underway regionally to provide an Integrated Sexual Health Nurse Training Course,
to support this commissioning direction.

Outreach Team

As part of TSMS, a team works across schools and colleges in Torbay to provide an
sexual health outreach service for young people. The outreach service is generally
nurse-led and includes:

e discussion and counselling on ‘delay’, safer relationships and safer
sexual health

e counselling for all types of contraception

e pregnancy testing — with referral to maternity services or TOPAS as
requested by the service user

e Emergency hormonal contraception — counselling for, and provision
of, prescribed medication
Registration to the C-Card and supply of condoms

e |ssue of first and subsequent oral contraceptive pill and EVRA
contraceptive patch

e Counselling — pre-work and appointments made (if requested) at
nearest suitable clinic for Implanon (sub-dermal hormonal implant),
Depo (hormonal injection) and Intrauterine System (IUS — ‘coil’)

e Chlamydia screening (male and female)
Treatment following a positive Chlamydia screen (antibiotics)

Outreach services in schools and colleges are run on a drop-in basis, and available
to young people at times which are convenient to them.

The outreach team is largely comprised of staff who hold a nursing registration and
this allows them to deliver contraception and nursing advice. In additional to this,
there are a further two roles integrated within the outreach team, the post holders of
which have a social work background, allowing the team to provide a holistic service
to young people:

o Thefirstis arole is employed by Children’s Services and the post holder
works primarily with young people who are deemed at risk of pregnancy,
experiencing relationship abuse from their partner, have low self-esteem or
confidence to access services, and young people who are questioning their
sexual orientation.

e The second role is the Boys and Young Men’s Worker, and the post holder
works primarily with boys and young men and co-ordinates the C-Card
scheme.

STI Screening

The government (2013) reported nearly half a million new sexual infections nationally
in 2012. Part of this rise can be explained by better sexual health reporting systems,
nevertheless, it is suggested that too many people are putting themselves at risk,
through unprotected sex.

The message from Public Health England continues to be that use of condoms and

regular STI testing remains of the highest importance. STls have serious
consequences for the public’s health, including infertility.

Page 113



5.4

5.5

5.6

e Chlamydia is the most common STl in young people under 25 which, if left
untreated, can lead to pelvic inflammatory disease, ectopic pregnancy and
tubal factor infertility. However, ‘Chlamydia is easily diagnosed and easily
treated’ (Public Health England, 2013). Young people can either be tested in
clinic, or by post with a ‘freetestme’ kit available in ‘grab bins’ in GP surgeries
and Pharamcies, or via the Sexwize website. Individuals can choose how to
receive their results, either by post, text, email or letter and treatment is a
course of antibiotics.

e Gonorrhoea and syphilis are often singled out for reports from other STls
because they are important bacterial infections which need to be managed in
genitourinary clinics. New diagnoses of gonorrhoea rose by 21% in 2012,
which is of concern because of the growing resistance of antibiotics to this
bacteria. Further, the group most at risk of acquiring this infection is MSM, for
whom there was a 37% increase in diagnoses last year. Ensuring resistant
strains do not persist and spread remains a Public Health England priority
(Gov.UK 2013).

C-Card Scheme

The C-Card Scheme is a scheme co-ordinated by TSMS where young people aged
under 25 can register and access free condoms at approximately 70 outlets across
Torbay, including youth centres, GP surgeries and schools. In addition, young
people can also access condoms from a vending machine, free of charge under the
C-Card scheme, at South Devon College.

Over the last years, an average of 7,600 condoms are supplied to young people
aged 13-17 years, free of charge, each year. Proportionately more condoms are
supplied, through the C-Card scheme, to service users registered at addresses in the
more deprived communities than other areas. There are known links between the
more deprived communities and prevalence of teenage conceptions.

C-Card is being re-launched in Torbay during September 2013, in line with item 6.2
below.

Sexwize

Sexwize is the brand under which sexual health services for young people are
delivered in Torbay. The website is known as Sexwize and is available at
http://www.s-wize.co.uk/sexwize.htm. The site is currently being updated and
refreshed, with multi media clips, photographs and ‘Top Tips’ for good sexual health
and condom use.

The site is now hosted by Torbay Council and has been made compatible with smart
phones. It provides up to date information in relation to clinic times and venues, as
well as offering FAQs and advice for emergency sexual health situations.

Sexual Health Training for Professionals

Eddystone Trust is commissioned to provide sexual health training for professionals
in Torbay. A number of courses and dates are available on
http://insight/shtraining.pdf.

Courses include how to conduct sexual health interventions with young people,
working with boys and young men, ‘delay’ courses, HIV and Sexual Health

Page 114



5.7

5.8

Awareness, pregnancy testing etc, and support the C-Card distribution scheme being
re-launch, September 2013.

Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are welcome to attend these courses.

Young People Services

e Young People friendly accreditation — the criteria for this accreditation is from the
Department of Health and ten topic areas are assessed for compliance. Topic
areas include staff training, skills, attitudes and values, clinic environment and
publicity, and confidentiality. In Torbay, we have 7 YPF accredited sexual health
clinics, including 4 GP Practices in Torquay and Paignton (Parkhill Surgery,
Chilcote Surgery, Sherwell Valley Medical Practice, Corner Place Surgery), TIC
TAC at Paignton Community College (Borough Road site and Waterleat Road
site) and Castle Circus Health Centre. Torbay had the first accredited YPF
service in the south west, however, reduction in capacity and changes in
personnel has made it difficult to take a more proactive role in recruiting more
services and supporting them to achieve this accreditation.

¢ Relationships and Sex Education (“RSE”) in schools — high quality RSE,
particularly where it starts in primary school, can ensure children and young
people are equipped to cope with the many pressures and challenges of modern
day living, and to protect them from sexual exploitation and abuse (RSE Hub,
2013). Polly Neate, Chief Executive of the charity, Women’s Aid, said on BBC
News (2013) that, all UK children should have high quality education about sex
and relationships to help counter attitudes that foster domestic violence’. To
ensure that children and young people across Torbay have access to high quality
RSE that is carefully planned and implemented from primary through to
secondary education, we will be reviewing current practice and working with the
Torbay Teaching School and curriculum networks locally to develop and continue
to improve education about sex and relationships.

e A secondment position with Torbay Council has been recruited to, to review all
public health services for teenagers, identifying gaps and opportunities and
auditing services against best practice guidance. It is felt that the outcome of
this work will lead to improvements in commissioning, measured by public health
outcomes relating to young people (including the under 18 conception rate and
the under 25 STI new diagnosis rate).

Long Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC)

LARC methods of contraception, namely sub-dermal implants and interauterine
devices (the ‘coil’), are more cost effective than oral contraceptive methods (the pill),
and usage of LARC methods has been estimated to offer potential savings in excess
of £200,000 per 100,000 women (NICE, 2005).

Torbay has 90% coverage of GP surgeries that are trained and able to counsel, fit
and remove LARC.

Further, £10,000 has been made available from the Network and Office of Sexual
Health South West for Torbay, so that TSMS can train and accredit more primary
health care professionals to fit LARC in the community.

LARC methods of contraception are recommended for young people who might

otherwise be felt to be at high risk of an under 18 conception (DH, 2013). There are
financial savings to be made to public health if more women use LARC methods of

Page 115



5.9

5.10

contraception because once fitted, it will provide effective, consistent contraceptive
cover without further action needed on the part of the woman (NICE, 2005).

The role of Pharamacies in sexual health provision

Pharmacies provide confidential sexual health services, on a drop-in basis, including
the provision of emergency hormonal contraception, Chlamydia consultations,
Chlamydia screening and signposting to other sexual health services.

e Emergency hormonal contraception (morning-after pill) is supplied by 32 out
of 39 pharmacies in Torbay. The pharmacist undertakes a brief consultation
with the woman and supply of the drug is confidential (and free of charge to
women under 25 years of age).

e Chlamydia screening is also available to young people under 25 years of age,
using the postal testing kits, situated in ‘grab bins’ in 10 out of the 39
pharmacies. Commissioned pharmacies also hold Chlamydia consultations
on a drop-in basis, and as part of this consultation, young people are
signposted to appropriate sexual health services (ie) C-Card Scheme etc.

Sexual Assault Referral Centres (SARC)

Post 1 April 2013, SARCs are commissioned by NHS England, rather than the
Torbay Public Health Team, however, they remain an integral part of sexual health
services for the people of Torbay (Appendix 2).

People who have been subject to a sexual assault in Torbay are referred to the
SARC (located in Exeter) for care. The SARC offers a holistic service to the
individual and also acts as advocate for the individual and co-ordinator in the legal
process going forward.

People referred into SARC may be one of the following categories:

¢ men or women who have been the subject of a recent sexual assault and are
still within the ‘forensic window’. The individual is seen by a forensic medical
examiner with a view to the collection of evidence for a police prosecution.
They go on to receive care and emotional support for the duration of the
police process from a team of specialists which may involve counselling.

¢ men or women who have been the subject of a historic sexual assault. The
individual receives support and counselling and may — or may not — decide to
give a statement to the police. However, this doesn’t prejudice the care they
receive under SARC.

Children who have been the subject of a sexual assault are seen by specialist
paediatric medical examiners, in the same way as above.

Page 116



5.11

5.12

Torbay usage of SARC services (figures apply to adults only):

Measurement of
Activity — 2013 April | May June | July August
Number of referrals 10 22 24 22 19
of which.. Male 1 2 2 2
Female 10 21 22 20 17
of which.. | Eastern 1 11 8 6 8
Southern 2 0 1 2 2
North Devon 3 2 1 4 4
Torbay 2 6 10 7 4
Mid Devon 2 1 3 3 1
Out of area 0 2 1 0 0

Abortion Services

Responsibility for commissioning abortion services for Torbay lies with the CCG,
although links are maintained between the CCG and the Public Health team. This is
because abortion provider services can play a key role in helping to reduce the risk of
further unwanted pregnancy. The DH (2013) recommends that Public Health teams
work with their CCG to ensure that the local abortion service provider is fully linked
into wider sexual health services, so that contraception services are provided at point
of termination. This is shown to prevent repeat procedures.

Just over half of all teenage conceptions in Torbay end with an abortion.

Whilst live births (to teenage conceptions) are highest in the more deprived
communities, abortions are more evenly distributed across the population. The gap in
the rate of abortions between the most and least deprived communities is less than
that for live births.

Nationally, abortion rates for women under 30 years of age are rising (ONS, 2012).
There is a link between good, accessible and comprehensive contraception advice
for women of all ages, and abortion data.

In 2012, 34.6% of abortion procedures in Torbay and Southern Devon were repeat
abortions (Appendix 1, p.22). Nationally, this figure is 36%, and Torbay and
Southern Devon is the fourth highest of South West CCG areas for repeat
procedures. Commissioners are working to reduce repeat procedures via LARC
counselling and fitting at the point at which a woman is referred into the abortion
service.

In Torbay, local abortion services are provided by TOPAS (Termination of Pregnancy
Advisory Service).

Treatment of HIV

There are 3,500 new diagnoses of UK-acquired HIV per annum. When an individual
is diagnosed as having HIV, the treatment is anti-retroviral drugs, and treatment is
more effective when the virus is diagnosed early.

Page 117



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

People diagnosed with HIV should have a near normal lifespan, as long as they have
access to the appropriate healthcare at the appropriate clinical time (BBC, 2013),
however the virus remains a burden for the infected individual and a major cost to the
system (BHIVA, 2012).

The mean lifetime healthcare cost (based on a predicted median age at death of 75
years) for an individual with HIV has been estimated at approximately £360,000
(BHIVA, 2012).

Whilst the commissioning responsibility for HIV prevention, awareness and screening
sits with the Local Authority, anti-retroviral drugs are paid for by NHS England.

Individuals who start to take anti-retroviral drugs at the appropriate clinical time,
reducing the viral load in their blood, are shown to reduce the risk of infectiousness to
sexual partners (Avert, 2013).

For those individuals who feel they may have been exposed to HIV perhaps through
unprotected sex or occupational risk, treatment is available which aims to prevent the
infection taking hold. This is called Post Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP) and although is
prescribed via Torbay Sexual Medicines Service, is paid for by NHS England.

Most people in the UK acquire HIV through unprotected sex. ‘HIV really is an
infection where prevention is much easier than cure’ (BBC, 2013).

Network and Office for Sexual Health South West

The Office for Sexual Health is a Directors of Public Health led network across the
south west. Torbay Council hosts this network and is considered to be an example
of best practice nationally.

The network has direct links with national leaders across Public Health England,
Department of Health, NHS England, academia in general and several professional
and medical journals.

The objective of the network is to facilitate improvements in sexual health services
by:

o networking with south west sexual health commissioners and facilitating
relationships to share best practice and learning

e supporting research that will culminate in recommendations for improvements
in services

¢ sharing clinical best practice nationally via journals and internet articles

o fostering working relationships between local, regional and national
organisations with a sexual health remit

e driving innovation, by providing opportunities for organisational development.

The network is supported by an overarching Programme Board, who sit quarterly to
oversee progress and funding of the various projects and work streams.
Membership of the Board includes Directors of Public Health, Department of Health
epidemiologists, senior sexual health clinicians, Public Health England nurse
managers, strategic managers, business managers and sexual health consultants.

Page 118



6.5 Network work streams and projects currently include:

e Research project into incidence of late diagnosis of HIV — senior clinicians,
strategic managers and commissioners working in two high prevalence areas
in the south west, to understand why people might be diagnosed late with
HIV and thereby miss the window for effective anti-retroviral treatment. For
individuals, late diagnosis of HIV is perhaps the most important factor
associated with HIV related morbidity and mortality in the UK. In addition,
people diagnosed late have a much higher risk of onward transmission of the
infection.

e Long Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC) training — co-ordination of the
Department of Health budget for Improving Access to Contraception across
the region, with a particular emphasis on funding training for clinicians and
nurses in primary care. Torbay has 90% coverage of professionals
accredited to fit LARC across GP Practices, which is the fourth highest in the
region. Torbay has been allocated £10,000 from this budget for 2013/14 to
cover further training which will be carried out by TSMS and start Autumn
2013

¢ Relationships and Sex Education Hub (RSE Hub) — an online resource for
teachers, health professionals and pastoral workers, designed to facilitate
high quality delivery of RSE in schools and educational establishments. The
RSE Hub’s objectives are to contribute to a reduction in under 18
conceptions, abortions and repeat abortion rates, incidences of STI
diagnosis, sexual exploitation and bullying, particularly in relation to
homophobia. The RSE Hub publishes guidance documents and other
resources and has recently provided a briefing for councillors available on
http://www.rsehub.org.uk/media/7781/relationships _and_sex education -

a_briefing for councillors.pdf.

¢ Integrated Sexual Health Nurse Training — a course of training amounting to
60 credits at level 3 (at degree level) in integrated sexual health nursing
competencies. Learning takes place on the job, as well as face to face at
university and local seminars. Places have been provided free of charge to
students and their organisations. Work is currently underway to develop
nurse mentor support networks and to attract and enrol students for modules
commencing October 2013.

e Abortion Services Quality Assurance — work is underway with CCGs,
providers and public health commissioners to facilitate a peer review
exercise of abortion services across the south west, with peers identifying
and recommending improvements for one another.

e Research into re-testing of people previously testing positive for Chlamydia
(and other STI screens), with four pilot areas including Torbay, under Dr Kell.
National Chlamydia Screening Programme will publish guidance on re-
testing is shortly, with regional research feeding into national guidance.

7 Current initiatives

71 National Sexual Health Week

National Family Planning Association Sexual Health Week is 16 — 22 September
2013, entitled, “Yes, We Can’t Go Backwards”. The focus this year will be on the

Page 119



7.2

protection and promotion of contraception and other sexual health services
http://www.fpa.org.uk/campaigns/sexual-health-week.

Local Sexual Health Week

A local Sexual Health campaign for young people will be run alongside the national
week, to promote services particularly for the under 24 population. This is planned to
include:

e Refresh, update and relaunch of Sexwize, website for young people http://www.s-
wize.co.uk/

Media promotions (ie) Heart Radio adverts, Facebook and Twitter accounts

Multi agency promotion of sexual health services for young people

Media coverage on local hews

Sending of literature to parents.

Objectives of the local campaign include:

¢ Introducing students to Outreach and Clinic staff, at the beginning of the new
academic year

e Raising awareness of the Sexwize website and TSMS service, as a centre of
information for young people
Re-launch of the C-Card Scheme

¢ Make in-roads into national reporting datasets, including Chlamydia testing and
positivity rates, and reducing teenage conceptions

e Encourage health and social care professionals to enrol on training re the young
people’s sexual health agenda.

Conclusion

Achieving good sexual health is complex. In Torbay, we have a number of providers
of services across Social Care, the NHS and the third sector who work collaboratively
to achieve desired outcomes.

The challenges around the changed commissioning landscape of the system of 1
April 2013 mean that strong leadership between the Local Authority and its
commissioning partners is essential. Partnership working has never been more
important in the Public Health arena. The Local Government Association, Public
Health England and the Department of Health continue, at a national and regional
level, to network with Local Authorities to support them to work collaboratively with
partners.

In Torbay, clinicians, consultants, commissioners and managers meet in a forum
called Torbay Clinical Pathway Group. The purpose of this group is to ensure that
pathways in and out of sexual health services across the Bay are robust, effectively
managed and seemless. The Department of Health (2013) stipulates that although
commissioning arrangements for sexual health services may have been
disaggregated in the transition of 1 April, the provision of such services must appear
to service users to be seemless. The Clinical Pathway Group takes a lead role in the
system to ensure that this is indeed the case.

Page 120



In addition, the Network and Office for Sexual Health South West works to support
commissioners and organisations across the region, to ensure that local
commissioning is not disadvantaged by the new commissioning arrangements.

The network works closely with Public Health England, whose remit is to facilitate
local, regional and national relationships across commissioning structures, and to
feed back nationally, outlining where guidance in the system is needed.

Debbie Stark (Torbay Council, 2013) stated, “Improving the health of the local
population requires co-ordinated effort from everyone; the voluntary sector, the NHS
and partners, and | very much feel that the right structures and positive relationships
are in place in the Bay to ensure that the whole community benefits.”

Joined up working between providers and their commissioners characterises sexual
health services across Torbay, and must continue to do so, in order to improve
outcomes for individuals.

Appendices:

Appendix 1 Torbay Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator
Report — Quarter 4: 2012/13

Appendix 2 Table of Commissioning Functions

Background Papers:

Avert, 2013, http://www.avert.org/hiv-treatment-as-prevention.htm [accessed online 05 09
13]

BBC News, 2013, 4 March, Analysis: A cure for HIV? http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/health-
21653463 [accessed online 05 09 13]

British HIV Association, Projected lifetime healthcare costs associated with HIV infection,
(2012)http://www.bhiva.org/documents/Conferences/2012Birmingham/Presentations/Poster
s/Epidemiology-and-Surveillance/P178.pdf [accessed online 05 09 13]

Department of Health, A Framework for Sexual Health Improvement in England, 2013
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/a-framework-for-sexual-health-improvement-
in-england [accessed online 30 08 13]

Department of Health, Commissioning Sexual Health services and interventions: Best
practice guidance for local authorities, 2013
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/commissioning-sexual-health-services-and-
interventions-best-practice-guidance-for-local-authorities [accessed on line 04 09 13]

Department of Health, Quality Criteria for young people friendly health services, 2011
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/quality-criteria-for-young-people-friendly-
health-services [accessed online 30 08 13]

Local Government Association and Public Health England, Sexual Health Commissioning
Frequently Asked Questions, 2013

Page 121



http://www.local.gov.uk/c/document library/get file?uuid=4905f0d4-8fad-4c3a-b53c-
b49478b42a49&groupId=10171 [accessed online 30 08 13]

National AIDS Trust, HIV: A Strategy for Success, 2012
http://www.nat.org.uk/media/Files/Publications/Oct-2012-HIV-a-strategy-for-success.pdf
[accessed online 04 09 13]

NICE guidance on long acting reversible contraception, 2005 http://www.nice.org.uk/cg030
[accessed online 04 09 13]

World Health Organization, 1948, Preamble to the Constitution of the World Health
Organization as adopted by the International Health Conference, New York, 19-22 June,
1946; signed on 22 July 1946 by the representatives of 61 States (Official Records of the
World Health Organization, no. 2, p. 100) and entered into force on 7 April 1948 [accessed
online 04 09 13]

Websites

BBC News, Theresa May to demand Police improve domestic violence handling, 29 August
2013, http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-23875557 [accessed online 29 08 13]

Gov.UK, https://www.gov.uk/government/news/nearly-half-a-million-new-sexual-infections-
in-2012 [accessed online 05 09 13]

Gov.UK, https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/216
423/dh 132114.pdf [accessed online 06 09 13]

Office of National Statistics, http://www.ons.gov.uk [accessed online 04 09 13]

RSE Hub, http://www.rsehub.org.uk/ [accessed online 04 09 13]

Sexwize, http://www.s-wize.co.uk/ [accessed online 04 09 13]

Page 122



Aienda ltem 13

AT mm?e:m
Public Health ) gl
England

Sexual Health Quarterly
Outcome Indicator Report

Torbay

Report for quarter 4 2012/13

Page 123



Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

D1PH Networt and m;\

ol :

" sexuathealth Vv
South Wess

Introduction

This indicator report was set up by the South West Office for Sexual Health to provide Directors of Public
Health, local commissioners, providers and clinicians with timely and relevant comparative information
about the full range of sexual health indicators in order to support them in continuing to improve sexual
health outcomes. It is produced by the Field Epidemiology Team, Health Protection Directorate, Bristol and
has now been updated to include additional information. Work is underway to explore developing it as a
national tool.

The Office for Sexual Health was established in January 2010 to provide leadership on all aspects of sexual
health and seeks to avoid fragmentation by linking up the different policy areas including reducing sexually
transmitted infections, chlamydia screening, reducing teenage pregnancy, improving access to contracep-
tion. Its work is being incorporated within Public Health England.

Knowledge and intelligence and the use of effective interventions to improve sexual health will be at the
heart of the work of Public Health England. The South West Public Health Observatory, which has become
part of Public Health England’s Knowledge and Intelligence directorate already produces the Sexual Health
Balanced Scorecard for England (http_//www . apho.org.uk).

Information on sources of data are provided on the next page. Guidance on undertaking a sexual health
needs assessment is available from Sexual Health Needs Assessment: A How To Guide (hitp//
www dh.gov ukfer!fPubiicationsandstatisticg/PubI|cat|ons/F'ubhcationsPoI|cyAndGuidancelDH 109070).

The Public Health Qutcomes Framework (http:/www. dh.gov. uk/health/2012/1 1/phof-technical-refresh/) has
six indicators relevant to sexual health:

Improving the wider determinants of health

. 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training;
. Violent crime (including sexual viclence);
Health improvement

. Under 18 conceptions;
Health protection

. Chlamydia diagnoses 15-24 year olds;
. People presenting with HIV at a late stage of infection;
HPV vaccination coverage (females 12-17 year oid).

Public Health England will continue to produce this quarterly outcome indicator set for sexual health for
each locality to enable them to review their own performance in 21 areas of sexual health and to build on
information from the quality assurance peer review visits of the sexual health systems in each locality un-
dertaken by the Office for Sexual Health.

This report is divided into four sections:

interventions to address harmful behaviours:
sexual and reproductive health;

access;

sexually transmitted infections and HIV.

The report RAG rates in relation to public health outcomes framework indicators and relevant national am-
bitions. The rationale for each indicator and its significance is provided as weli as signposting to relevant
evidence or policy.

The quarter 4 report each year includes a summary tracking the South West position against each indicator
to illustrate change over the financial year.

The report should be used in conjunction with the Field Epidemiology Team's surveillance and epidemiolo-
gy reports; these reports provide background information to several of the indicators in this report. Please
contact o jacomelli@phe.gov.uk if you would like advice on these reports.

Dacnao.12A

I MHU [= Sy <




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

Good use of data and evidence is central to effective commissioning of sexual health services. Public
Health England will provide support tools such as this indicator report. Organisations can also use the Sex-
ual Health Outcomes and Research Evaluation project (SHORE) commissioned by NHS South of England
in 2011.

Public Health England will provide a range of services in relation to sexual health building on the work of
the Health Protection Agency and other organisations that have moved into PHE. This includes support for
young people’s sexual health, particularly the National Chlamydia Screening Programme. The Office has
previously undertaken a range of work in relation to young people and sexual health and has set up the
relaticnship and sex education hub {hitp //www rsehub.org.uk/).

Public Health England will provide a strong focus on multiple risk factors for poor sexual health including
health inequalities and drug and alcohol misuse. The Office for Sexual Health has a useful publication
about alcohol and sexual health setting out the importance of sexual health services using alcohol interven-
tion and brief advice. This indicator report will be collecting data from the Sexual and Reproductive Health
Activity Dataset (SRHAD) under SRH Care Activity Code 30, where health professionals can record every
attendance where the service provides the patient with a brief alcohol intervention. This is to reflect NICE
public health guidance on preventing harmful drinking, including for people attending GUM clinics or ac-
cessing emergency contraception. Data collection for SHRAD is not yet complete and is expected to be
available in 2013.

A locally-led collaborative sexual health network led by South West Directors of Public Health is taking for-
ward elements of work in the new system including:

the South West-wide long acting reversible contraception training programme;

the South West relationship and sex education hub;

a project in three areas of the South West increasing access to partner notification for chlamydia:
a project to coordinate peer-led review of abortion services and management of community of
interest in good access to high-quality abortion services;

an audit of HIV very late diagnosis in areas of low prevalence;

providing peer-to-peer support on commissioning sexual health services.

From 1 April 2013 commissioning responsibilities for sexual health are as follows:

. NHSCB responsible for commissioning HIV, sexual assault referral centres and GP contract
elements of contraception;
o Local authorities responsible for promoting health and preventing ili-health, commissioning

specialist services both GUM and sexual and reproductive health and some contraception
from GPs (ie enhanced services such as long acting reversible contraception);
o CCGs responsible for abortion services and sterilisation and vasectomy services.

All information about the Office for Sexual Health's work which is moving to PHE can be found at: hitp:/
www.hpa.org. uk/AboutTheHPAAVhatTheHealthProtectionAgencyDoes/LocalServices/SouthWest/
OfficeForSexuaiHealthSW/.




T
(=]
Q.
@
x
=
(=]
vl
o
2
-
=
©
=
o
£
=
@
O
[
@
t
©
u.
&)
£
o
i)
o
-
®
=
>
)
7y ]

sexuathealth

D3P Betwork and Oifies
for

YieaH JO dag A SUOILIOGE Iy
SNO PUe (idL P ucilJoge o) buipes) suondasuod g1 sepun
* 1e2IBNS $A [EDIPAW SUOILOGY
uneaH JO 1dag 9l>981>) - $430 M 1> suoiuogy
sabe jje suopoqe Jeaday
Suojoqy
(uyeeH 3O 1deq)} WAWAIND luawuiodde )54y pusie Jou pip Oy M SISPUBNY
{unead 0 1da0) NAWNND sAep Bupiom g1 Joye usas seapusly
suodas Auspend 10g (852908 sunoy Jo o) saw) Buwado s WIS
{unesH J0 198} WNWAND S4Y gl LIYN M USAS JO/pUE pase)jo sluauuoddy
£8892€ WNO
avonng SIS WND Ul Busa) NH Jo axeldn
AYINND LLS Juaunouod e ypm pasoubelp sienpraipul A4
SURIBAINS $(OD pue GaNYH ‘AHJOS ” (002> /0GE> UNO 130 D) sasoubelp aje) Aiaasale]
R AT ual22ju paunboe Ajuassy
aHdOS A “ 3Jed o) usas sjualjed parosjul- N\H pasouberq
1] s LOISSIUSURI) JO 3pow
112 ’ AH 10 sasouBeip may
AH
dSON SOMAISS 510D Ul PSS
sbumas je u sjes sjsoubelq
QYNNG PUB 4SSN sBuyes je u abelanc)
dSON - " INNO-UOU/SATIN-UOU Jo/pue gSON (Ananisod pue) abessaon
Bujueaiss eipAweyn
84juad uoHeLIO I SHN /EIEP S3H SUQISSLUPE 9SeasK] AICIELLUE U JIAja]
avoNND $5Z Japun ut sasoubeip 1 S [e1o]
OIS (aposida 15113} sasoubelp e m [epuac
VdH 'OvIAND 'JSON (sBumas (1e) eppAuepy) Jo sasoubeip may
GYoWNo pue (Blep Aojeioge) Angos elpAwey) Jo sasoubeip man
QYINND spydAs jo sasoubierp man
avONND E30U110u0 Jo sasoubeip man
aAvoOnNNo (pauquoo) syydAs pue eaoyL0uoh Jo sesoubelp Mo
S11S
Hdd USQOM OHAMS | aNsgem v | sisiBoogology Spea’ yyeay ‘uonnqlesig
10 paonpoid poday EIA BjgepeAY BlA JqEIEAY  |NND 'SDO00 "SHAD|  (BNX9S 'SHdq

20y py Si52q bwoBlO | S1seq BUoBUO | Meyna Japun Alapents :Asusnbes
ws) reuoiBey (euceN) 10d | {iEUogeNY 10d [(WS) 10aMNO/ET] M) 1od ‘18n8] ojdeiBoss |
YHS OHdMS Vel MS Ve MS Ve :Aq paonpoig
Jiodey Bupoyuopy pie3olo0g (mejaa2 Jepun) |uodey Jojedipu) heing

83incg ejeg 83uBLLIO B sdueeg HS £9]1J0Id HE | 9I4OId HS 18207 awoaang

sindino yjjeay |enxas Juaiaytp Jo uosuedwon

126

DAanop
\J\-s\l




" "‘%_‘:i:

sexuslhealth

Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

S
b

-

e

D Martwerh, s Ol
L]
g

YleaH antanpoiday pue (enxas AYUNWWO)=HYS) {[SIISURIS {BUOLEN J0) 3IWO=SNO Bu)

=JOUD|A A|JIUCN $5323Y BuUlIpa AJBULINDIIURD=INW YNNG (35eqEIRQ SISOUBRIQ !M3N SQIV PUB AIH=QONVH ‘Wyliod)y Sunsa) uondayu| Juatay=yijy (pasoudeiq suonisju AlH uajeaa.id

10 ABAUNS=IHJOS SUCTIJU J0J 13U)=1)) ‘Bwweidold Fuuasaidg BIpAWIEIYD [BUOUBN=4SDN 'S20SURIS 3posid] [eHdsoM=STH Iase1eg ANALIY JIUI[D SUIDIPAN AJBULINOULID=YINND :A3Y

1ACD |07 PUE SaIUNUALICD JO "Idag

a109s abeiaae uonesudaq sidiyngy 10 Xapuy

SaAPUE- PUE SI00YIS ‘URIPILY S0 1deq

s5)a sBrup ‘joyose Busnsiu spio Jesk GL-gL

pPaISIO {siead ¢|-Z|) Buinoadun spasu adape sdiysuielas pue xag
4840

uleaH 3O daa | ; {s1eaA g|-Z1) AdH 40 xE)
AdH

Buysa) efleqru pue siydAs ' AH ‘g daH

asuepanns Buiuaalos |eleudiuy (pauimyd) -~ AlH 1o} Bunsa} [eleusjue jo ayeidn
. 280 [B|EUSJUE 10) PAYOOQ LUBLIOAA
Bujusesds [Beusiuy
UyeaH 10 '1d9aq | BUB|UD Buljaaw SBAMES
Aipuepy eidosd Bunox
B0 ALOH ”~ {ejep jeumbal) uswo m ul SYNesse [enxas Jo abeuadlay
B0 AUOH A uawo m Jo adel papiooss aod Jo aley
{pauueyd) 4 SOWVYS 12 uass Jnesse |enxas Bupodal asoyy o abeaniay
SOU VS Ag pepinosd eyeg SOUYS 0 sjuauysIgels3
{BOMVYS) S6nue) [ei1ajey YNSSY [enxes
DD UORBEUION SHN SNBSS HYSD 18 Dy vl Buisooyd sgiL/sglL Japun
$19d Aq papiaoid ejeq saaoeid 4o Dy
S201AI9S UONALIISaN] SHN DuY] paquasasd Jo 1500
(samnleg ajes vonduosald Oy
UOHAUIISR. ) B1jUST UOHEWICI SHN

uondesenua)
{NdL AQ pepiacid) SNO pUe SUOIXaUUD ” SDIAIBS SUOIXBULIOY) O) MmOy Jou siayjow abeuaa)
Ndl # (133} Buwes 1o juawAojdws 'pUOEINPa U S1ay)ow abeusa)
WwiNio4 UOKEONPT Xag , S30I/AUSS YYBSLY (BNXSS SPS-UO LI M SIOOUDS
] ] (178N} Buiwey) o uauioidus ‘uoyeanps uijou siabeusa)
Sallue pue SI00YIS "UaIpuD Jod 1dag : 9500 +5 BUIEIG0 S19BeU30]
uuny AoueuBaly abeuas) - suoydasuo) afieuss) Jo ajey
suopdasuoco sbeusa]
uodey Bupojuow|  pIe3eL0aS {merasi sepun} |jioday sopedpuy anding

83IN0S BYEQ| eJUBWIOMEY eausieg HS aj10.d HS [ea07] CIVTT 0 T )

-

Panag
uv\.:




South Weut

£2E019P60L0ZL/BNEY/BWEN]SITOINYQaMY JH RALRJRUIMY JH/Q9M/MN TI0 BO L MMM//-01 1
(11 pue Z sa|ge)} ‘a|ge) BJEp [ENUUE || S (BlEP |9A3| y] PUE [BUOIBaS ‘[BUOIEN

CLEDIOFEOLOZ /AT DUENISI0INYaMY H 37 RGaMY JH/QaM/ N TI0 LY M/ 1)
{6 puE Z Sa|qey) 'S|ge} Bjep |ENULE |1 S Jejep [948] ] pue jeuoifar '|[Eucnep

sexuatheatth

-

ZLE0L9¥B010ZL/ATRGBAWENISITOINY MY JH R0 EFRASMY JH/GEMNN LU0 BOL MMM/ 011
(g pue g se|ge)) ‘3qe) Elep [ENUUE || S (BIEP [9A9) ¥ PUE [BUCIBS '|euoen

m
M
:

Z28019¥601L0Z L/RNEL/2WENISII0INYQaMY dHBI0E] BA8MY JH/GBM/NN D10 B MMM 110
(01 pue g sejqe;) ‘a|qe} Bjep [BhUUE || S (BJEP [3A3] ] pue [euoiBau '|euonen

VdH 'QvOnno suem |ejuaboue o sasoubeip map

SNUIA X3)dwIs
YdH ‘OvOWND sadiay |eyusboue Jo sasoubelp maN
¥YdH ‘avOlWND eaoyuouch Jo sasoubeip may
YdH 'QvOnng siiydAs jo sasoubeip map

PL1rI=QIEX0SE Wall@aIN0SaIN LG OUIE My a1y
AlojlerasqQ WERH JNqnd 1S9A4 UINOS BU) AQ PeSA(EUR puE pajoeLixs ejeq

21UDD) LUOHEBWICH|
SHN aul 49 paiidwiod ejep S3H

asessip
Aojewweyul snad Joy sucssiwpe [epdsoy

dse-ejepysdyn-syu-bujuaaoseipAweyd mamyy dity ‘BJep |9A9] ¥ PUB | Dd ‘|eucibal ‘leuonen

Buluasiog eipAwe|yo reuonen

awwelboly

WNS UoU /gSON uol pue 4SON
Apatisod pue abesanos ‘Bunsa) eipAwe)y

OSE RIBR/SUMN SUU T UIUSBI0S Bl A LR[OI

8)1sqam dSoIN uo ejep Asuenp

ZLE019r60L0Z | /A6 d/aweNIsIoINygemy dHRBe g pqamy dH/aamnin Bio edy mmmydny 2 3 Z 9ige )

{WNO uou dgIN uou pue dsoN Bulpn|ou)) elep |a4s) v pue [euoiBas {jeuoneN

swweibold Buweaiog epAwejyn
[EUOIEN PUB YdH ‘A¥IINND

{dsON)

(AIH

sasoubelp elpAwe|yo jo sley

J2ouewIoNasayolg

UNEBH|ENX3S/XPU|PUYS3|OIJUIESHIENXAS/ZYSUONID)U|/SBSEASH] SNoNIausaIdo 1 e Baoedy mamgydny
‘UoiIBJUBLIO [enxas Ag

Wiy "SeNe/E/EBL ) /SUOPPENIN BIC OGTE Mwwy/ NU|9AB] Y] PUE (EUCIBa] TEUONEN

NN Eueedy @iy swodel ol
2010 [euoiBal Jsapn UINOS Yd4H Wolj Jsanbas (ejep |eso]

Buiusa19g EipAweys [euiEN
YdH "laIHJOS) pasoudeg
SUOIIBYU AIH JUB|BARIH Jo A3ang

swweiboiy

S31UND NS Ul Bunss) AlH Jo axerdn

Adeiau) [eADIIRI-UE JO (78] AQ 8JED 10}
UD3$ S[ENPIAIPUI PBJIBJUl AlH 4O UCILOdOIY

-B00Z=31EPROZ ¥1=101E0|PUIROF=PILO0RIRZ F=PIMaln,,

‘ejep [aA0] ¥

InyuodaysmaineIep/S /N Bio edy semoidy.any

/EIBQIISAL PO HAIH/Z Y SUONOB)U|/SaSESSIGSN0I08)u|/sHd0 L SN BI0 Bdy Mwn /Gl :MaIAIBAD

YdlH '93UB|IaAINS 0

ia1e)l p5e> N0 192 PQD € Pey ouym AlH
yim pasouberp Amau asoy) jo uoipodoid)
sasoubep AlH alel Aiaa pug s1e

FRIROAIHUUISSR00Y/A|H/Z YSUOIIOU|/S3SER8ISNOIDBU|/SOIG0 [ 7 DO BLIL] My oL

:uoibas Ag ssesn Bnap Buyoslur pue synpe Gunok ‘sueaqquen yo92|q pue suedLy ¥oelq ‘NS

EER O MEEEE)
324J0 [euoIBal JSIA YINOS YdH W0 J55Nbas (UORBULIOMI JSYLING 1O BIEP |3A3] 10d 104

PB6.S696VE0CL/D G3MY JH/BIBPUBISAaMY JHRABMY J H/Gam ¥ D10 B0 MM aTI
(Jad) w1 Ag aousteasid AlH :Ejep |9A8] AJuoyny 12201 pue jeuciBay

vdH '(QIHOS) pasouberg
SUOIIBIU| AlH WUSJBARLd JO Aening

(21€2 pajejas AH Buissaooe suosiad)
uonasjul AlH pascuberp jo asusieasig

NN 10 B || SL0o.! O]
3010 |euoiBal 15ean UINOS V4H Wouy 1sanbal tejep (es0]

1S3S0ULEIOAIHMIN/AIH/Z YSUOHIS]U/SaSEaSI SNONODJU /50100 L/ DI ECL My oy

:(syjeap pue sasoubep sgjy Guipnjou)) ejep jeuoiBes pue |euoieN

YdH '(QANYH) ssegeleq
sasoubeig meN SQIv Pue AlH

sasoubieip A|H MmaN

BJep AIH

punoy g UEd EJEp 8L} o._w.._i.ﬁ_.

800G

Zeq

Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

8299 1412 ECT /958 /SWENISTTOINY GEMY dH RO SE G AY dH /oM /3 910 8ay mmm /[ 01I0) S9|y01d YIEaH [ENXas au) PUE |

iM0|aq 935 95e3|d ‘UoLBLLIOUI 13YLINy 104

PJEISI0ISPIIUCIBq}[EaY|ENX oS

PANTI0T0YTE MAM/TAN) paedaleds pasueled yileal |enxas ‘suoday J01edlpul 3W0IING YI|ESH [ENXIS 3y} 03 4321 3sedjd ‘Bauelsuy 151y ayy uj

JuaWSSasSY SPaaN Yj|esH |enxag e uj pasn aq 0) S33IN0S BJep |eluaod

Danna 120
ug\; - e T




South wet

swueidoid Suiuaalds eipAwe(yd |BuoneN = dSIN ‘BULIDHUO AJYIUCIA S5320Y BUIDIPAJA) AJBULINCHUBD = WIAYINNGD
‘aseqele(q syleaq pue sasoudeig maN Sl PUB AlH = QONYH ‘pasoudelq suoniagul AlH JUs[eAsld JO ABAINS = QIHAOS {135B1eQ ALIALIDY JIUI|D) BUIIP3A ALRULINONUAS = QYIJINND A3

=
o
&
o
1
&
T
=
©
=
@
£
o
O
ke ad
S
O
>
e
@
"
m
3
(&)
=
e
©
@
o
©
3
]
@
7y

sexualheaalth

Cre Mrtwiorh, angt Office
tor

N/GEGFO00E] >o_._mcomamom:mm:cc_mn_,mavcmz:mm:__m_aomacc:o>u:mcmﬁ__:u__x: AOD U0 BN AW 01T

‘ejep |8Ae] y] pue |eucibal ‘jruoneN

uoieINR3 104 Juawpedag pue SNO

8Wwo2No
Aq 'sp|o Jeak g| Jspun pue sp|o Jeak
g1 Japun ui vondazuos abeuas) jo ajey

:e)ep [9A8] 10d pue feucibay

29WIDS UOHBULION JSOURD YN

- sidoed Bunoy,
SI151121S-pUE-BIER/AIODDIE DM AOD YD UOIESIURILI Oy

:ejep |aAd] |Dd pue jeucibal ‘jeuonep yjeaH jo juswpedaq Ao AdH Jo axeldn
XOSE So|30)10,aNy JOJUED |EJIDOJ0JSELADSOUED |

T JSOUBDH0OM Dyloads oIdo] PUE SdA] JooUBD NN DO UToU WA 7 a1 S9N uohendod ajewsy ynpe

ul J20UeD [N JO SuonessiBal map

DUILSa)05- [E0r a9, DUUoaI05 /5000100 |0J-E1Ep PUE-SoN SHETS/ AN 84U 01 MWy, GIIY

e1ep |8A8] 10d pue jeuoibas ‘jeuogen

81)UBD UOIJBULOJU| SHN

sbujes aonoeid 45 pue SAIWD Ul USXE}
$]58} Jeals [eoniad ||e jo abeusoiay

BUiUBaIs puE 109UED [EIIAIE])

£ 10¢-3215HEIS-UOINOQR/EZ/SO/Z L 02N ACD YD Aduasedsuen/dpy
‘ejep jaA9) 10d pue jeuoibal ‘(euonen

Gz Jepun pabe|

71 102 SINSNEIS-UDIIOUR/BE IGO/E F e N ACR Up ADUSIEGSUEIL/T -GNy
‘ejep |9A3] 1Dd pue [euoibai ‘|euonen

yleaH jo juawpedsq|  uswWoMm U) SUOIOge Jeadas jo uoitodold
uone)sab Jo ysam pue ebe Ag pi-g| pabe|
yyeaH jo Juawpedsq| uonended sjelway go0'L Jod 9Bl UCINOgY

SUORIOqY

*USE LoleagpaoUehpy /2PNyt AD BajL Spinh;; dijy -ejep 2D
Wy #OL pin noB-eajy mmmy diy “Ejep jRUOREN

Aoyiny AbojpAiquig
pue uones|iua uewny

aw)ean Jad SyyIq an| Jo Jaquinu pue
(1eaud pue SHN) 531943 JA JO JaquIny

N sUU oKD sounbus Je (Jeayspealds j1oselep
[eUCHEN By} LD paleu) cm_u_um:mﬁ a|gisuadsal ay) Gunoejuos Ay ejep |9A8] 10d v:w jeuoibay

(elep S3H) anua) uoleuuop| SHN

sauanl|ap gL Jad saioueubaid o1doiny

2 WWINS-ULIG/ | QO S/[91/3U0; %1 ADD SUC MMM/ OIL
‘Ejep |9A3| ¥ pue jeuoiBas ‘|euopeN

SNO

[ENSEEEIETETSY
#-G| pabe uawom pgp° | Jad syuig aan

Aluiaten

Ton mwm:coo,,mm_ TSI PUE-LI[E8, SUON D&[Co-E JEP-PUB-S DI} SHE 8/ 71T S4U oI
rejep |aAd] L9d pue _m.._o_mE ‘leuoneN

20jUSD UONELLO| SHN

uoijdaoeijuos Aousbiawa jo ucisnoid SHN

UONJS0BIU00; SO AT 8ol - PUE-L]|e50/SUON D9 j00-E1Ep-PUB-SOITS| SUUT I AR/ ONY
{EJEP |8A2] 1 Dd pue jeuciBal ‘jeuonen

8ljus) uoneuuoju) SHN

Japwoud Aq seouepusye
212 aMjdadeuod AJUNLULIGT)

U0NGS0BII00] 53] A Sal-PUE-[1[EaU/SUDI 09| |00-E|EP-PUE-S DI SIETS /5 SUU 31 MWy T aiiy

BJEP |8A2] 19d pue [euoiBal ‘euoneN

2/jUaD uoleulo] SHN

abe pue uondedeuod jo poyiaw Aewnd
Aq sono anndaseuos ANUNuIWod
SHN 1B USLWOoM ylim SI0BUOD ISil4

uopdearenuon

PUNOJ B4 Ued BIEP BY) BIBUM|

93.n08]

ged




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

Mﬂmtmd

T

Contents

Rationale
Timescales
RAG ratings

1.

Interventions to address harmful behaviours

1a. Establishment of SARCs in each area that accept self referrals
1b. Rate of police recorded rape of women

1c. Percentage of those reporting sexual assault seen at SARCs

1d. Percentage of completed brief alcohol intervention questionnaires

Sexual and reproductive health

2a. LARC prescription rate per 1,000 women, GP services

2b. Percentage of GP practices offering LARC

2c. Percentage of repeat abortions in <25 year olds and >35 year olds
2d. Percentage of abortions within 9 weeks

2e. Abortions by method (medical/ surgical)

2f. Rolling average rate of conceptions in under 18 year olds

Access

3a. Access to appointments at GUM services over the weekend

3b. Percentage of services (including Sexual Health) accredited as young
people friendly.

Sexually transmitted infections and HIV

4a. Combined rate of syphilis and gonorrhoea

4b. Rate of new acute STIs in under 25 year olds

4c. Percentage coverage and positivity of chlamydia screening in all
settings in 15-24 year olds

4d. Partner treatment rate for chlamydia in GUM

4e. Rate of chlamydia diagnoses in all settings in 15-24 year olds
4f. Percentage uptake of the HPV vaccine

4g. Percentage of sexual health service attendees accepting an HIV test
4h. Rate of persons accessing HIV related care

4i. Percentage of HIV diagnoses that were late

References

13
14

16
17
18
19

20
21
22
23
24
25

26

28
29
30

31
32
33
34
35
36
37

ﬁ%\\

-‘\ snxualhealth
D

Page 130




Sexual Health Quarterly Qutcome Indicator Report
ei\\ ;axunlhealth .
—~ =" South Wext

Rationale

1. Interventions to address harmful behaviours

1a. Establishment of SARCs in each area that accept self referrals

Rape and sexual assault can have long term effects on the lives of victims. Sexual assault referral cen-
tres (SARCs) exemplify how organisations can work in partnership to coordinate and simplify the path-
way for victims to access wider healthcare, social care and criminal justice processes to improve indi-
vidual health and well-being, as well as criminal justice outcomes. There are also significant benefits to
the NHS, especially when considered in the context of sustainable quality, innovation, productivity and
prevention (QIPP). DH published A Resource for Developing Sexual Assault Referral Centres in 2009,
hitp://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/

DH 107570.

1b. Rate of police recorded rape of women

The importance of sexual assault and its adverse effects on health has been highlighted through the in-
clusion of an indicator on violent crime including sexual violence in the Public Health Qutcomes Frame-
work. This indicator has been included to provide contextual information.

1c. Percentage of those reporting sexual assault seen at SARCs

Whilst the provision of specialist services at SARCs has been improving it is important that key agencies
such as the Police refer every victim of serious sexual assaults. This indicator has been included to pro-
vide contextual information.

1d. Percentage of completed brief alcohol intervention questionnaires

There is strong evidence between alcohol misuse and risky sexual behaviours. The delivery of a brief
alcohol intervention in sexual health settings provides an opportunity to reduce multiple risk taking be-
haviours. The Office for Sexual Health recommends Integrated Sexual Health Service Specifications
should include commissioning of alcohol brief intervention and methods to allow commissioners to for-
mally evaluate alcohol IBA. This is on the basis of NICE public health guidance on preventing harmful
drinking, which recommends that: "NHS professionals should routinely carry out alcohol screening as an
integral part of practice...These discussions should also take place when promoting sexual
health... Where screening everyone is not feasible or practicable, NHS professionals should focus on
groups that may be at an increased risk of harm from alcohol and those with an alcohol-related condi-
tion. This includes people who regularly attend GUM clinics or repeatedly seek emergency contracep-
tion..."”.

2. Sexual and reproductive health

2a. LARC prescription rate per 1,000 women, GP services

Long Acting Reversible Contraception is defined in the guideline as contraceptive methods that require
administration less than once per cycle or month. NICE recommendations on LARC {October 2005)
state these methods are mare reliable than the oral contraception pill, where user error often results in
unplanned pregnancy. The additional cost of providing these methods is more than offset by the cost
savings related to abortion and births. All currently available LARC methods are more cost effective
than the combined oral contraceptive pill, even at 1 year of use. NICE estimates LARC usage could
save in excess of £200,000 per 100,000 women. This is aggregated data for all LARC methods. The
NICE Public Health Guidance, Prevention of Sexually Transmitted Infections and Under 18 Concep-
tions recommends the increased use of LARC, greater awareness of LARC methods and improved one
to one interventions. The South West has a region-wide training programme to increase uptake of
LARC methods through implementation of the NICE LARC Guidance and create region-wide equity and
consistency of LARC provision by increasing the number of fitters of all LARC methods for all
healthcare professionals (HCPs) across the Local Authorities (both those that hold the DFSRH/RCN
equivalent and those who do not).

Page 131 9



Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

.51
&. Sexuathealth
- g e, N South Wt

2b. Percentage of GP practices offering LARC

Improved uptake of effective contraception has the greatest impact of reducing conception rates and
therefore is a priority in strategies to reduce under 18 conception rates. 75% of all women visit their GP in
the first instance for contraception advice. LARC practices indicates a practice that can offer all contra-
ception methods (implant, IUDAUS and injection). Currently there is low LARC delivery in primary care.
Information on percentage of practices offering LARC has been included for background information. The
South West LARC training programme has had a specific focus on training nurses and doctors working in
primary care,

2c. Percentage of repeat abortions in <25 year olds and >35 year olds

Repeat abortions represent unplanned conceptions, which can be seen as a failure of contraception ser-
vice provision either in terms of access or availability of the most appropriate method for individual women
at the time. Supply and fitting of LARC methods should be available at point of abortion procedure.

2d. Percentage of abortions within 9 weeks

Reducing the delay in-obtaining abortion saves the NHS between £645,000-—£30 million per year’. The
earlier an abortion takes piace the lower the risk of complications and the more cost effective it will be.

2e. Abortions by method (medical/ surgical)

The medical versus surgical procedures indicator is not able to distinguish between local anaesthetic out-
patient based surgical procedures (manual vacuum aspiration) and theatre based surgical procedures.
Manual vacuum aspiration allows for all forms of long acting reversible contraception to be fitted at the
time of procedure as oppose to 4 weeks after early medicai abortion. Local areas should review their ser-
vices to ensure services are offering the best care to women that meet their needs and are clinically and
cost effective.

2f. Rolling average rate of conceptions in under 18 year olds

Reducing teenage conceptions and improving outcomes for teenage parents reduces health inequalities
and child poverty. Between 1998-2011 England has seen a 34.1% decline in the under 18 conception rate
to 30.7 per 1,000, the lowest level for 20 years. However rates remain high compared to other Western
European countries. In the South West rates have declined by 30.7% to a rate of 27.3 per 1,000 in 2011.
For teenage pregnancy resources see: http://www.apho.org. uk/resource/view aspx?RID=116355.

3. Access

3a. Access to appointments at GUM services over the weekend

To improve access to services so that infections are diagnosed and treated efficiently service users seek-
ing access to genitourinary medicine services should be offered an appointment within 48 hours. In order
to achieve this genitourinary medicine services should provide a weekend service with booked appoint-
ments. Public Health Teams will provide the Office with information relating to GUM service availability at
weekends. The Office will then allocate a RAG rating.

3b. Percentage of services (inc sexual health) accredited as young people friendly.

The You're Welcome criteria aims to improve acceptability, accessibility and quality of services for young
people. In July 2010, the Coalition Government confirmed that the ‘You're Welcome' quality criteria for
young people friendly health services will continue as Department of Health sponsored guidance for help-
ing local health services put young people's needs at the centre of what they do. Service improvement and
redesign is an ongoing process.

The Department of Health anticipates services reviewing their commitment to providing young people
friendly services and checking that young people’s experience of their service is as they would wish. The
South West has developed a young people friendly badging scheme based on verification of You're Wel-
come Standards being met. Details are available on the South West Relationship and Sex Education Hub.
Oniy services that have been verified and moderated through a locally determined process as achieving
You're Welcome (or an equivalent local badging scheme criteria) are captured as part of this monitoring

report.

s
DiPH Notwork sna Office il

10




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

- S—-—

4. Sexually transmitted infections and HIV

4a. Combined rate of syphilis and gonorrhoea

This indicator supports local menitaring of sexually transmitted infections. The combined rate of new di-
agnoses of gonorrhoea and syphilis in GUM has been chosen because these are important bacterial in-
fections which in most cases are managed in GUM therefore the data for comparative purposes are ro-
bust. The rate in men who have sex with men have also been included as they are a high risk group for
acquiring these infections.

4b. Rate of new acute STls in 15 - 24 year olds

The distribution of sexually transmitted infections varies by age and other demographic factors. The bur-
den of sexually transmitted infections is greatest in young people and therefore services should meet the
needs of young people as well as other groups. This indicator has been chosen to monitor the trends in
sexually transmitted infections among young people. As rates may reflect testing practices the percent-
age of people aged 15-24 tested for a sexually transmitted infection has also been included.

4c. Percentage coverage and positivity of chlamydia screening in all settings

Chlamydia is the most commonly diagnosed ST in under 25s, which if left untreated can lead to pelvic
inflammatory disease, ectopic pregnancy and tubal factor infertility. Chlamydia is easily diagnosed and
easily treated. The screening programme needs to target those 15-24 year olds in settings where positivi-
ty rates are known to be highest or will miss the aim of the national programme to reduce chlamydia
prevalence.

4d. Partner treatment rate for chlamydia in GUM

Testing and treatment of chlamydia will only have a limited impact on the burden of disease if sexual con-
tacts are not also tested and treated as the index case may quickly become reinfected. Treatment and
partner notification can reduce complications estimated to cost the NHS at least £100m per year.

4e. Rate of chlamydia diagnoses in all settings

This is a new outcome measure in the Public Health Outcomes Framework and reflects both coverage
and positivity of chlamydia tests from all sites, linked to reducing prevalence. Local Authorities have been
advised to proactively review and monitor their diagnostic rate and prepare for the likely level by aiming
to achieve (or maintain) rates in the range 2,400/100,000 — 3,000/100,000 or higher in 2012/13.

4f. Percentage uptake of the HPV vaccine
The following information is taken from the Health Protection Agency website (hitp//www hpa org uk
Topics/infectiousDiseases/InfectionsAZ/GenitaiWarts).

There are more than 100 types of HPV (human papillomavirus), including 40 which can infect the genital
tract and are sexually acquired. Genital HPV infections are frequently asymptomatic and resolve without
causing disease. However, certain HPV infections can cause cervical cancer, other cancers and genital
warts. 13 types of HPV have been recognised by the WHO International Agency for Research on Cancer
as being associated with cancer. HPV infections are extremely common in the sexually active population
and are particularly common in the first few years after onset of sexual activity.

DiPH Network and Dﬂhl >
ol y
f%\‘\saxualhealth :
\_ South wast

11

Dngn 133




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

e aith '@

Tor
i, sexualhe
e, ey

South wew

In the UK, a national HPV immunisation programme was introduced for all girls aged 12-13 years (school
year 8) in Autumn 2008. From 2008 to August 2012 the immunisation programme used the bivalent HPV
vaccine (CervarixTM, GlaxoSmithKline). From September 2012, 12-13 year old girls will be offered the
quadrivalent vaccine (Gardasil, Sanofi Pasteur MSD) which protects against types 16 and 18 and also
against types 6 and 11 (associated with the majority of genital warts).

4g. Percentage of sexual health service attendees accepting an HIV test

It is estimated that approximately 24% of persons with HIV are unaware of their infection. Individuals un-
aware of their infection are at risk of transmitting the infection and are also at risk of poorer outcomes as
a result of starting treatment late or not at all. Provision of HIV testing in GUM clinics has been recom-
mend since 2001 and the significant proportion of testing occurs in this setting. Through the expansion of
the GUMCAD surveillance system to level 2 sexual health services it will be possibie to also assess the
levels of HIV testing and acceptance in community services.

4h. Rate of persons accessing HIV related care

The number of persons living with HIV and accessing care in England and the South West has increased
continually since 2001 due to a variety of factors including better treatment and increased testing. HIV is
an important public health issue and rates of persons accessing care alone are of limited value but used
together with other indicators will be useful to monitor the impact of local strategies on the prevalence of
HIV. One of the recommendations of the HPA's Time to Test for HIV report is that HIV testing in primary
care and general medical admissions must be prioritized in areas with a high diagnosed HIV prevalence
(more than 2 per 1,000 15-59 year olds) and among most at-risk poputations in order to reduce late diag-
noses and the proportion undiagnosed.

4i. Percentage of HIV diagnoses that were late

HIV infections that are diagnosed earlier lead to better outcomes and lower costs to the NHS. At the mo-
ment there is a high percentage of HIV infections that are diagnosed ‘late’ (taken as a CD4 cell count of
below 350) and 'very late’ (taken as a CD4 cell count of below 200). The Chief Medicai Officer promotes
increasing opportunistic testing in a wide range of settings. There are large variations in time of diagnosis
by population groups, understanding these data is important for local service provision. The values
should be interpreted with caution as the number of new diagnoses across the region is generally low
and so a smail change in the number of late diagnoses can have a large impact on the percentage.

12




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

Timescales of data

1. Interventions to address harmful behaviours
1a. Data available quarterly
1b. Data available annually
1¢. Data not currently available
1d. Data not currently available

2. Sexual and reproductive health
2a. Data available annually
2b. Data available quarterly, based on intelligence collected
2c. Data are available approximately 6 months after the end of the complete year
2d. Data are available approximately 6 months after the end of the complete year
2e. Data are available approximately 6 months after the end of the complete year
2f. Data are available approximately every February a year in arrears

3. Access
3a. Data available quarterly
3b. Data available quarterly

4. Sexually transmitted infections and HIV
4a. Data available 10 weeks after the end of each quarter
4b. Data available 10 weeks after the end of each quarter
4c. Data available from NCSP, approximately 6 weeks after the end of each quarter
4d. Data available from NCSP, approximately 6 weeks after the end of each quarter
4e. Data avaiiable from NCSP, approximately 6 weeks after the end of each quarter
4f. Data available monthly from DH, 6 weeks after the end of each month
4g. Data available 10 weeks after the end of each quarter
4h. Data available approximately a year after the end of the year
4i. Data available approximately a year after the end of the year

13

Dngn 135




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

Red Amber Green (RAG) rating

1. Interventions to address harmful behaviours

1a. Establishment of SARCs in each area that accept self referrals

No. 1
R = No access

A = Do not accept self-referrals outside of office hours or only open office hours but offer out of

hours police call out
G = 24 hour access provided
No. 4
R = No forensic physicians or no SARC
A = Forensic physicians available but have delays to call out for some services or gender
specified doctors
G = 24 hour access provided
No. 6
R = No service available
A = Service not available on current site or is available nearby
G = Service available
No. 8
R = No arrangements in place
A = Planning underway
G = Arrangements in place
1b. Rate of police recorded rape of women
No RAG rating
1c. Percentage of those reporting sexual assault seen at SARCs
No RAG rating
1d. Percentage of completed brief alcohol intervention questionnaires

No RAG rating

2. Sexual and reproductive health

2a. LARC prescription rate per 1,000 women, GP services
Percentage change from 2007-2008 given

2b. Percentage of GP practices offering LARC
No RAG rating

2c. Percentage of repeat abortions in <25 year olds and >40 year olds
No RAG rating

2d. Percentage of abortions within 9 weeks
No RAG rating

2e. Abortions by method (medical/ surgical)
No RAG rating

2f. Rolling average rate of conceptions in under 18 year olds
No RAG rating

P 36

‘Q‘fﬂlaalth .
ey

14




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

3. Access

No RAG rating

No RAG rating
No RAG rating

olds

No RAG rating

No RAG rating
No RAG rating

No RAG rating

No RAG rating

Qhoalm

3a. Access to appointments at GUM services over the weekend

R = No weekend service provision (unable to meet regional target)
A = Weekend service provision, no appointments (pofential to meet regionaf target)
G = Weekend service provision with appointments (meets regional target)

3b. Percentage of services (including Sexual Health) accredited as young people friendly

4. Sexually transmitted infections and HIV
4a. Combined rate of syphilis and gonorrhoea

4b. Rate of acute STls in under 25 year olds

4e. Rate of chlamydia diagnoses in all settings in 15-24 year olds
No RAG rating but larget rate between 2,400 - 3,000 per 100,000 15 - 24 year olds.
4f. Percentage uptake of the HPV vaccine

4g. Rate of persons accessing HIV related care

4h. Percentage of HIV diagnoses that were late

4i. Percentage of sexual health service attendees accepting an HIV test

4c. Percentage coverage and positivity of chlamydia screening in all settings in 15-24 year

RAG for 2012/13 Q1-2 (NCSP 2010/11 internal trajectory rolled over to 2012/13 to support the rollo-
ver of the 2010/11 35% coverage target)

R = <10% (Far short of NCSP internal trajectory)

A = 10-<14% (Under NCSP internal trajectory)

G = 214% (On or above NCSP internal trajectory)
4d. Percentage of partners notified in GUM

15

RPage- 137/




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

Q'-x‘ gﬁ:ﬂﬁﬁihfc}:iith q‘“'“x}
i 3 Sanin Wept
1. Interventions to address harmful
1a. Establishments of SARCs in each area that accept self
referrals
Indicator |
Key eiements nos 1, 4, 6 & 8, from: A Resource for Developing Sexual Assault Referral Centres (SARCs).
Published 21 Oct 2008 jointly by the Department of Health, Home Office and the Association of Chief Po-
lice Officers, highlighting the minimum elements essential for providing high-quality SARCs for victims of
sexual violence and sexual abuse, including forensic medical examination.
‘No. 1 Twenty-four hour access, including arrangements for self-referrals, to crisis support, first aid, safe-
guarding, specialist clinical and forensic care in a secure unit.
No. 4 Access to forensic physicians and other practitioners who are appropriately qualified, trained and |
supported and who are experienced in sexual offences examinations for adults and children.
No. 6 The medical consultation includes a risk assessment of harm/self harm, together with an assess-
ment of vulnerability and sexual health; immediate access to emergency contraception, post exposure
prophylaxis (PEP) or other acute, mental health or sexual health services and follow-up as needed.
|No. 8 Well co-ordinated interagency arrangements are in place, involving local third sector service or- |
ganisations supporting victims and survivors, and are reviewed regularly to support the SARC in delivering
to agreed care pathways and standards of care.
Areas covered by RAG Summa
Rl SARC No. 1 No.4 | No.6 | No.8 ry
BANES, Bristol, North Torbay is covered by the Dev-
Avon & Somerset Somerset, Somerset, G G G G on & Torbay SARC. The
sl SARC provides a 24 h
Gloucestershire . provides a our ser-
vice for police referrals. They
Gloucestershire | Gloucestershire G G G G have access to forensic physi-
cians as part of the medical _
. management, Emergency
Swindon & - ann
Wiltshire Swindon, Wiltshire G G G G contraception is also part of
the routine aftercare for vic-
Boumermouth & tims. The SARC also has co-
Doss Pooie, Dorset A A € < ordinated  interagency  ar-
rangements in place.

Devon &

Torbay* Devon, Torbay A G G G |
Plymouth* Plymouth G G G A |
Cormnwall* Cornwall G G G G

*Cornwall, Plymouth and Devon and Torbay SARCs share a Peninsula SARC Strategy Forum and have one Clinical

Director to standardise procedures and make best use of limited funding. This is considered good practice.
5 1 16
Page-138-



Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report
OxPH Network end Ofilos
%Qua!health

1. Interventions to address harmful
behaviours
1b. Rate of police recorded rape of women

Indicator LA 2000110 | 2010111 | 2091112
Bath & North East Somerset | 21.1 386 267

Rate of police recorded rape per 100,000 female Boumemouth 1189 | 1089 | 630
population all ages, 2009/10 to 2011/12. It should be Bristol 88.6 76.4 94.3
noted that rape is under reported to the police and Cheltenham 431 56.0 45.6
the figures may be higher than presented. R 407 | 485 [ 161
Comwall 55.0 50.2 64.5

Cotswold 280 | 257 39.7

Source: Data for ‘Community Safely Partnerships East Devon 406 | 450 | 449
(CSPs)’ obtained from the Office for National Statis- East Dorset 24.1 284 221
fics (ONS) on request. Apr 09/Mar 10 - Apr 11/Mar 12 Exeter 57.8 85.7 79.2
Forest of Dean 0.9 262 | 408

Gloucester 777 | 87 92.5

Isles of Scilly 0.0 0.0 0.0

Further information and to refer to comparator Mendip 198 | 287 | 358
areas see Balance Scorecard for Sexual Health: Mid Dexon 54.4 70.4 60.5
hitp [/www apho orq uk/addons/ 11837 3/atlas html ey 2L B0 00
North Dorset .0 341 1.6

North Somerset 30.0 213 | 451

Plymoxth 60.7 | 1008 | 974

Summary Poole 547 | 545 | 568
Purbeck 30.2 51,8 39.3

The rate of police recorded rape per 100,000 female zﬁ:'gmmmm ?:“; :;i g-:

. A . . 1 . . .

| population in Torbay was 82.6. This was higher than B e 24 35.1 805
{the Local Authority average rate (54.8 per 100,000) South Somerset 14.8 222 499
and England rate (52.1 per 100,000). This was also Stroud 48.0 44.0 27.9
higher than the closest statistical neighbour, Isle of i‘“"“‘”"oem ::-4 o] (2.2
Wight, which had a rate of 53.7 per 100,000. bl T B o | e
Tewkesbury 20.1 43.0 16.7

Over the past three years there has been no signifi- Torbay 79.5 88.1 82.6
cant change in the rate of police recorded rape in L“::g;em i:; 32:': g':
Torbay. The rate rose from 79.5 per 1,000 in 2009/10 \West Dorset il | [yt | ey
to 88.1 per 1,000 in 2010/11 befare dropping again in West Somerset 16.2 16.2 60.8
201112, Weymouth & Portland 624 | es7 39.8
Wittshire 37.6 | 421 41.0

Total 475 51.8 54.8

, | England 50.3 2.7 52.1

150 Rate of police recorded rape per 10(_),000 femg_le popuiation
g
2100 g
=
E —
- il ikt
Qg el - 3 e LI B e - .E; i gy e e
=Wl L =vlpg e = civinmpile s £ £ aXbsEcwvweDnec oo o TR = B e %]
SRR N R R R R RS R R R N RN R R SRR R R
25 Epdla88 88882550z ERs85 3058883 E
28285855 t33°3ss £ SEEETageitfgyles -
g3 580 =4 gog =5 AL ERSL e Lp g
Y- . 2009/10 =;2010/11 2 ma1th2 =

Dngp 130 ' ' ' 17



Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

1. Interventions to address harmful
behaviours
1c. Percentage of those reporting sexual assault seen at

SARCs
lln dicator | i Nur:fber Nur:fber P s
Percentage of those reporting a sexual as-| veforals ooy i referred
sault, as in indicator 1b, 1o the police who are Ao RiSor 719 o 290
referred to a sexual assault referral centre. : ]
Please note that other agencies will refer vic- Gloucestershuhre ; o L e
tims to SARCs, which is not captured here. [S)windon & Wiltshire 322 160 201.3
orset* - 150 o
Numerator source: Sexual Assault Referral| |Devon & Torbay 232 278 83.5
Centres Plymouth** - 126 -
Denominator source: Data for 'Community |Comwall 47 177 266
Safely Partnerships (CSPs)’ obtained from the | |Total 1009 1479 68.2
Office for National Statistics (ONS) on request.
April 2011 - March 2012. J
's . . - ]
ummary

| From April 2011 to March 2012 the Devon and Torbay SARC received 232 referrals from the Police service

while the police recorded 278 sexual assaults against women. This represents a 83.5% referral rate from
|the Police to the SARC. Some cases may not be referred due to the case being historical and some victims
will decline referral.

Please note that the Police may refer women to the SARC who require support but have not formally re-

ported a sexual assault leading to a percentage higher than 100%. Referrals from other agencies are also
not captured.

Percentage of those reporting sexual assault seen at a SARC

250

ZLI | L

i

[y
wl
o

[y

Percentage
o & 8
1 I

Avon & Somerset
Gloucestershire
Swindon &
Wiltshire

Devon & Torbay !_ il
Plymouth**
Cornwall
Total

j
i

18




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

South Wett

D3P Nrtwerk snd Otfice
kfmflheanh

1. Interventions to address harmful
behaviours

1d. Percentage of completed brief alcohol intervention
questionnaires

Indicator

Percentage of attendees of a sexual health service
who have received a brief alcohol intervention.

Source: sexual and reproductive health activity da-
taset. Code: 30

Summary

Data are not currently available and it is estimated
that all services will be reporting by April 2015.

This indicator is included in preparation and to facili-
tate local discussions about the NICE guidance and
new studies on alcohol intervention and brief advice
in sexual health settings.

Page 141

18




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

2. Sexual and reproductive health

2a. LARC prescription rate per 1000 women, GP services

'Indicator i Rate per 1,000 [% change 08/09

2011/12 1112

) _ Bath and NE Somerset 61.1 226

J Zit:rs::IchZnﬁrr:::;?;: (ﬂg;c?e? | Boumemouth and Poole 61.6 27.1
| ) i Bristol 58.5 8.0
1,000 registered female pqpulatlon Comwall & sles of Scilly 75.8 320
aged 15-44, 2011/12. LARC includes | Devon 654 34.2
Implant, IUD/IUS and injection. Dorset 56.4 31.9
Gloucestershire 76.7 313

| Source: NHS Information Centre for North Somerset 62.0 24.4
Health and Social Care Information. Plymouth Teaching 63.4 19.9
Somerset 82.7 342

South Gloucestershire 771 347

' ' |swindon 53.2 12.4
Torbay Care Trust 731 21.9

‘ Wiltshire 80.3 485
Total 68.8 28.3

\_ | England 524 26.3

'Summary

The rate of GP prescribed LARC per 1,000 registered female population aged 15-44 in Torbay has in-
creased by 21.9% from 2008/09 (59.9 per 1,000) to 2011/12 (73.1 per 1,000), the fourth lowest increase in
the region. The LARC prescription rate in Torbay was higher than the local authority average rate (68.8 per
1,000) and the national rate (52.4 per 1,000) for 2011/12,

Al the areas in the region have primary care LARC prescribing rates above the England average (52.4 per |

1,000). |
100 LARC Rate per 1,000 registered female population aged 1544
80 |
60 2
'] w— -
Sk =
20 { % !
w — N - — -
£2g % 3 S g § gy ogwmoy @ B St Sk
B2 . A ¥ 8 W g§ °E% 3§ v = e e
5o £ & A o 8 i g E v £ =3 b [ a =
sk 32 &5 = = g e T 5 = e
‘gi’ [ Q = © I vy o - vy QO 4 LW ]
o = o T W o = v o P
bt 2 3 v S o
= = o (=] 9 =
3 k= (L) = o =]
2 #3008/09 W 2009/10 #2010/11 2012/1T

20

Page 142




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

2. Sexual and reproductive health
2b. Percentage of LARC GP practices

IE:Iicator i PCT % Practices offering LARC
Q1 2012/13 Q4 2012113
Percentage of practices that can offer all Bath and NE Somerset 85.2 92.6
methods of LARC (Implant, IUD/IUS and g‘?":"lem“‘h gaibosie gg'; 1;’70;;’
injection). Information as of July 2013. C:;:n?vvall & Isles of Scilly 82:9 85:5
Devon 60.4 60.4
Source: Data provided by the Fublic Dorset 94.8 94.8
Health teams. Gloucestershire 576 74.0
North Somerset 76.0 85.0
Plymouth Teaching 46.5 70.0
Somerset 51.3 55.3
South Gloucestershire 76.9 76.9
Swindon 63.0 66.7
Torbay 90.0 80.0
Wiltshire 82.5 82.5
Total 70.5 75.1
[England - -

Summary
|
The percentage of GP practices offering all methods of LARC in quarter 4 2012/13 was 90.0%, which was

higher than the Local Authority average (75.1%). This was the fourth highest in the region and but there
was no change from the percentage of GP practices offering LARC in quarter 1 2012/13 {(90.0%).

Percentage of practices offering LARC

(#1205
| 100 -
| u |
% 80 —
b L
£ 60 —
£ | !,[ i =
I e
0T N m=n
w g T 5 o 5 w @ & g o
sis 2 g POl s SRl £ 3 B
T R 5 E 8 & s§ S s
55 8% = g 2 & 3 2% 2
8w E S = ) = = w8
2] Q G -] 3 =i =5
£ 2 2 S 2 2
3 = G} = £ [G]
& S =
1 Q12012/13 & mQa2012/13

Page 143 21




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

mmmm- ﬁ;:-—,
4 for

sexuathealth \\\}

South Wen

e

2. Sexual and reproductive health

2c. Percentage repeat abortions all ages

. 4 bortions % change
Indicator PCT (2009-11)/ CC Aispeata 9
(2008:11)/.CCG 2012) 2009 [ 2010 [ 2011 | 2012 |2009-2012

Percentage of abortions Bath and NE _Somerset 274 299 319 294 7.4
that are repeat abortions Gloucestershire 287 27.9 304 334 16.3
. i ' |Swindon 36.5 38.1 40.1 36.9 1.2
2009 - 2012, Wiltshire 285 276 31.0 31.0 9.1

i Bristol 288 312 341 356 235
Please note that in 2012 |Q Rfe 308 | 278 | 278 | 371 | 206
the data were presented by | |5 oy 284 | 270 | 331 | 322 | 133
clinical COMMISSIONING | |54 4h Gloucestershire 308 | 302 | 311 | 377 | 223
|group as opposed to PCT. | Gormyail & lsles of Sailly 264 | 244 | 254 | 276 45
PCTs align to all areas ex- NHS North, East, West Devon 275
cept Devon County which NHS South Deveon and Torbay 34,8
forms two CCGs and Dor- Devon 272 25.7 2390
'set County which forms| |pymouth Teaching 28.5 27.2 31.7
one. Torbay 295 31.8 39.4

NHS Dorset 344

Source:  Department of Dorset 27.4 296 321
Health Bournemouth and Poole 277 31.0 34.4
' Total 28.7 288 31.3
| | |England 34.8 34.2 36.1 36.9 6.1
|Summary

In April 2012 commissioning responsibility for abortion services transferred to Clinical Commissioning
|Groups (CCGs), therefore the 2012 data are presented by CCG area. Although not directly responsible for|
these services Sexual Health Commissioners in Public Health may wish to continue monitoring abortion
statistics due to impacts on other services such as contraception and the health of the wider population.

The percentage of repeat abortions for the NHS South Devon and Torbay CCG was 34.6% for 2012 which
was lower than England average (36.9%). It was the fourth highest percentage of repeat abortions across
the CCGs in 2012. Unfortunately it is not possible to directly compare the 2012 percentage with those of

previous years due to a change in boundaries.
|
| -

Percentage repeat abortions, 2009-2012

]
i

50
40
8

3

Devon

o -

T e

Total

Bath and NE
Gloucestershire
Swindon |
Wiltshire :
Bristol
North Somerset S
Somerset
Cornwall & Isles..
NHS Dorset |
Dorset
Bournemouth..
England i

NHS North, East,..._i_
Plymouth Teaching _
Torbay '[lefrﬁ'ﬂ i/

12009

j
[
(=]
ot
(=]

22

a
FNHS South Devon..,
N2 3

!-A




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

o

for
soxualhealth i
<= TSN Foh
2. Sexual and reproductive health
2d. Percentage abortions within 9 weeks
Indica ¥ % within 9 weeks % change
tor A (LR Xl ] 2009 2010 2011 2012 |2009-2012
Percentage of abortions Bath and NE §omemet 69.8 810 80.5 76.3 9.3
. Gloucestershire 67.9 69.6 706 725 6.8
carried out between 3 and 9 g
p Swindon 85.2 83.1 833 87.8 31
weeks of gestation (9 weeks Wiltshi 78.1 80.1 791 12
is defined as 9 completed TESTITE - il : 2 :
K | o0 6 d Bristol 80.2 79.0 785 79.8 -06
| weexs %:'2 up to 6 days), |y somerset 773 | 759 | 805 | 753 2.5
2009 - 2012. Somerset 675 | 709 | 703 | 764 | 132
. South Gloucestershire 83.3 77.6 755 771 -7.5
Please note that in 2012 the ' [Gormwall & Isles of Scilly 628 | 624 | 685 | 724 15.3
data were presented by clin- NHS North, East. West Devon 728
ical commissioning group as | ["NHS South Devon and Torbay 78.6
opposed to PCT. PCTs |pevon 70.3 68.4 736
align to all areas except| |plymouth Teaching 72.2 67.2 74.6
Devon County which forms | [Torbay 73.8 757 81.2
two CCGs and Dorset NHS Dorset 78.4
County which forms one. Daorset 716 77.8 76.7
Bournemouth and Poole 75.8 79.8 82.3
Source:  Department of |[Total 73.5 74.0 76.0
Health. [England 75.1 76.9 .7 77.8 3.6
Summary i
The percentage of abortions carried out within 9 weeks was 78.6% for NHS South Devon and Torbay in |
2012. This was slightly higher than the England average {(77.8%). It was the fourth highest percentage of
abortions within 9 weeks in the region.

Unfortunately it is not possible to directly compare the 2012 percentage with those of previous years due to
a change in boundaries. However, between 2009 and 2011 the percentage of abortions carried out within 9
weeks increased by 10%.

Percentage of abortions within 9 weg_ks of_gestat_lon,_ 2009-2012

100 -
80 : -
| a | )
—
g 60 i - i =
8 1 | -
SR | i —
a ' i E
n } a - = -
0 i L. s A S L e S - . .
w [ c [ ey 5 e = %] ; = c il 2> - o = =
Z S s Leeorlis i S Sl B 8 A S S S DU S U o SR SN R Qs S & R B0ET
TR C B D)o Bk 2 S = i b et e Sl B Rt & I 2 SR 5 SR D Rl el - TR 2 e O R 5
I i £ 2 o b} @ A s a £ = =] =3 £ =
H @ 3 = £ [ o3 P e CRE = [ o o &
A=t =3 bt _
£ = vi =2 a uo} ® 5 % o 2 = o
L o = S 2 = 3
£ 5 = £ i <]
a=) [=] (=} T @
(G} = PO
2009 E2010 Rm2011 12012

23

Dagp 145



Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

/{\_\ sexualhealth ?Q}

T South wen
2. Sexual and reproductive health
2e. Percentage abortions medical vs surgical
Naelicas o % Medical % change
Indicator 2009- CG (2 g
B 2onycec (2012) 2009 [ 2010 | 2011 | 2012 |2009-2012
lpememage of abortions| |Bath and NE Somerset 332 35.0 6.4 279 -16.1
carried out by medical and quucestershlre 40.5 41.2 357 38.0 -6:
surgical procedures, 2009 a‘;';:ﬂ?r: ggg 32 x ig? gi': 145' 2
72012, Bristol 359 343 35.1 339 5.4
. North Somerset 344 29.1 333 274 -20.4
meazet note that in 2215 Somerset 200 | 24 | 272 | 38 587
|be I.a.a Iwe’e presente South Gloucestershire 378 | 208 | 344 | 209 | -208
y clinical commissioning 55 vall & Isies of Scilly 13.9 152 | 271 443 | 2179
|9’°“F’ as opposed to PCT. NHS North, East, West Devon 314
PCTs align to all areas NHS South Devon and Torbay 338
except Devon County Devon 235 247 20.6
which forms two CCGS  |pymouth Teaching 144 | 167 | 288
and Dorset County which Torbay 335 39.1 39.0
forms one. NHS Dorset 410
Dorset 32.0 358 36.3
Source: Department of  |Beurnemouth and Pooke 496 55.9 50.1
Health. Total 33.0 347 36.9
| {England 39.0 422 46.4 47.4 216
Summary

The percentage of abortions carried out by medical procedure was 33.6% for NHS South Devon and Tor-
bay CCG in 2012. This was lower than the England average (47 .4%).

Unfortunately it is not possible to directly compare the 2012 percentage with those of previous years due to |
a change in boundaries. The percentage of medical abortions had increased between 2009 (33.5%) and
2010 (39.1%) but there was no change in 2011 (39.0%). The lower percentage in the CCG may be due to
the lower percentage of medical abortions carried out within the Devon area.

Percentage of abortions carried out by medical prodecures, 2009-2012

[ . ! 3 y
B s | i .i.
._| :! ,! | ! { f
n f . n4 N
¢ . 1t l '.-J i _JI. '=.-\. 1 S & B ‘IJ -_ ; - - et -
4 HERY b = i H g oL H e
L2 5 L % %R £ % ¢g's o sE R 3§ =@
H T A G B R R S e
% 0 o Bl fNC = BRE o DR e SEe T AR O RS S E ROl E &
o = L Sy
5 3 w1 = 8 3 o 5 % o g = i
kg o E 2 = 3
)3 2 CRers 2
° Q Ofhal T =
(D] = L] zZ S
12009 w2010 W2011 12012

Page 146 A




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

2. Sexual and reproductive health

2f. Rate of under 18 year old conceptions

Indicator ; Average rate per | % change of
Local Authority 1,000 females Q2 | rate 1998 to
Rolling average rate of conceptions per iti- Q112 20118
4,000 15-17 year old females by Top Tier g:thr::;:lulthmnerset ;:2 :;;;
Local' Authonty, April 2011 to March 2012 Bristol 245 349
(provisional data). Comwall & lsles of Scilly 30.5 -23.9
Devon County 28.5 -21.0
Source: ONS and Teenage Pregnancy Dorset County 235 277
Unit, Department for Education. Gloucestershire 217 -48.3
North Somerset 243 -28.3
| Denominator: the May 2013 revised mid Plymouth 40.4 -20.3
year population estimates for 2002—2010 | Poole 29.3 -27.7
have been used lo calculate the denomina- Somerset 28.5 -28.4
tor for these years. All years prior to 2002 South Gloucestershire 19.5 -39.3
are based on the 2001 census mid year Swindon 28.8 424
population estimates. Torbay 51.7 20.1
Wiltshire County 23.8 -28.7
Total 27.5 -30.7
[England 30.7 -34.1
Summary

The rate of conceptions in under 18 year olds in Torbay was 57.7 per 1,000 for Q2 2011 to Q1 2012. This
was higher than the England rate (30.7 per 1,000) and was the highest rate in the region.

Torbay is the only area within the region to have seen an increase in the rate of under 18 year old concep-

[tions between 1998 (58.5 per 1,000) and 2011 (53.1 per 1,000). While a decrease was seen between 1998
and 2003 there was a subsequent increase up to 2008, where the rate peaked at 66.4 per 1,000. Although
the rate had been reducing again in the following two year there was a rise in 2011. Reducing teenage
pregnancies remains a priority in Torbay.

Teenage conceptions rate per 1,000 females in under 18 year olds, 1997-2011
70

| ‘\/\/
50 5&_#_/"&‘\_ " i =

j S — e =~

20

10 -

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Under 18 conception rate per 1000

— England —— W Torbay

Page 147 - - >




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

Cnf Merrwors. et Offlas
L)
\T“\Nhaalth

e Wt
3. Access
3a. Access to appointments at GUM services over the
weekend

Indicator ' Local area

Bath and NE Somerset
Availability of weekend GUM service provision with ap- Boumemouth and Poole
pointments. This will be measured by quarterly reports | Bristol
from Public Health teams Comwall & ksles of Scilly
Source: Public Health teams : Devon
= —==3 R — - Dorset

Gloucestershire

North Somerset
Plymouth Teaching
Somerset

South Gloucestershire
Swindon

Torbay

Wiltshire

Total

[England

RAG rating
o Red

1 Amber
o Green

.Summary

Torbay Care Trust does not currently provide a weekend GUM service and therefore only meets the criteria
for the red RAG rating.

| — = . - = o - - L —

Rage-148 <



Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report
h - H

3. Access

3a. Number of young people services in LA verified as meet-
ing ‘You’re Welcome’ standard

| Indicator |

|Number of health services which have been accredited through a locally determined verification and mod-I
eration process which is aligned to the Department of Health You're Welcome quality criteria for assessing
young people friendly services.

Source: Department of Health

Summary

Reduction in capacity and changes in personnel has made it difficult to take a more proactive role in recruit-
ing more services and then supporting them. This has resulted in no further services being accredited as
Young People Friendly in Torbay between quarter 1 and quarter 4 2012/13.

Q1 2012113 data Q4 2012113
Total no. of services | No. of sexual ; Total no. of services el
o " - - 3 health
verified as meeting [health services| verified as meeting "
YW (inc sexual verified as YW (inc sexual .
- - verified as
health services) meeting YW health services) "
meeting YW
Bath and NE Somerset 54 54 54 54
Bourmemouth and Poole 5 5 5 5
Bristol 6 6 13 13
Cornwallt & Isles of Scilly 23 4 23 4
Deven 9 4 9 4
Dorset 2 2 2 2
Gloucestershire 5 5 5 5
North Somerset 15 15 15 15
Piymouth Teaching 6 5 -] 5
Somerset 13 12 19 19
South Gloucestershire 0 0 0 0
Swindon 3 3 3 3
Torbay 11 7 11 7
Wiltshire 11 11 17 16
Total 163 131 182 152

Please note, numbers correct as of 12/07/2013 and will not reflect services verified as meeting You're Welcome since this date

Page 149 27




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

4 tor ¥
| N axualhealth W
“"-.._‘J"w

- South weat

4. Sexually Transmitted Infections

4a. Combined rate of new diagnoses of gonorrhoea and
syphilis in GUM

|Indicator = Rate in all % change Rate in % change
Combined rate of new diagno- v persons | o0 o012 |MSMEper| o
ses of gonorrhoea and syphilis | per 100,000 100,000

in GUM based on Upper Tier |Bath and NE Somerset 97 6.8 2491 284
|LA of patient residence, Octo- Bournemouth* 14.7 777 527.9 2816
|'°er to December 2012. | |Bristor 157 87 8700 | 8617
Numerator source: GUMCAD. | Cornwall & Isles of Scilly 3.5 122 1484 49.9
Gonorrhoea codes: B1, B2 | [Devon 4.1 26.1 176.2 1005.3
|55. Syphilis codes: A1, A2, |Dorset 27 74.6 i 0.0
A3, | Gloucestershire 4.2 43 103.1 219.9
Denominator source: ONS mig| [North Somerset' 34 34 0.0 1847
2011 LA population estimates. | |Plymouth Teaching 7.8 5.0 3720 | 241
|Estimated MSM  popufation: |Poole® 41 8.0 0.0 0.0
2.8% of the male population Somerset 11 74 : 1195
over 15 years of age are esti- :

| ated o be MSM outside of| |SUn GI:)ucestershire 6.5 5.5 300.7 352.3
London3. Higher estimates are | [Swindon 16.2 1354 2074 38.0
used for Bournemouth, Poole, | |Torbay Care Trust 84 31.7 - 300.0
BffStO’ and Swindon (3.4%, |wiltshire 4.8 147.3 243.2 607.6
lnationa! average % of MSM). | Total 6.1 24.8 248.5 230.8
Summary ]

The combined rate of gonorrhoea and syphilis in Torbay was 8.4 per 100,000 for Oclober to December
2012. This was higher than the Local Authority average rate (6.1 per 100,000) and the fifth highest rate in
the region. There was a 31.7% increase in the rate of gonorrhoea and syphilis in Torbay from 2009 (24.3
per 100,000) to 2012 (32.0 per 100,000). This was the fifth highest increase in infection in the region.

The rate of gonorrhoea and syphilis in MSM for October to December 2012 had been masked as the num-
ber was less than five. Between 2009 and 2012 the rate of gonorrhoea and syphilis in MSM rose by 300%
from 337.6 per 100,000 to 1,350.3 per 100,000. This was the fifth highest percentage increase in the region
and the rate in 2012 was the third highest in the region.

Combined rate of Syphilis and Gonorrhoea diagnoses in GUM, all ages 2009 to 2012

80
o 70 -
8 so 1 I
= 40 L
g 30 i 8 T _
@ 20 iﬁl i . i : =
e Wl N
10 4 ! h i k i Y . 1 11 ]
0 . & . ! ﬁ-:f - W % S S -
At —
Sifeetoen il S e R R
TR RS P D witeg oy it o RS EpR 2l D I = R MR
RE B F ®_ e o g g 8 2 g gf BoS 8
£sE ¢ i 7 Feal= G EE D GRS I H0 = BRE L Sl =
=y oas U 25 @ g 2 NEE R iG o (8]
£ A b, = = = I= = - o~
3 2 = = a ] 3
8 g 2 s B C £
= (G = =4 (O] o
S = ]
£ 2009 2010 o m2011 2012
28
—PRage 150
ge 1



Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

manmmm;u o ""'.\-:._,:__
for o
sexuathealth ]
-2 = South Wt
4. Sexually Transmitted Infections & HIV
4b. Rate of total STI diagnoses in people aged under 25 in
GUM
. o,
Indicator T Rate per | % change Aa‘:_s‘;lz‘:s % change
. 10,000 2009-2012 ye 2009-2012

Rate of total STI diagnoses tested
(chlamydia, gonorrhoea, Bath and NE Somerset 285 -5.2 1.0 -8.3
syphilis, herpes and warts) B uth 73.0 36 23 235
per 10,000 people aged 15- Bqutno'llemo 39'1 6.2 o 5 0
|24 years in GUM based on g3 3 ey ; :
Upper Tier LA of patient resi- Cornwall & Isles of Scilly 49.7 -17.8 19 117
dence, October to December Devon 60.0 3.7 2.2 219
2012. Dorset 69.7 -14.8 20 22

Gloucestershire 384 -28.4 1.3 -10.8
Numerator source. GUM-
CAD. Codes: A1r A2 A3 B North Somerset 55.7 57 3.3 B6
B1, B2, B5, C4, C4A, C48,| |Plymouth Teaching 78.2 -10.7 28 3.9
| C4C, C4H, C4N, C5 C5A,|  [Poole 48.8 -18.5 17 -15.9
053‘-0 1%3' C9, C10A, C11A|  isomerset 37.9 0.7 1.3 16.9
an ' South Gloucestershire 202 -16.5 0.6 -0.7
Denominator source: ONS Swindon 100.4 17.6 27 23.0
mid year LA population esti- Torbay Care Trust 105.6 374 2.7 22.2
mates. Wiltshire 316 -5.1 1.1 22

Total 51.1 -7.3 1.7 5.2

Summary

the region.

Rate of all STis diagnosed in people in under 25s, in GUM, 2009t0 2012

The rate of acute STls in 15-24 year olds in Torbay was 105.6 per 10,000 for October to December 2012.
This was the highest rate of acute STls in the region. Between 2009 and 2012 there was a 37.4% increase
from 302.8 per 10,000 to 416.1 per 10,000. This was the largest increase in acute STls in young people in

The percentage of 15-24 year olds tested for an acute STl in Torbay was 2.7% for October to December
2012. This was higher than the local authority average (1.7%) and was the third highest in the region.
There was a 22.2% increase in the percentage of 15-24 year olds tested between 2009 (9.8%) and 2012
(12.0). This was the second largest increase in testing in the region.

500
& 400
Q !
S 300 ]
= &
§200 ——3 =
' o . 1 H i s n . % || .
— A
2, £ 2 % B ke pe ey o PR e O S IR e e B Y
s} b 1S = 1 o G & = Qo o 5 = = 5
c = A beks (2] o, — f— 8
SloiECE Dls S O S BN T IE e R ENE gz v E
CHERE L @ = ) o SO SEAS IR RS L e S
Fwv 5 =0 2 e L] w ¥ o,
G 2 g SRS 2 F1
oS 2 2 ] =] £ o
3 = =
12009 m20 o'; 1 S m2011 2012 29
age .




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

4. Sexually Transmitted Infections & HIV

D3P Nevwork and Dffice

|

-

4c. Percentage coverage and positivity of chlamydia in all

Soxualhealth &

settings
Indicator LA % Coverage | % Positivity
| Percentage coverage and positivity of tests from all |  [Bath and North East Somerset 14.0 6.2
| settings submitted to CTAD (Chlamydia Testing' (Boumemouth 340 6.7
Activity Dataset) January to December 2012. Bristol, City of 46.8 6.7
| Cheltenham 21.4 6.9
Denominator source: 15-24 year old population| |Christchurch 19.3 7.9
estimates are the mid year LA population esti-| g'&m:; gg gg
5. SWO! 5 !
Lmate | |East Devon 19.7 7.9
- ~ |East Dorset 20.0 6.7
o Exeter 4.5 88
CTAD Forest of Dean 19.6 7.3
In 2012 CTAD replacgd Fhe NSCP, non-NCSP non | |Gloucester 27.9 95
GUM and GUM submissions of chlamydia screens. | sles of Scilly 257 <5%
In the new system laboratories processing the| [Mendip 20.9 6.8
specimens report the figures directly to PHE who | |Mid Devon 155 89
|collate the data. Please note that the complete-| |North Devon 17.4 8.3
ness of key fields such as postcode of resi- (North Dorset 24.0 5.9
| dence in the 2012 is not as high as under NCSP  |North Somerset 21.4 8.7
and so records will have been assigned to LA  [Plymouth 17.6 9.6
based upon site of test or laboratory rather| |Poole 23.1 6.3
than residence. Therefore the 2012 chlamydia g""be‘* g?; g'i
figures should be interpreted with caution. Details o - : i
f leti be found 33 South Gloucestershire 10.1 7.0
of completion can be found on page 33. South Hams 16.4 8.3
——— B " [South Somerset 18.6 7.8
Stroud 21.2 8.1
Swindon 228 10.6
Summary . : . Taunton Deane 241 7.4
The coverage of chlamydia screening in Torbay Telgnbridge 18.2 115
|was 29.2% of 15—24 year olds. This was higher A o o
than the Local Authority average (24.8%) and na- Torbay 26.2 12.5
|tiona| average (25.8%). Tomidge 14.9 7.2
. . West Devon 15.4 8.2
The percentage of persons testing positive was| |waest Dorset 19.9 58
12.5% in Torbay for 2012. This was higher than |west Somerset 24.4 10.2
the national average (7.7%) and was the highest |Weymouth and Portiand 325 56
| positivity in the region indicating appropriate target- | [Wiltshire 20.0 8.8
| ing of screening. Total 24.8 7.9
[ [England 25.8 7.7
Percentage coverage and positivity In all settings, 2012
50
45
40
& 35
Z30 :
25 = : :
& 15 - - : - I E
d 2 - | = 1
3 . i i N | l_ . I =N R NN
= e i I dr - R = ) . At Ay o
R SR IR SRR A BN R R R IR R R A
=z g:.cémggm gnzgyee QLEmeﬁ.ESE‘nothwSﬂ'—m
T EZ2as who 5 a3g = £EE e RELN RS cPUA G EEE I 5
SEEEEScEE 2o ZEgle T 300 St ih g 8iE
S8 205 e SNEISie NSNS 18k S &g Ef&  =zzgt
bt b e 2 & i 2z
% Coverage B % Positivity

Page 152

30




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

DY Mertwink and Otfice
for %
i sexualhealth
"---....__",,._l_hal s South Wait

4. Sexually Transmitted Infections & HIV

4d. Partner treatment rate for chlamydia in GUM

'Indicator | [Upper Tier Local Authority 2011 2012
| |Bath and North East Somerset 0.77 0.51
Proportion of partners attending a GUM Bc_tumemouth kS 235
linic for chlamydia per index case di LI 0,98 D%
clinic Tor chiamydia per index case ci-| - Joomwall & 108 0.34 0.48
agnosed in a GUM clinic, 2011-2012.
MCAD d ] Devon 0.52 0.55
| GU ata only. Pl.ease note this Dorset 0.35 0.35
dat.al so'urce does not tnclude.partl.'ler Gloucestershire 0.42 0.52
notification data from other settings i.e. North Somerset 0.49 0.59
GPs and pharmacies. Please contact Plymouth 0.48 0.45
your local provider for this data. Poole 0.29 0.37
Somerset 0.43 0.53
Source: Genitourinary medicine clinical| | S0uth Gloucestershire 0.58 0.53
activity dataset Swindon 0.51 0.60
Torbay 0.62 0.64
Wiltshire 0.73 0.80
South West 0.49 0.55
|L ) [England - -
'Summary

The proportion of partners attending a chlamydia related appointment per index case diagnosed in GUM
was 0.64 in Torbay for 2012. This was higher than the regional average (0.55) and was the third highest
proportion in the region. However, there has only been a small increase in the proportion of partners at-
tending from 2011 to 2012.

BASHH guidelines on partner notification state that male index cases with urethral symptoms should have |
all contacts in the four weeks prior to symptoms contacted. All other index cases should have all contacts |
in the six months prior to presentation contacted®. The performance standard for verified chlamydial partner |
notification is at least 0.4 contacts per index case for level 1, 2 and 3 sexual health services. |

Proportion of partners attending a chlamydia related appointment in GUM

ll'illl'lll'l

H2011 W2012

Proportion
0000 COOOOm
ORMNWAEUNASRWDO

s

Poole
Wiltshire

Bath and North East
Somerset
Bournemouth
Bristol
Cornwall & 108
Devon
Dorset
Gloucestershire
North Somerset
Plymouth
Somerset
South
Gloucestershire
Swindon
South West

Page 153 3



Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

DiPH Network snd Offics %"‘H—
L
@. sexuathealth
T South went
4. Sexually Transmitted Infections & HIV
4e. Rate of chlamydia diagnoses in all settings including GUM
Indicator Diagnoses
LA rate per
o 100,000
Rate of chlamydia diagnoses per 100,000 15-24 year 1
shamydia clagnoses p y Bath and North East Somerset 873.8
olds. This includes diagnoses from NCSP, non-NCSP/ D a3 22901
non-GUM and GUM (Jan - Dec 2012) submitted to  |guc City of 3142 3
cTAD. Cheltenham 1,476.6
Christchurch 1,5632.5
Numerator source: GUMCAD and NCSP data Comwall 2,193.9
Denominator source: 15-24 year old population esti-  |Cotswold 1,396.8
mates are the mid year LA population estimates East Devon 1,567.9
R = ——— - | |East Dorset 1,335.1
= Exeter 3,910.9
Summary Forest of Dean 1,424.0
Gloucester 2,657.2
The rate of chlamydia diagnoses in Torbay was 3,644 Istes of Scilly 1,197.6
per 100,000 for 2012. This was higher than the national  |Mendip 1,414.3
average (1,979.1 per 100,000) and was the second |Mid Devon 1,379.6
highest rate in the region. It was also higher than the :o:tt: gzm"t Eﬁgg
national diagnoses target of 2,300 per 100,000. Ng th So::rset 1'865.6
Plymauth 1,687.7
Torbay residents are likely to have their samples sent Poole 1,458.2
to the South Devon laboratory which had 52.4% of rec- Purbeck 1,504.7
ords with no NHS number and only 1.8% of non-GUM Sedgemoor 1,781.0
records had no postcode of residence. 98% of records | South Gloucestershire 702.8
submitted to the laboratory will therefore be assigned to ~ [South Hams 1,363.0
the correct Local Authority of residence. Therefore the gtorgtﬁdSomerset 1;‘:gg
rate given will have a high degree of accuracy, Swinder 2' 41 3' 4
Taunton Deane 1,792.2
Percentage of tests with unknown or missing codes l:ﬂ':;:g; ?2?;;
Posteode of Torba 3,644.0
Postcode | Testing y s
Number | NHS residence 7
Laboratory ST B A e of tasiting service Tomidge 1,075.8
tasty) | °TVice | type West Devon 1,262.1
Cornwall 22814 | 511 10.3 7.8 6.0 West Dorset 1,149.8
Dorset County | 16,533 | 76.5 29.0 78.9 43.2
Exster 10,950 | 5849 52.7 60.4 74.3 West Somerset 24957
Gloucester 28,677 38.3 6.3 257 0.0 Weymouth and Portland 1,819.1
Great Westem | 22,118 | 71.2 0.8 25.9 0.0 Wiltshire 1,766.2
PrE s | o] s | et | o2 | 92| [Tem L
Plymouth 10898 | s9.9 18.2 27 0.0 [England 1,979.1
Pocle 30,733 | ss.0 16.9 0.0 0.0
| Salighury 5718 | s1.0 9.2 6.8 4.9
South Devon | 11,500 | 524 1.8 100.0 0.0
Taunton 26,691 [ 401 5.7 6.0 0.5
Nationally 28% of records are missing postcode of residence.
Locally we would like to reduce the percentage of records with unknown postcode of residence to befow 3% and post-
code of testing service to less than 1%. Testing servioellspﬁ ahéulci tﬁ ercorded for all tests.

W

32




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

[ ] n«m and Otfice = ;
sexualhaalth

W, s
4. Sexually Transmitted Infections & HIV

4f. Percentage uptake of third dose HPV vaccine

!Indicator &3 Percentage uptake Dfire:'ction
| iy of change
Percentage uptake of third 2008/09(2009/10|2010/11{2011/12 08/09-11/12
dose vaccine uptake amongst  |Bath and NE Somerset | 759 | 763 | 837 85.4 1
P08 2011/12 anment 4y |Boumemouth and Poole| 98.9 | 823 | 848 | 894 ¥
ta. Bristol 729 | 628 | 691 70.9 4
Comwall & Isles of Scilly| 76.3 | 56.9 | 64.4 64.2 J
Source: Department of Health Devon 88.8 828 835 84.3 4
Dorset 841 | 783 | 831 82.3 J
Gloucestershire 818 | 813 | 86.1 87.9 ap
North Somerset 842 | 781 94.4 817 +t
Plymouth Teaching 78.4 737 76.6 81.4 t
Somerset 799 | 772 | 887 91.4 &
South Gloucestershire 787 | 767 | 817 90.2 g
Swindon 937 | 896 | 948 95.2 *
S ——— |Torbay 796 | 77.9 | 80.2 779 J
Wiltshire 773 | 693 | 897 89.2 ™
*2011/12 provisional data Total 81.9 75.2 82.3 83.8 t
England 801 | 764 | 84.2 86.8 ip
Summary

The percentage uptake of HPV vaccine (3rd dose) for 2011/12 was 77.9% for Torbay. This was lower than
the Local Authority average (83.8%) and England average (86.8%) and was the third lowest in the region.
Overall the percentage uptake of the third dose of the HPV vaccine has decreased from 79.6% in 2008/09
to 77.9% in 2011/12 however this is only a 2% change. Uptake has remained relatively stable of the four
years of the programme.

Percentage uptake of third dose vaccine uptake amongst 12-13 year old females

100 =
90
80 -
=i .
& 70 18 i
Feo | ==
= 50 !- 3 :
8 E |
= 40 i
al 30 8§ -_i:.: A
20 [ | -Igv
10 1 1 [
4 X = u— [~ = 1] b= = o i Q [t ki v k4
st o e s R S s
5 = [ [~ ] e 2L g o e 1 = = =
SReS Sl Sl o S S R S R R A ER R Sl e SR T i E R T
T 8 E D o 2 & 20 g5 S & 2 = =z £ &
2 gpo o= g w ar- & 2873 i 3
25 5 S S ¢ : z 2
A3 2 o S [=] o
c ™ G T
w <] = o 4 [ 5
o S 12008/08 W2009/10 W2010/11 - 02011/12*

Page 155 33




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

4. Sexually Transmitted Infections &

accepting an HiV test

. indicator

Percentage of persons altending a GUM clinic
who have been offered and percentage who
have accepted an HIV test, 2009—2012. At-
tendances by known HIV patients or where a
test was not appropriate have been excluded.

Only % offered an HIV test shown.

Source: GUMCAD (Genitourinary medicine
clinical activity dataset).

Summary

In Torbay 85% of persons attending a GUM
clinic were offered an HIV test. This was slight-
ly lower than the Local Authority average
(88%). However, it was similar to the rate in
2009 and 2010.

The percentage of persons attending GUM
who accepted the HIV test was 59% for 2012,
This was a decrease from 62% in 2009. Torbay
had the second lowest percentage of person
having an HIV test in the region in 2012.

Percentage

5
£
a

Christchurch D S ——

LN E :1:::.‘- cE 5 =>ocg
[=] —_— = .=
9533853 ¢sd§iz4¢
gEH c £ 2 o 5 a g | 2
“aEfUgsgsEacdy sy
Ehois o884 5 2 a o
5 8 £ S 8 @ 02 b
[} 5. % s i
@ o &

L2009

North Devon

North Dorset (...

S

HIV

4g. Percentage of sexual health service attendees offered and

% offared HIV test
oY, 2008 | 2010 | 2011 | 2012
BANES 94 92 92 93
Boumemouth 94 96 95 95
Bristot, City of 77 76 81 87
Cheltenham 92 90 88 85
Christchurch a5 95 95 94
Comwall 79 78 80 83
Cotswold 92 92 50 88
East Devon 82 83 87 87
East Dorset 94 95 a5 93
Exeter 85 85 89 88
Forest of Dean 92 a0 87 82
Gloucester 9 N 87 84
Isles of Scilly 0 0 0 o
Mendip a3 87 88 88
Mid Devon 83 83 85 85
North Devon 87 86 84 82
North Dorset a3 83 88 88
North Somerset 62 80 89 94
Plymouth 85 85 87 89
Poole 95 a5 96 96
Purbeck 91 g2 93 93
Sedgemoor 77 82 83 91
South Gloucestershire 82 78 83 89
South Hams 85 86 83 87
South Somerset 72 85 88 87
Stroud 91 91 87 87
Swindon 9% 96 90 81
Taunton Deane 85 80 76 87
Teignbridge 88 88 83 88
Tewkesbury 91 91 91 86
Torbay 87 87 78 85
Tomidge 85 87 85 84
West Devon 83 80 81 86
West Dorset 79 80 88 89
West Somerset 85 84 77 89
Weymouth & Portland 70 74 90 90
Wiltshire 9 93 ]| 87
Total 84 85 87 88

£ @ = '-I.dlﬂ
BEEEELE
(]
EgasEaz
RPN Sl S
a
A =y
1= ‘% ‘2
[=]
=
®2010 011

South Somerset

Stroud S
Swindon

Taunton Deane |8

2012

Percentage of GUM dinic attendees who were offered_ and HI\_I. test

Teignbridge

Tewkesbury

Torbay. | AInEafbalalyfi-¥- 5 v

Torridge |
West Devon

i
=34
=

Wiltshire & - :

Total

34




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

persons

_Indicafor

Rate of persons accessing HIV related care per
11,000 persons aged 15-59 years. Cases are as-
signed to LA based on postcodes of residence.

Numerator source: SOPHID (Survey of Prevalent HIV
Infections Diagnosed).

Denominator source: ONS mid year LA popufation
estimales.

Summary R

The rate of persons accessing HIV related care in
Torbay was 1.43 per 1,000 15-59 year olds in 2011.
This was higher than the Local Authority average rate
(0.92 per 1,000). It was the fourth highest rate in the
region for 2011.

Between 2009 and 2011 there has been a 10% in-
crease in the rate of persons accessing HIV related
|care. This increase will be due to new diagnoses and
persons living long due to antiretroviral therapy.

Pag&157 =2

f

mmwm =
-

M@xuaihoauh
South ‘Wt

4. Sexually Transmitted Infections & HIV

4h. Rate of persons accessing HIV related care per 1,000

Rate per 1000 Trend
Local Authorty | 009 | 2010 | 20114 | 2008

BANES 0.65 0,85 0.67 LD
Boumemouth 3.10 282 280 KR
Bristol, City of 1.85 1.74 1.75 4
Cheltenham 1.04 1.03 0.99 J
Christchurch 0.53 0.71 1.21 Ly
Corrmwall 0.47 0.51 0.56 4
Cotswold 0.66 0.80 0.62 A
East Devon 0.61 0.60 0.59 4
East Dorset 0.48 0.44 0.53 1
Exeter 0.84 1.08 1.23 fr
Forest of Dean 0.41 0.59 0.61 G
Gloucester 1.09 1.18 1.13 4+
ksles of Scilly - - - o

Mendip 0.48 0.51 0.51 T
Md Devon 0.50 0.63 063 L
North Devon 041 0.51 0.53 Tt
North Dorset 0.51 0.55 0.43 J$
North Somerset 0.70 0.74 077 ™
Plymouth 0.87 0.82 1.10 +
Poole 1.36 1.55 1.53 1
Purbeck 0.55 0.76 0.76 N
Sedgemoor 0.63 0.60 0.50 N
South Gloucestershire 0.70 0.73 0.88 ¥
South Hams 0.35 0.42 048 T
South Somerset 0.48 0.48 0.41 B,
Stroud 0.48 047 0.81 i~
Swindon 0.98 1.08 1.22 T
Taunton Deane .51 0.51 0.45 %
Teignbridge 0.43 0.38 0.48 4
Tewkesbury 0.53 0.57 0.61 ™
Torbay 1.30 1.31 1.43 |+
Torridge 0.61 0.64 0.65 T
West Devon 0.46 0.53 070 +
West Dorset 0.44 0.51 0.54 1|
West Somerset 0.58 0.48 0.24 €
Weymouth and Portland |  0.82 0.86 0.7t Jy
Wiltshire 0.48 0.53 0.59 |
Total 0.84 0.99 0.92 ™

Rate of personsseenin care for HIV per 1,000 15 - 59 year olds, 2009 to 2011

o_i_ . iiﬁi_ia ﬁiiii...iiiiﬁﬁiﬁigi_iﬁfli
o = M - pe o - - o i
NS REENR R E R AN RS RS R LN R R T AR
22Ect22:2352838:c33buopbE3 sl 23858cEgR
2 EO ST EBaddwe 9l 8aadgegeEr s g EHKszQ8 3B L0l gL E
-2 & 8 8 4 oN2ECREN R = S TR ERIEEE Zcg g 8oL R
ces 2ol y 2 'gtt‘ga b 5 a 5 "‘”3383
3255 W Qw—,_z ggﬁ b & £ -2 z2z B X
m o & (] 3 E g;
wvy
w2011 35




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

o -
:}I.Lﬁ“ sexuathealth
R South West

.

4. Sexually Transmitted Infections & HIV

4i. Late diagnoses, percentage with CD4 cell count <350

' Indicator LA 2008- | 2009-
2010 2011

Percentage of new diagnoses of HIV with a CD4 cell| |BANES 5186 50.0
Jcount of less than 350 per mm® between 2009 and  (Bournemouth 36.0 304
[2011. Bristol, City of 511 526
' Cheltenham 722 42.9
Source: Integrated HIV surveillance data (Survey Of Christchurch 2 50.0
Preclet 1 nicors Digros SO |G o
CD4 Surveillance). Cotswold 50.0 57.1
| |EastDevon 38.9 30.8

) East Dorset - 40.0
Summary | |Exeter 63.6 57.1
Forest of Dean 40.0 42.9

In Torbay percentage of HIV new diagnoses identi- |Gloucester 48.5 65.0

fied through CD4 surveillance with a CD4 count of | Isles of Scilly : -
less than 350 between 2009 and 2011 was 69.2% Mendip 55.6 70.0
which was higher than the regional average of! |Mid Devon 286 16.7
49.5%. This was the fourth highest percentage of |North Devon 83.3 60.0
late diagnoses in the region. The percentage of late| North Dorset - .

diagnoses has also increased slightly from 66.7% in North Somerset 75.0 65.0

2008/10. | |Ptymoutn 542 | 451

Poole 65.7 48.7

62% of heterosexual male, 58% of heterosexual fe- Purbeck 66.7 40.0

males and 40% of men who have sex with men in| Sedgemoor 4.7 25.0

the South West had new diagnoses with a CD4 cell South Gloucestershire 57.1 46.7
| count less than 350/mm?®. ‘ South Hams 2 .

| South Somerset 60.0 60.0

| Stroud 69.2 57.1

Swindon 51.3 556

Taunton Deane 75.0 70.0
Percentage of HlVd:m:ri.::nﬂﬂedthmugh cDa Tei gnbri dg e 44.4 o

= with CDA4 count <350, by risk group Tewkesbury 50.0 40.0

60 Torbay 66.7 69.2
30 Torridge - -
i :2 | West Devon - :
<o . ! H West Dorset 20.0 -
10 l E i i West Somerset g =

08 e e ey Weymouth and Portland |  72.7 80.0

b s Wiltshire 421 429

IMSM W Heterosexual Male WHeternsexual Female | Other -~ Total Total 53.5 495

Dagp 158 36




Sexual Health Quarterly Outcome Indicator Report

South West

DoPYs Network send Office
Qﬂlaaltb

Reference List

1. Delivering Alcohol Identification and Brief Advice in Sexual Health Settings. Available from:
hitp://www.alcohpllearningcentre org.uk/ library/Resources/ALC/SH.IBAFinal. pdf

2. Department of Heaith (2005) Heaith Economics of Sexual Health: A Guide for Commission-
ing and Planning. Available from: hitp://
webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/2010081 1230802/webarchive nationalarchives.gov.uk/
+/www.dh.qov‘uklen/publichea!th/heaIthimprovement/sexualhealth/dh 4001842

3. UK guideline for the use of post-exposure prophylaxis for HIV following sexual exposure
(2011). P Benn et al. Available from: http./fwww.bhiva.org/PEPSE aspx

4. BASHH statement on partner notification, 2012. Available from: www.bashh.org/
documents/4445.

Page 159 37




Page 160



Agend

altem 13

Appendix 2

Appendix 2

Sexual Health Commissioning Responsibilities and Relationships from April 2013

Local Authorities

Comprehensive sexual
health services, including

Contraception,
including LES’s
(implants) and
NES’s (intrauterine
contraception)

Including all prescribing
costs- but excluding
contraception provided as
an additional service under
the GP Contract.

STl testing and
treatment,
chlamydia testing
as part of the
National Chlamydia
Screening
Programme and
HIV testing.

Sexual health
aspects of
psychosexual
counselling.

Any sexual health
specialist services
including young
people’s sexual
health and teenage
pregnancy services,
outreach, HIV
prevention and
sexual health
promotion work,
services in schools,
colleges and
pharmacies

-

(%]

2

=

ey

3

c
£
=]

SEoo g
omucﬁ
S Y om ®©

T v 5 QO
> @©
fUS-o—JLuqa
2 X c c
_cmmﬁH
HWE(UC
c = S o 2
a ot kg
f_quJUL
O 2= ©
= 0 2 2 a
£ 320540
Sggee

Z o

- =

c

©

(]

9

&=

(@]

I

Clinical
Commissioning

Most abortion
services (but
there will be a
further

commissioning
arrangements in
the longer term)

Sterilisation.

Vasectomy.

Non sexual

health elements
of psychosexual
health services.

Gynaecology,
including any
use of
contraceptive
for non-

rantrarantiva

Page 161

consultati_
about best

Office and Network for Sexuél Healfh South West

c

o

£

S © <

O C X

=g
Q0

LT

4_'|.I.l‘-0—

=52
= =

E T o

= 1

8, €

BE’E
o a

oy

©

(8]

o

)

l

NHS England

Contraception
provided as an
additional
service under
the GP

Contract, T

HIV treatment
and care
including post-
exposure
prophylaxis
after sexual
exposure.

Promotion of
opportunistic
testing and
treatment for
STI's and
patient
requested
testing by GP’s.

Sexual health
elements of
prison health
services.

Sexual Assault
Referral
Centres.

Cervical
Screening.

Specialist fetal
medicine.




Agenda Iltem 14

TORBAY ™7~
Health- Wellbeing
— BOARD
Working together for a healthier Torbay
Title: Priority 3 — Reduce Teenage Pregnancy / Public Health Work
Programme
Wards Affected: All
To: Health & Wellbeing Board On: 19 September 2013
Contact: Sue Matthews
Telephone: 208204
Email: sue.matthews@torbay.gov.uk

1. Purpose
1.1 To brief the Board on the proposed work programme:

1.2 As a senior manager within community public health I have been seconded to
the Local Authority Public Health department with a clear remit of ‘Designing a
young person’s sub strand of the PH work programme...".

1.3 Within this is the remit of ‘reviewing existing services and best practice
elsewhere’ and in particular using teenage conception statistics and the sexual
exploitation case as evidence.

1.4 I have also been asked to ‘identify training requirements across all agencies
around risk taking behaviour and aspiration’.

1.5 T also have a mandate for seeking opportunities to *...improve working
together....” between the NHS and Children’s Services.

2, Recommendation

2.1 The Board to accept the proposed work programme

3. Supporting Information

3.1 For today’s report I will be focusing on two priorities of Torbay’s Outcomes:

e Reduce teenage pregnancy
e Increase sexual health screening

3.2 You will have seen the statistics from Doug Haines and whilst there is a
quarterly variable, over the last 10 years our overall annual rate has changed very
little.

ORBAY NHS

— Page 162



3.3

Whilst reviewing teenage pregnancy it is very important to see this as a

symptom rather than the cause. Many young people are vulnerable to a range of risk
taking behaviour and challenging outcomes, for example:

3.4

Drug and alcohol misuse
Self-harming

Teenage conception
Worklessness

Low self-esteem and aspiration, intergenerational poverty, poor parenting/role
modelling all play their part in determining outcomes.

I propose to (please see Appendix A for full work programme and proposed

time scales):

3.5

e Review sexual health training

o Identify best practice and identify gaps by auditing against national
recommendations and best practice

e Review previous work undertaken to identify causes and interventions for
teenage conceptions

e Consult with young people on provision of Public Health services

e Review current RSE provision

e Review job roles

o Identify training needs

e Review risk assessment currently undertaken by all agencies

Whilst T have focused on two priorities, my work programme will touch on

many of the other priorities identified for Torbay and I will be working in partnership
with the evolving Youth trust arrangements.

3.6
4,
4.1
5.
5.1
5.2
6.

6.1

I will report regularly to the Board on progress.

Relationship to Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
Teenage conceptions is a key indicator for Public Health locally.
Relationship to Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Priority 3 — Reduce Teenage Pregnancy

Priority 9 — Increase Sexual Health Screening

Implications for future iterations of the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment and/or Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Remains a key strand.

Page 163



Appendices
Appendix 1

AFl

Page 164



| ebedq

& PUOISAIN [BUWIBXT A Alewiwing J3l0id @ suopsalipy s nds £1/60/50 NYL :s1eq
& sujpesq (]  syseleueiXi Ar————--—-0 IBWWNG ey ssaifold (T ysel upueD josloid smaupe ang osloid
Lo
O
—i
()
&)
& 2 ¥LICO/LE UON  €1/60/9Z NYL 1sinboy W,
& a YLIZ0/8Z WA EL/LL/LO U suuou [ejoog Do |
& -2 ¥LIS0/0E M4 €L/0L/LO @NL e |je Aq uayepapun ARUaLIND JUBISSISSE YSH MAIASY G0l
& - PLIOL/LE M4 €L/0L/LO @NL shemyjed fousbe yinw dojansp pue Anuap| 20l
& -] €LIZLILE AL €1/60/92 NYL sjuswabuelre uoyisues) pue Aijigesip Mairsy 00l
& ) ¥LIOL/LE U4 ¥L/L0/FL UON  EJPNE pue swwelB0id YJOM Hd O sjoadse ||le malnay 6
& = $1L/S0/0E M4 YL/S0/SO UON  ued) ySIy Jy uosidad Bunoy, e jo Ayjiqissod auy Anusp| 88
& 71/60/€0 POM  €1/60/€0 @nL  uonejuswaldw) Jo sassauyeam pue syjbuans Auap| g8
& - 1/80/6C 14 €1/60/9Z NyL spaau Bujuresy Ayuap| 18
Aul 1 —— SLIZLILE ®NL  €L/LL/LL UON sjuswabueuse uoisinladns malnay 8/
& A ¥1/0L/L0 PO ¥1/90/20 UOIN s9]04 qof Majnay ¢/
4|_. m a a ¥1/80/6Z U4 ¥1/90/20 UON 1spow gnH Aunwwoy uj sepunyoddo mainay 89
— O & -] ¥1/80/62 M4 ¥1/90/20 UOW doyg dojs auQ 40} sapiunpoddo Aynuap) 79
ml c @ a ¥LIE0/LE UON  €1/60/9Z NUL uoisiAoid IS JUBLIND MBIASY 85
frm— & - ¥1/90/0€ UOIN  ¥L/S0/E0 UOIN Buiieys uonew.ojul saousabe mainay [}
AC e A cLzL/g eng SL/LL/LL UON ased :O_umo_o_nxm |enxag woJ} juied| SUOSSd| M3IADY oF
) p & & v1/S0/0€ M4 ¥1L/€0/E0 UOIN S8SED |BNjOR MBIASY %4
—— o & & ¥1/20/82 M4 €L/60/0E€ UON B SISNED AJ)uapl 0} US)EMSPUN HIOM SNOIABID MBIASY ge
A & - ¥1/20/8Z M4 £1/60/9Z nyL 1oead 3saq jsutebe Bunipne Aq Aiaaljep ui sdeb Aynuap) 74
A.a & oo ¥1L/20/82 M4 €1/60/9Z NUL npne Aq aanoeid 3seq Auap) Gl
& -] ¥LIE0/LE UON  €1/60/9Z NYL Bulutes| yyjeaH [enxag MalAay A
(®) 5
o g
nl ‘V
b ¢
4
{ : ;
qWSAON | 18qojoQ [ 1equisydag | snbny | Ainr] aunr | Re | Judy | yoseN | Kienigad] Kienuer | Jaquiada( | J8qWISAON [ 19q0JoQ [ Jaquis)das | Isnbny ysiuig4 yeis I SUWEN sel] o a
LI MIINDY SADIAIBS Y}edaH dliqnd YinoA




Agenda Item 14
Appendix 2

Report Period Agency nhame and contact RAG rating
Quarter 1 details
April-June 2013 Torbay Public Health Team

mark.richards@torbay.gov.uk

Description of the measure:

Teenage conceptions/teenage pregnancy refers to young women who conceived under the age of 18
and includes live births, still births and legal abortions. The rate equates to conceptions per 1000
women aged 15-17.

Latest Data (ONS):
e There were 19 conceptions in Torbay recorded in Q2 2012 - this equates to a rate of 34.2.
e This is a reduction from 32 conceptions recorded in Q1 2012 and a rate of 58.1.

Comparison Data:
Rate per 1000 15-17 year olds Q2 2012: England 28.3%, South West 25.3%, Torbay 34.2%

Discussion:

The quarterly data shows a positive direction of travel and a distinct change from Q1. However,
Torbay continues to struggle against the 1998 national target to reduce U18 conceptions by 50% -
giving Torbay a target of 22.1 per 1000.

Local priorities as agreed by a Joint Teenage Pregnancy Partnership Board and Teenage Pregnancy
Strategy Executive in March:

e Ensuring contraceptive / sexual health services are young people focused, trusted by
teenagers and well known by professionals working with them

e Ensuring a strong delivery of Sex and Relationships Education / Personal Social Health
Education by schools

e Providing targeted work with young people who may be more at risk of becoming pregnant,
in particular ‘looked after children’ and ‘care leavers'.

e  Working with parents and carers to prevent teenage conceptions.

These priorities must be set against some underpinning, wider issues:

Ongoing safeguarding concerns — e.g. non-consensual sex, exploitation, abuse,

Serious Case Review recommendations

Child poverty and unemployment — both a contributory factor and an outcome.

Health inequalities — areas of greater deprivation have higher rates of teenage conceptions.

Planned Work

e Establish governance arrangements for the teenage conceptions agenda within the Health
and Wellbeing Board.

e Qutcomes for some young adults are challenging in Torbay. This is despite investment of
both time and additional services. Existing services and best practice elsewhere will be
reviewed with an eye to:

Page 166



e Designing a young adults sub strand of the Public Health work programme
e Identifying training requirements across all agencies around risk taking behaviour and
aspiration. To include:
Sexual Health training
Previous work undertaken to identify causes and Interventions for teenage
conceptions
Consultation with young people on Public Health provision of services
Review Current RSE provision
Identify Opportunities for a One-Stop Shop
Review Opportunities in Community Hub Model

Recommendations:
That the TSCB continues to receive quarterly reports and endorses the planned work outlined above.

Page 167




Agenda Iltem 14
Appendix 3

LSCB Safeguarding Performance Report (DATE)

Under 18 Conception Data.

Report compiled Report written by Kim Flemming, RAG rating: RED
April 2013 Torbay Council Children’s Services.

No data update from previous report:

ONS quarterly U18 conception data is published May, August, November and February.
Q1 2012 will therefore be available May 2013.

ROOT CAUSE ANALYSIS

Kim Flemming interviewed five Young Mothers in January 2013. It was agreed that their information
(without name, address, school and date of birth) could form part of a report that will be shared with
professionals in meetings in order to gain greater understanding of the lives of local young mothers with
the aim of improving services and practice. It is important to acknowledge that this study does not provide
a generalised view of the experiences of teenage mothers, but rather it outlines the experiences and views
of the small cohort who participated and provides us with a useful insight into their circumstances.

The interviews with young parents have been written up into 4 different documents, all using the same
information but with a different focus.

1. Root Cause Analysis (RCA) — written up using RCA methodology.

2. Risk Factors — matching young parent’s information against national risk factors.

3. Young Parents Stories — providing in-depth information on their circumstances

4. Appendices.
Senior Managers can access these on Torbay Council G drive, Children’s services, Shared, Teenage
Pregnancy, Consultation/Participation, RCA.

The following RCA recommendations are addressed in the updated Reducing Teenage Conceptions Plan.
DISCUSSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS.

1. One of the key requirements for reducing teenage conceptions is access to reliable contraception.
Whilst the young mothers interviewed had all accessed contraception this was either not used correctly or
they reported it did not work. Even if providers of oral contraception and condoms had provided
information on how to use the contraception correctly and explained what would happen if not taken
correctly, improper use may still have occurred. This could be due to the young woman misunderstanding
the information or the belief that perhaps ‘it won’t happen to me’. The use of Longer Acting Reversible
Contraception (LARC) would have most probably prevented these young women from becoming pregnant
as LARC does not rely on patients having to use it correctly.

Recommendation: Actively promoting the use of LARC with young women not wishing to become
pregnant.

2. Many of the young women were also disengaged from school and had not received adequate sex and
relationship education. The young women would have benefitted from being identified by the school as
more ‘at risk’ of teenage conceptions and would possibly have benefitted from being provided with
additional input sex and relationships.

Page 168




Recommendation: Schools to improve their identification of young women who would benefit from
additional sex and relationships education.

3. None of the young women interviewed said they had experienced ongoing sex and
relationships education in school; either it was a one off session or they could not remember it.

Recommendation: Improve the quality and effectiveness of SRE in schools in line with best practice with
ongoing sessions throughout the school years.

4. Evidence shows that teenage pregnancy is both a contributory and an outcome of child poverty and
follows intergenerational cycles. Teenage pregnancy also increases health inequalities and leads to poor
long term outcomes for young parents and their children. It is worth noting that all the young women
interviewed had lived and were living in areas of deprivation.

Recommendation: Ensure ‘reducing teenage conceptions’ is included in overarching strategy and delivery
plans to reduce child poverty.

Page 169




	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Update Report - Adult Social Services
	6 Update Report - Clinical Commissioning Group
	South Devon and Torbay Pioneer Site Bid

	7 Update Report - Public Health
	8 Update Report - Healthwatch
	Healthwatch Torbay Young People Report - Sept 2013
	MMMReportFinal 1

	9 Update Report - Children's Services
	10 Children and Young People Update - Health
	Better Health Outcomes Pledge

	11 Collaboration without Duplication
	12 Winterbourne View Action Plan
	Winterbourne View Action Plan - Seven-Step Model

	13 Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priority 9 - Increase Sexual Health Screening
	Sexual Health Services Appendix 1a
	Sexual Health Services Appendix 2

	14 Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Priority 3 - Reduce Teenage Pregnancy
	Teenage Pregnancy Appendix
	Teenage Pregnancy Q1 Teenage Conceptions
	Teenage Pregnancy Q4 - Teenage Conceptions


